ENERE

:::-\& (g\%
CIOIY
LONDON

Public Document Pack

Streets and Walkways Sub (Planning and
Transportation) Committee

Date:
Time:
Venue:

Members:

Enquiries:

TUESDAY, 11 DECEMBER 2012

11.00am

COMMITTEE ROOM - 2ND FLOOR WEST WING, GUILDHALL

Jeremy Simons (Chairman)
Archie Galloway (Deputy

Chairman)

Deputy John Barker

Martin Farr (Ex-Officio Member)
Marianne Fredericks

Alderman Alison Gowman (Ex-
Officio Member)

Katie Odling
tel. no.: 020 7332 3414

Alderman Robert Hall (Ex-Officio
Member)

Brian Harris (Ex-Officio Member)
Michael Hudson

Sylvia Moys

Deputy John Owen-Ward

Deputy Michael Welbank (Ex-Officio

Member)

katie.odling@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Lunch will be served in Guildhall Club at 1pm

John Barradell
Town Clerk and Chief Executive




AGENDA

Part 1 - Public Agenda
APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

MEMBERS' DECLARATIONS UNDER THE CODE OF CONDUCT IN RESPECT OF
ITEMS ON THE AGENDA

MINUTES
To agree the public minutes and summary of the meeting held on 19 November 2012.

For Decision
(Pages 1 - 4)

REPORTS OF THE DIRECTOR OF THE BUILT ENVIRONMENT :-

a) Mitre Street — Anti-Social Behaviour Noise Complaints A Highway Authority
Response (Pages 5 - 30)

b) Options Appraisal and Authority to start work - Heron Plaza (Pages 31 - 62)

c) Issue Report — Mariner House Section 106 Improvement Works (Pages 63 -
74)

d) Cheapside Area Enhancement Strategy — Report on progress and proposed
review (Pages 75 - 88)

e) Road Danger Reduction Plan 2013 (Pages 89 - 124)

f) Road Danger reduction in the Shoe Lane area - Stonecutter Street & Little
New Street (Pages 125 - 164)

RELOCATION OF DOROTHY ANNAN CERAMIC PANELS TO BARBICAN
HIGHWALK AND TRANSFER OF OWNERSHIP TO CITY OF LONDON
CORPORATION
Report of the City Surveyor.
For Decision
(Pages 165 - 168)

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB
COMMITTEE

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT



10.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

MOTION — That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972, the public
be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the grounds that
they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in Part | of
Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act as follows:-

Part 2 - Non-public Agenda

QUESTIONS ON NON-PUBLIC MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE
SUB COMMITTEE

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT AND
WHICH THE SUB COMMITTEE AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED WHILST
THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 3

STREETS AND WALKWAYS SUB (PLANNING AND TRANSPORTATION)
COMMITTEE

Monday, 19 November 2012

Minutes of the meeting of the Streets and Walkways Sub (Planning and
Transportation) Committee held at Committee Room - 2nd Floor West Wing,
Guildhall on Monday, 19 November 2012 at 11.00 am

Present

Members:

Jeremy Simons (Chairman)

Archie Galloway (Deputy Chairman)

Deputy John Barker

Martin Farr (Ex-Officio Member)

Marianne Fredericks

Alderman Robert Hall (Ex-Officio Member)
Sylvia Moys

Deputy John Owen-Ward

Deputy Michael Welbank (Ex-Officio Member)

Officers:

Katie Odling - Town Clerk's Department

Daniel Hooper - Town Clerk's Department

Mark Paddon - Chamberlain's Department

Steve Presland - Department of the Built Environment
Victor Callister - Department of the Built Environment
lan Hughes - Department of the Built Environment
Patrick Hegarty - Open Spaces Department

Alan Rickwood - City Police

Norma Collicott -

1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Alderman Gowman, Brian Harris
and Michael Hudson.

2. DECLARATIONS BY MEMBERS OF ANY PERSONAL AND PREJUDICIAL
INTERESTS IN RESPECT OF ITEMS ON THIS AGENDA
There we no declarations of interest.

3. MINUTES
The Minutes of the meeting held on 15 October 2012, were approved as a
correct record.

MATTERS ARISING -

Page 1



Millennium Bridge approach — (ltem 3) — Members were informed that repair
and maintenance works was due to start on 20 November.

Pedestrian Crossing at Swan Lane (ltem 3) — The Deputy Chairman advised
that he had been unable to raise the matter at the previous London Council’s
meeting; however, he would endeavour to obtain information via an alternative
source.

Trinity Square — (Item 6) — Members were advised that equipment was being
sought to remove the road markings which were causing some confusion in the
Trinity Square area.

The Chairman expressed thanks to officers for ensuring removal of the lamp
post in front of the St Lawrence Jewry drinking fountain.

CHEAPSIDE STAGE 4A - GRESHAM STREET OBJECTIONS REPORT
Consideration was given to a report of the Director of the Built Environment
relative to the objections received in relation to Cheapside Stage 4A (Gresham
Street).

In response to a question raised, the Director advised that a final report
containing firm details in relation to materials would be brought back to
Committee for agreement.

Reference was also made to the taxi population in the city and the issues
around enforcement which the Director undertook to ensure were fully
considered in the final report.

RESOLVED - That,

a) The making of Traffic Orders under Section 6 of the Road Traffic
Regulation Act 1984 be agreed, so as to make the two-way operation at the
Gresham Street junction with Aldersgate Street permanent;

b) The Objectors be informed of the Committees decision; and

c) A further report be brought back to the Committee at Gateway 4/5 stage.

OUTCOME REPORT - CYCLE PARKING 2011-12
Consideration was given to an outcome report of the Director of the Built
Environment regarding Cycle Parking 2011/2012.

The Chairman complemented Officers on the success of the project.

RESOLVED - That,

i) It be noted that the project was delivered with a high level of success in
both of the measured criteria (number of spaces implemented and the
initial use of those spaces); and

ii) Authorisation be granted to close the project.

Page 2



OUTLINE OPTIONS APPRAISAL - LEADENHALL STREET PEDESTRIAN
CROSSING IMPROVEMENTS

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of the Built Environment
which provided information regarding the Outline Options Appraisal for
Leadenhall Street Pedestrian Crossing Improvements.

Members expressed their support to progress Option 3, acknowledging that the
number of pedestrians was likely to increase in the area due to new office
developments nearby; therefore it was important to move the project forward as
a quickly as possible.

RESOLVED - That Option 3 (a large signalised junction) be progressed further
for reasons described in Section 22 of the report.

RIVERSIDE WALK ENHANCEMENT STRATEGY

Consideration was given to a report of the Director of the Built Environment in
respect of the Riverside Walk Enhancement Strategy (progress report and
proposed review).

Members received a presentation from the Assistant Director (Environmental
Enhancement).

Members expressed concern regarding the safety of pedestrians due to
prohibited cycling on the Riverside Walk. The number of runners could also be
a problem at times. Members were advised that details of further projects would
be brought to the Sub-Committee at future meetings for full discussion.
Members noted that the key point was to ensure the walkway accommodated
the various types of users.

The Director agreed to clarify with the Comptroller and City Solicitor and the
Remembrancer the position in respect of amendments to the respective powers
for policing the walkway and provide a response to Members.

RESOLVED - That,

i) the update information on the Strategy be received and actions noted;
and

ii) Officers be authorised to commence a review and update of the
Strategy, with a view to the updated draft being approved by Members
prior to public consultation in 2013

8-10 MOORGATE AREA IMPROVEMENTS
Consideration was given to a report of the Director of the Built Environment in
respect of 8-10 Moorgate Area Improvements.

RESOLVED - That in line with Officers recommendation, Option 1 be
progressed as follows:
a) Improvements to Telegraph Street and Tokenhouse Yard, directly
adjacent to the 8-10 Moorgate development.

Page 3



10.

11.

12.

13.

14.

SPECIAL EVENTS ON THE PUBLIC HIGHWAY - RIDELONDON
Consideration was given to a report of the Director of the Built Environment
which allowed Members the opportunity to comment on the proposal and
consider the appropriateness of the RideLondon event taking into account the
nature, scale and impact on the City streets.

Members were informed that between now and August 2013, officers would be
working on the detail of the plan for the events, with the Sunday set to be the
larger of the two, however an interim report would be brought to the Committee
in February 2013.

In response to a question, Officers agreed to liaise with the organisers to
ensure that adequate public toilet facilities were available for event participants.
Officers also agreed to communicate the events to cruise ships docking on the
same day, as well as licensed establishments.

RESOLVED - That the RideLondon event on 3™ and 4" August 2013 be
supported, and Officers in the Highways Division be requested to work closely
with TfL and the event organisers on the proposed routes through the City.

QUESTIONS ON MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF THE SUB
COMMITTEE
There were no questions.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
There were no items of urgent business.

EXCLUSION OF THE PUBLIC

RESOLVED: That under Section 100A(4) of the Local Government Act 1972,
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on
the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as
defined in Part | of Schedule 12A of the Local Government Act.

QUESTIONS ON NON-PUBLIC MATTERS RELATING TO THE WORK OF
THE SUB COMMITTEE
There were no questions.

ANY OTHER BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIRMAN CONSIDERS URGENT
AND WHICH THE SUB COMMITTEE AGREES SHOULD BE CONSIDERED
WHILST THE PUBLIC ARE EXCLUDED

There were no items of urgent business.

The meeting ended at 12.35 pm

Chairman

Contact Officer: Katie Odling
tel. no.: 020 7332 3414
katie.odling@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Page 4



Agenda Iltem 4a

Committee(s): Date(s):
Streets and Walkways Sub Committee 11 December 2012
Subject: Public

Mitre Street — Anti-Social Behaviour (Noise) Complaints: A
Highway Authority Response

Report of: For Decision
Director of Built Environment

Summary

Residents in the Mitre Street area requested that Officers investigate the replacement
of single yellow line parking on Mitre Street with double yellow lines. Residents hoped
that this would address the occurrence of anti-social behaviour in the area associated
with the night-time economy.

However, following local public consultation, it was found that removal of parking after
the hours of parking control, as requested by residents, will cause difficulties for other
stakeholders such as the Sir John Cass’s Foundation Primary School and St Katherine
Cree Church, and may not necessarily resolve the noise issue.

It is considered that any response from the City of London in its capacity as Highway
Authority will not offer a satisfactory solution to the noise issue at Mitre Street.

Recommendations

| recommend the Streets and Walkway Sub Committee retain the current waiting
and loading restrictions at Mitre Street including the existing mixture of pay &
display, disabled and motorcycle bays (i.e. do nothing).

Main Report

Introduction

1. Residents in the Mitre Street area have complained of late-night noise disturbances
resulting from the night-time economy for a number of years. There is an increasingly
active night-time economy in the Leadenhall Street and Mitre Street area; an inspection
of the immediate area on 18 May 2012 identified eight licensed premises as listed in
Appendix 1.

Background

2. Mitre Street is a local access road between Creechurch Lane and Aldgate, near
Leadenhall Street, at the eastern end of the City of London. The location of Mitre
Street can be viewed in Appendix 2.

3. The area consists of a mix of land uses including offices, bars, restaurants, pubs,
cafes, a school (Sir John Cass’s Foundation Primary School), two places of worship (St
Katherine Cree Church and the Bevis Marks Synagogue) and residential dwellings.

4. International House, located at 1 Mitre Square, has an approved planning application
for a 37,655 sqm office redevelopment with a 297 sgm shop, café or restaurant.
Demolition of the existing structure is due to commence shortly.

Page 5



Current Position

5.

The area currently has a mixture of pay & display, disabled and motorcycle bays.
There are “at any time” restrictions (ie double yellow lines) on some sections of the
road to prevent obstructive parking but otherwise parking is unrestricted against single
yellow lines after the hours of control.

It has been suggested that visitors to the night-time establishments often park in nearby
Mitre Street and Creechurch Lane after the hours of parking control (7am to 7 pm,
Monday to Friday), causing disturbances when arriving / leaving (e.g. congregating
around parked cars playing loud music, talking / laughing loudly etc).

Residents suggested that implementing tighter parking restrictions on Mitre Street may
discourage anti-social behaviour. Officers agreed to investigate the feasibility of
replacing single yellow line parking on Mitre Street with double yellow lines.

Research and Investigation

8.

10.

11.

12.

13.

In order to establish the extent of the issue, data was gathered from three sources:

(a) A public consultation was conducted between 26 March to 15 April 2012 where 85
gquestionnaires were distributed to all residents and businesses in the area shown in
Appendix 2. A copy of the questionnaire is also available in Appendix 2. .

(b) A night-time parking survey was conducted over two Friday and Saturday nights by
the City’s Parking Enforcement Team. These were undertaken over the weekends
of 5-6 May and 11-12 May 2012. The detailed observations from these surveys are
available in Appendix 3.

(c) Reported noise incidents were obtained from both the City’s Environmental Health
(Noise Team) and the City of London Police. These were analysed and are
presented in Appendix 4.

In addition to determining the validity and extent of the noise problem, the public
consultation in March / April 2012 aimed to establish support for the removal of parking
after the hours of parking control (7am to 7pm, Monday to Friday) by converting the
single yellow line along Mitre Street to double yellow lines.

The proposed introduction of double yellow lines would mean that night-time economy
visitors would have to park elsewhere. Equally, residents and their visitors would not
be able to park here at any time.

However, loading and servicing would not be affected. These would continue to be
permitted on both single and double yellow lines that are not governed by loading
restrictions (single / double kerb blips).

The investigation of this issue and associated proposal was coordinated with the wider
waiting and loading review of the City since treating Mitre Street in isolation could result
in vehicles parked here being displaced to other nearby streets causing the problem to
migrate elsewhere.

An area wide approach was employed to ensure that waiting restrictions at Mitre Street
were reviewed concurrently with those at Creechurch Lane, Bury Street and Heneage
Lane. This need was recognised by several respondents in the public consultation.

Summary of Results

Page 6



14.

15.

16.

17.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

Detailed analyses of the data above are discussed in detail in Appendices 2, 3 and 4
respectively.

The public consultation clearly demonstrated an inherent conflict between residents
and businesses in the area with regards to noise issues from the night-time economy.
This can be explained by (a) the majority of businesses in the area are offices whose
operation does not co-exist with the night-time economy and (b) certain businesses are
part of the night-time economy and their patrons may be affected by any increase in
parking restrictions.

All residents reported suffering from noise often or sometimes, as opposed to the
majority of businesses who did not suffer from noise disturbances. Consequently,
residents were more likely to think that increased parking restrictions will help address
the situation, and are therefore more in favour of the proposal.

While the school and places of worship were sympathetic towards the plight of
residents, they did not support the proposal for more stringent parking restrictions at
Mitre Street in whole.

The night-time parking survey appears to support the notion of an active night-time
economy in the area, particularly on “special occasions” such as Bank holiday
weekends. There was also correlation between the night-time parking survey and a
reported noise incident on the 7 May 2012.

The analysis of reported noise incidents shows that while noise complaints have been
reducing over the years, noise disturbance remains a concern for residents in Mitre
Street. Seventy five percent of noise complaints are attributed to a commercial or an
entertainment nature.

Residents are frustrated that little is able to be done to help address this issue. Based
on their discussions with officers, these frustrations are similarly echoed by the City’s
Environmental Health (Noise) Team and the City of London Police.

One of the complications faced by the Environmental Health Team is the difficulty in
establishing whether the noise threshold has been breached such that enforcement
action can be considered. In addition, the nature of the noise (loud talking / laughing) is
not enforceable under current legislations.

The only other recourse is therefore for the incidents to be reported to the City of
London Police as anti-social behaviour. However, the City of London Police may not
have the resources to attend site immediately due to other priorities (sometimes only
able to follow-up with informant later in the day.)

Proposal

23.

24.

The consultation shows that noise is a problem for residents. However, there is no
overall support for the consulted proposal to convert single yellow lines to double
yellow lines. Instead, any such response would create parking complications for other
stakeholders particularly the Sir John Cass’s Foundation Primary School and St
Katherine Cree Church whose parents or parishioners will no longer be able to park in
Mitre Street in the evenings and at weekends.

It should also be noted that the consulted proposal may not be effective in reducing all
noise unless parking controls are also introduced to prevent night time parking at pay &
display, disabled and motorcycle bays that are currently in place.

Page 7



25. Based on the above, it is therefore proposed that the current waiting and loading
restrictions at Mitre Street (including the existing mixture of pay & display, disabled and
motorcycle bays) be retained i.e. do nothing.

Corporate & Strategic Implications

26. Issues relating to the night-time economy are recognised in the Core Strategy (page
16):

“The City is a safe place to live and work, but must recognise and address increasing
concerns about global security. More locally, growth in the night-time economy is
leading to concerns about anti-social behaviour. The challenge is to address these
global and local concerns, whilst maintaining an attractive and accessible
environment”.

27. The results of this investigation suggest that reliance upon parking control alone as a
means of mitigating the impacts of the night-time economy are unlikely to yield
success.

Implications

28. There are no financial, legal, property or human resource implications from the “do
nothing” proposal.

29. Akey risk associated with the proposal is that residents of Mitre Street may continue to
suffer the effects of noise especially with the increasingly active night-time economy in
and around the Mitre Street area.

Conclusion

30. There is an inherent conflict between the needs of residents and businesses in the
Mitre Street area on the issue of noise from the night-time economy.

31. Removal of parking after the hours of parking control, as requested by residents, will
cause difficulties for other stakeholders such as the school and places of worship and
is not recommended.

Appendices

Appendix 1 Licensed Premises in the Leadenhall Street and Mitre Street Area

Appendix 2 Consultation Questionnaire

Appendix 3 Results of Night-Time Parking Survey

Appendix 4 An Analysis of Reported Noise Incidents

Contact:

Christine Wong, Project Manager (Contract)
christine.wong@cityoflondon.gov.uk | 020 7332 1511

Page 8



Appendix 1 Licensed Premises in the Leadenhall Street and Mitre Street Area

No |Name Address Type

1 |Pause 80 - 84 Leadenhall Street EC3A 3DH Bar & Restaurant
2 |Saffron Red 78 - 79 Leadenhall Street EC3A 3DH Bar & Restaurant
3 [The Trident 29 - 31 Mitre Street EC3A 5BU Bar & Restaurant
4 |Jamie's Wine Bar & Restaurant [18 - 22 Creechurch Lane EC3A 5AY Bar & Restaurant
5 [Osteria Adriatico 12 Mitre Street EC3A 5HN Bar & Restaurant
6 |The Old Tea Warehouse 4-8 Creechurch Lane EC3A 5AY Pub

7 |Anokha Indian 2 Creechurch Lane EC3A 5AY Bar & Restaurant
8 [Dion 52 - 56 Leadenhall Street EC3A 2BJ Bar & Restaurant

6 obed



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Appendix 2 Results of Public Consultation

1 A letter and questionnaire were sent to 85 affected properties in the area
shown at the back of Appendix 2. The survey population consists of 43
residents, 39 businesses (excluding vacant premises at the time of the
survey), two places of worship and one educational establishment.

2 The questionnaire, requesting responses to five questions, are also enclosed
at the back of Appendix 2. The three-week consultation period occurred
between 26 March and 15 April 2012.

3 Thirty three (33) completed questionnaires were received providing a
response rate of about 39 percent. The results of this consultation are

discussed below.

Question 1
4 This question shows the composition of respondents being:
Type Numbers | Percentage
Residents 11 33.3%
Business 19 57.6%
Both 1 3.0%
Other* 2 6.1%
Total 33 100.0%

*Other includes places of worship and educational establishments.

5 It is noted that although there is a marginally larger resident population,
most respondents were businesses.

Page 11



Question 2
6 This question highlights the frequency of noise disturbances from the night-

time economy. About 50 percent of respondents suffered from noise at

varying frequencies, mostly on a weekly basis.

Extent Numbers | Percentages
At least once a week (often) 11 33.3%
A couple of times a month (sometimes) 3 9.1%
Less frequently 2 6.1%
Never 17 51.5%
Total 33 100.0%

7 Unsurprisingly, all residents reported suffering from noise often or
sometimes, as opposed to the majority of businesses who did not suffer from
noise disturbances. This may be because the majority of businesses in the
area are offices hence are less likely to be affected by the night-time

economy.
Type / Less
Frequency Often Sometimes | Frequently Never
Resident 9 2
Business 1 1 17
Both 1
Other 2
Total 11 3 1 18

8 The results show that residents and businesses have conflicting views on
this issue.

Page 12



Question 3

9

10

This question seeks to establish whether removal of out-of-hours parking at
Mitre Street will help address the noise issue. The majority of respondents
do not believe removal of out-of-hours parking will improve the situation.
However, one reason cited for this was the lack of enforcement late at
night* to support any such changes for it to be meaningful.

Support Numbers | Percentage
Yes 11 33.3%
No 17 51.5%
Don't Know / Not Sure 5 15.2%
Total 33 100.0%

*Parking enforcement is available until 6 pm Sunday, 10 pm Monday to
Thursday and 24-hours Friday and Saturday.

Again, unsurprisingly, most residents think that increased parking
restrictions will help address the noise issue but this view is not shared by
most businesses.

Type / Don't Know

Support Yes No / Not Sure Total
Residents 7 4 11
Business 3 11 5 19
Both 1 1
Other 1 1 2
Total 11 17 5 33

Page 13



Question 4

11 This question determines support for the proposal to remove out-of-hours
parking at Mitre Street by converting the single yellow line to double yellow
lines. Again, it can be seen that support for (42.4 percent) and against (45.5

ercent) this proposal is fairly evenly split.

Support Numbers | Percentage
Yes 14 42.4%
No 15 45.5%
Don't Know / Not Sure 4 12.1%
Total 33 100.0%

12 Echoing the previous questions, most residents are in favour of increased
parking restrictions but most businesses are not. Some businesses are
concerned about losing the ability to load / unload. However, this proposal

would not have an impact on loading restrictions.

Type / Don't Know

Support Yes No / Not Sure Total
Residents 9 1 1 11
Business 4 12 3 19
Both 1 1
Other 1 1 2
Total 14 15 4 33

Page 14



Question 5

13

14

This question gives the respondent the opportunity to make any other
comments on the proposal and to highlight any other parking & loading
issues in the immediate area.

One of the recurring comments made was the need to extend any parking
restrictions to adjacent streets, particularly Creechurch Lane and Bury
Street, as part of an area wide approach. Treating Mitre Street in isolation
can result in the problem being migrated elsewhere. Consequently, the
decision was taken to consider and incorporate the City-wide waiting &
loading review with that for Mitre Street.

Summary

15

16

The public consultation clearly demonstrates an inherent conflict between
residents and businesses in the area with regards to noise issues from the
night-time economy. This can be explained by (a) the fact that the majority
of businesses in the area are offices whose operation does not co-exist with
the night-time economy and (b) certain businesses are part of the night-time
economy and may be perpetrating the noise.

All residents reported suffering from noise often or sometimes, as opposed
to the majority of businesses who did not suffer from noise disturbances.
Consequently, residents are more likely to think that increased parking
restrictions will help address the situation, and are therefore more in favour
of the proposal.

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



¢10T/S0/€T

9S[B J=0POOUL 299N | =ULIO]29() p=UOISId A JUSI[ )P MIIATIIAQ =AU NIIIAIDG o&m&ﬁwm amﬁcmo 118" anbﬁﬁu&ﬂm?ak EE

SI9$3

8002 £+2£20004 uopuoT jo Ay sBuipessoid ;a1 1o uonosesoid o} pee| Aew pue JybLAdoD
umo.n seburyur uoiponpoidal pasiioyineun) "paalasal siybil iy "800Z yblAdon umoid @ eo10 Areuone;s s Ajsefeyy Je jof

A 3IAY

NOLLYLTNSNOD s

Aemjong
Wami] 1D pREy
dey eseg
uopEouwy

Aiepunog L3110
puagfan

aarra [
L]
]
(=
=
Ll
]
Ll
]
B
&=l
=
|

.,_maE_Eou aly} jo .emcmq uo k @c:m. [aueUPIO ko :oa&:t@a ay} £§ Jeusjew Aeang eaueuplQ woy psonposdsl si dew siy |
; i 35& mwumwoo? ybuddoo ﬁp_oo couco.___o b_u

mm.:q uone}nsuos z xipuaddy

1Jo | @8]

mdino depy



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 18



Department of the Bullt Environment
Philip Evereti, BSc, CEng, MICE
Direclor of the Built Environmeni

CITY
LONDON

Telephone 020 7332 1151
Email iain.simmons
@cilyoflondon.gov.uk

Date 23 March 2012

Dear Sir / Madam,

Parking in Mitre Street

The City of London is currently reviewing parking in Mitre Street. The review is in response to
noise complaints received from local resident(s) on the night-time economy (such as late-night

pubs, bars and restaurants),

It is proposed to convert the single yellow line at Mitre Street to double yellow lines to help
address this issue. This means:

¢ Night-time economy visitors must park elsewhere.
e Equally, residents and their visitors will not be able to park here at any time,
* However, loading / unloading is still permitted at any time.

We would appreciate if you can let us know of your thoughts by completing the questionnaire
overleaf and returning it in the attached pre-paid envelope by 15 April 2012,

If there is sufficient support for the proposal, it will be implemented later this year.

Thank you for your time.

Yours faithfully

(. Qe e,

Iain Simmons
Assistant Director (City Transportation)
Department of the Built Environment

City of London PO Box 270, Guildhall, London EC2P 2EJ
Switchboard 020 7606 3030

www.cilyoflondon.gov.uk P age 19



Please tick the appropriate answer

1. Are you a resident / business?

O Resident

O Business

O Both

2. Have you been affected by noise from the night-time economy?

O At least once a week (often)

O A couple of times a month (sometimes)

O Less frequently
O Never

3. Will removing parking at Mitre Street by converting the single yellow line to double yellow
lines help address this issue?

O Yes
O No

4. Do you support the proposal to remove parking at Mitre Street by converting the single yellow
line to double yellow lines?

O Yes
O No

5. Do you have any other comments on the proposal or any other parking & loading issues in the
immediate area you wish to highlight?

Please return this questionnaire in the pre-paid envelope by 15 April 2012.

The City of London complies with the Data Protection Act 1998 in managing personal information. All contact defails and responses to the
consultation will be used for the purposes of this consultation and will feed into the processes required to undertake any changes in your
area. Your personal information will nol be passed to any third party for marketing purposes. Comments provided in response to the
consultation may, however, be published or disclosed, for example in public Commitlee Reports presented to elected Members when
considering the proposals or in response to requests for information from the public. However comments will normally not be attributed to
individuals and personal contact details will be kept confidential. Your responses may be retained for up to four years in accordance with
relevant retention requirements and policies. If you have any queries about how your personal information is managed by us, please wrile
fo Data Prolection Officer, Department of the Built Environment, City of London, PO Box 270, Guildhall, London EC2P 2EJ,

Page 20



Appendix 3 Results of Night-Time Parking Survey

1

A night-time parking survey was conducted over two Friday and Saturday
nights by the City’s Parking Enforcement Team. These were undertaken

over the weekends of 5-6 May and 11-12 May 2012. The detailed
observations from these surveys are available at the end of Appendix 3.

Overall, the results indicate parking on single yellow lines is well used
outside of the hours of control, particularly in Creechurch Lane and Bury
Street. It is encouraging to note no vehicles parked against double yellow
lines on either weekend.

The total number of vehicles parked in Mitre Street and the surrounding
streets of Creechurch Lane, Bury Street and Heaneage Lane are shown in
the table below.

Time Number of Parked Vehicles

Regular Weekend | Long Weekend

Friday night / Saturday morning About 12 midnight 16 44

About 3 am 6 44

Saturday night / Sunday morning | About 12 midnight 19 24

About 3 am 11 16

On the regular weekend of 11-12 May 2012, a reasonable number of
vehicles can be observed parked throughout the night in the area. Mitre
Street is largely vacant of vehicles over this period except for a peak of 5
vehicles at 11.12 pm Saturday night, all of whom left by 2.42 am.

However over a long weekend (with Monday 7 May 2012 being a Bank
Holiday), it is interesting to note a significant increase in the number of
vehicles who remained parked at about 3 am Sunday 6 May in Creechurch
Lane (15 vehicles), Bury Street (17 vehicles), Heneage Lane (1 vehicle) and
Mitre Street (11 vehicles).

Summary
6 The night-time parking survey show there are significant fluctuations in the

number of parked vehicles in Mitre Street and the surrounding streets of
Creechurch Lane, Bury Street and Heneage Lane between a regular
weekend and a long (Bank holiday) weekend.

This is particularly prominent during Friday night / Saturday morning where
there were more than six times as many vehicles parked over a long
weekend. This appears to support the notion of an active night-time
economy in the area, particularly on “special occasions”, which contributes
to the sporadic nature of noise issues at Mitre Street.

Page 21



Night Time Parking Survey on 5-6 May 2012

Saturday morning 5 May 2012
00:06—Bury Street

16 vehicles on SYL

6 vehicles on P&D Bays

0on DYL

00:12—Creechurch Lane
11 vehicles on SYL

7 vehicles on P&D Bays
0 on DYL

00:21—Mitre Street

2 vehicles on P&D Bays
0 on SYL

0 on DYL

00:28—Heneage Lane
2 vehicles on SYL

0 on P&D bays

0 on DYL

02:58—Bury Street

13 vehicles on SYL

4 vehicles on P&D bays
0 on DYL

03:03—Creechurch Lane
10 vehicles on SYL

5 vehicles on P&D Bays
0 on DYL

03:11—Heneage Lane
1 vehicle on SYL only

03:13—Mitre Street

9 vehicles on SYL

2 vehicles on P&D bays
0 on DYL

Page 22



Sunday morning 6 May 2012
00:24—Bury Street
4 vehicles on P&D Bays only

00:27—Creechurch Lane
8 vehicles on SYL

7 vehicles on P&D Bays
0 on DYL

00:31—Mitre Street

4 vehicles on SYL

1 vehicle on P&D bay
0 on DYL

00:33—Heneage Lane
0 vehicles in street

02:54—Bury Street
3 vehicles parked on P&D Bays only

02:57—Creechurch Lane

6 vehicles parked on SYL

4 vehicles parked on P&D Bays
0 on DYL

03:00—Mitre Street

1 vehicle on SYL

2 vehicles on P&D bays
0 on DYL

03:02—Heneage Lane
0 vehicles in street

Page 23



Night Time Parking Survey on 11-12 May 2012

Friday Night 11 May 2012
23:58—Bury Street

4 vehicles on SYL

3 vehicles on P&D Bays

0 on DYL

23:51—Creechurch Lane
4 vehicles on SYL

5 vehicles on P&D Bays
0 on DYL

23:56—Mitre Street
All clear

23:54—Heneage Lane
0 vehicles in street

Saturday Morning 12 May 2012
03:27—Bury Street

2 vehicles on SYL

1 vehicle on P&D bays

0 on DYL

03:20—Creechurch Lane
1 vehicle on SYL

2 vehicles on P&D Bays
0 on DYL

03:25—Heneage Lane
All clear

03:29—Mitre Street
All clear

Saturday Night 11 May 2012
23:08—Bury Street

4 vehicles on SYL

3 vehicles on P&D Bays

0 on DYL

Page 24



Saturday Night 11 May 2012
23:02—Creechurch Lane

2 vehicles on SYL

5 vehicles on P&D Bays

0 on DYL

23:12—Mitre Street

1 vehicle on P&D Bays
4 onSYL

0 on DYL

23:06—Heneage Lane
0 vehicles in street

Sunday Morning 13 May 2012
02:44—Bury Street

2 vehicles on SYL

3 vehicles on P&D bays

0on DYL

02:38—Creechurch Lane
4 vehicles on SYL

2 vehicles on P&D Bays
0 on DYL

02:41—Heneage Lane
All clear

02:42—Mitre Street
All clear

Page 25



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 26



Appendix 4 An Analysis of Reported Noise Incidents

1

Reported noise incidents were obtained from both the City of London Police
and the City’s Environmental Health Team. These are presented at the end
of Appendix 4.

City of London Police Report

2

This report is not extensive as records are only readily available from when
a new reporting system was introduced less than 12 months ago. However,
the detail pertaining to each incident is comprehensive and descriptive.

There have been four reported noise incidents in Mitre Street since August
2011. Anecdotal evidence indicates that such noise disturbances occur more
regularly than reported as evidenced by the following statements:

“This is the first time it has been reported, but has happened for the last two
weekends.” 6 August 2011

“... he often hears people at the weekends on the streets in the early hours,
but apparently on this occasion it was particularly loud and for a long
duration and kept him awake.” 7 May 2012 (Bank Holiday)

It is worth noting that the statement made on 7 May 2012 above corresponds
with a high number of parked cars in the Mitre Street area as captured in the
parking night-time survey discussed in Appendix 3.

On almost all occasions, the perpetrators were congregating around parked
vehicles, playing loud music, shouting and drinking. In the most recent
incident, the informant also mentioned the tendency of wvisitors to
congregate around benches in the Mitre Square area.

The City’s Environmental Health Team

8

This report shows there has been a total of 32 noise complaints in the last
three years. Overall, the number of reported noise complaints has
significantly reduced in the last 12 months i.e. only six complaints were
recorded in the most recent 12 months.

The closure of a night club called Paradigm (78-79 Leadenhall Street) at the

end of 2010 may have contributed significantly to this reduction in
complaints.

Page 27



10 There is also a possibility that residents have realised there is little the City’s
Environmental Health Team can do as it can be difficult to establish whether
the noise threshold has been breached such that enforcement action can be
taken. In addition, the nature of the noise (loud talking / laughing) is not
enforceable under current noise legislations.

11 The only other recourse is therefore for the incidents to be reported to the
City of London Police as anti-social behaviour. However, the City of
London Police may not have the resources to attend site immediately due to
other priorities (sometimes only able to follow-up with informant later in the

day.)

12 The majority of noise complaints (75 percent) are attributed to a commercial
or an entertainment nature.

Summary
13 While noise complaints have been reducing over the years, noise

disturbance remains a concern for residents in Mitre Street. Seventy five
percent of noise complaints are attributed to a commercial or an
entertainment nature. The current system of dealing with noise disturbances
is not capable of providing a comprehensive long-term solution to the issue.

Page 28



Mitre Street - Noise Complaints Page ]l of 5

From: “
01 May 2012 15:24 ' '

Sent;

To: GG

Subject: RE: Mitre Street - Noise Complaints (NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED)

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

Here are the basic details for those complaints:

MITRE STREET

06/08/11 - CAD 11750 ;

Informant is complaining of clubbers parking in his street and drinking before going to the club., They put the
happens at about 23:30 hours - midnight. The clubbers

music on in their cars and disturb everyone. This
then return fo the cars in the early hours of the morning.
This is the first time it has been reported, but has happened for the last two weekends.

Licencing informed.

08/01/12 - CAD 1662

Informant disturbed by a car parked close to where he lives, playing excessively loud muys;

shouting. This had been gaing on since about 03:00hrs, Informant has had a pr}éble_m in th': gggtmgams

f{atrﬁgs ?12: aclub ct:_austed] frouble, ?ut ;he club has since closed down, Advised to contact Environmental
ealtn at Corporalion to log complainis with them also and told to call police if it :

move the people on. p happens again and we wil

08/01/12 - 1721 '

Report of a vehicle parked with music on very loudly and occupants shouting. All qui ice arri
minutes after call. Informant has been called, answers the byl amvahL10
phone is put down without any word the other end. Tried ca

There Is no record of police being called by informant before.

- ===-Original Message-—- = . _ :
me_' i
Sent: 01 May 2012 08:37 '

R .

To

Subject: Mitre Street - Noise Complaints

Hi RN

My cglleaguﬁﬁéam Manager, Pollution Team) suggested | contact you. | called this
morning but understand you were away from your desk for haif an hour. 1 will try again shortly,

I am doing a parking review of the Mitre Street area in response to noise concer|
resident(s) from visitors arriving / leaving the area. T Kpesned by

Can you advise if your team has been in receipt of any noise complaints in the Mitre
Creechurch Lane / Creechurch Place area in the last three yealrs‘?p e Slomsts

I look forward to hearing from you soonest. Thank you in advance.

With kind regérds.

11/10/2012

Page 29



rage 1 or g

e e e bl S S D R oy :.v.i.z.l..lu\..l.ruj ¥

Frbm: 7
Sent: 09 May 2012 11:49

To: (GG

Subject: Noise complaint - Mitre Square (NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED)

NOT PROTECTIVELY MARKED

I've spbken to the resident and he is more than happy for me to share his details with you. His name i‘

’hd his number |

He says that he often hears people at the weekends on the streets in the early hours, but apparently on this
occaslon it was particularly loud and for a long duration and kept him awake. It went on from about midnight, and
he called us at 02:43hrs on 7th May (Sunday nightMonday morning). He did mention that there are benches in
Mitre Square which Jate night revellers are prone to hang about on or around, ' ' '

get their details to me and Il pass them on to you,

He thinks a couple of neighbours also complained, he will
although you may not get those in time for your report,

This message is for the named person’s use only. It may contain confidential,
proprietary or legally privileged information. No confidentiality or privilege

Is waived or lost by any mistransmission. If you receive this message in etror,
please immediately delete it and all copies of it from your system, destroy any

hard copies of it and notify the sender. You must not, directly or indirectly,

use, disclose, distribute, print, or copy any part of this message if you are not

the intended recipient. City of London Police and any of its subsidiaries each reserve
the right to monitor all e-mall communications through its networks.

Any views expressed in this message are those of the individual sender, except where
the message states otherwise and the sender is authorised to state them fo be the

views of any such entity.
All incoming and outgoing emails are virus checked, however we cannot guarantee that this

message or any attachment is virus free or has not been intercapted and amended, City of London
Police accepts no liabllity in respect of any loss, cost, damage or expense as suffered as a

result of recelving this message or any altachments

" City of London Police
Website: http:/fwww.cityoflondon.police.uk/ .

..................

.......................................................................................................................................................

This e-mail message has been scanned for Viruses and Content and cleared
by MailMarshal .

Page 30

11/10/2012



Agenda Iltem 4b

Committee(s): Date(s):
Street and Walkways Sub Committee 11/Dec/2012
Projects Sub Committee 13/Dec/2012
Subject: Public
Options Appraisal and Authority to Start Work (Gateway

3/4/5) —

Heron Plaza S.278 (highway works)

Report of: For Decision
Director of the Department of the Built Environment

Summary
Dashboard
o Project Status: Green
o The project is approximately 30% of the way through it six year programme
e Total Estimated Cost: Up to £810,103
e Spend to Date: £19,800
e Overall Project Risk: Green

Context

On 11 January 2011 the Planning and Transportation Committee approved conditional
planning permission to redevelop a site bounded by Houndsditch, Bishopsgate,
Devonshire Row and Cavendish Court now referred to as Heron Plaza (previously Stone
House and Staple Hall). The permitted development is a 43 storey hotel and residential
tower. See Appendix 1 for the local area plan. At this meeting, Members instructed
officers to complete any necessary agreements under Section 278 of the Highway Act
1980 (S278).

On 27 May 2011, the developer and the City signed an agreement under Section 106 of
the Town and Country Planning Act 1990 (S.106) stating that changes to the public
highway around the site are required to be incorporated into a S278 agreement. This
S.278 agreement is required to be signed before construction of Heron Plaza is permitted
to start.

This report is an Options Appraisal and Authority to Start Work report (Gateways 3/4/5). A
project of this nature (i.e. S278 agreement which is fully funded by the developer) would
normally proceed to Authority to Start Work (Gateway 5) stage, but the developer has
requested non standard materials. Therefore, options have been included in this report.

The required changes to the public highway include the enhancement of Houndsditch
between Outwich Street and Bishopsgate. These changes would have been delivered as
part the Heron Tower S.278(2) agreement for the adjacent development had it not been
for Heron Plaza receiving planning permission. Heron Tower is immediately opposite the
proposed Heron Plaza on Houndsditch (see appendix 2 for a flow chart detailing the
relationship between the agreements for Heron Tower and Heron Plaza).

The developer, through the S.278 agreement, is required to pay the full cost of the project
even if it is more than the estimated value of £810,103 (Option 3 estimated cost).

In addition, the S.278 agreement has provision for a deferred improvement works
payment of £80,000 per year for the delaying of improvement works in Houndsditch. The
developer was supposed to have implemented an improved Houndsditch in 2011, as
required in the Heron Tower S.278(2), but the approval of the Heron Plaza development
is delaying this. Approval from Members for the use of these funds will be progressed
separately at a later date.

Page 31



Brief description of project

The project is to plan, design and implement a highways layout that accommodates the
new building whilst conforming to the City’s design standards. This will be funded via a
S.278 agreement.

The key desired outcomes of the project are to:

e Ensure there is a sufficient space for vehicles to pass those dropping off and
picking up passengers within close proximity to the entrance to the Heron
Plaza hotel;

e Ensure pedestrian movement in the area is safe and convenient;

e Deliver the physical changes in time for the occupation of the development;
and

o Deliver an improved Houndsditch by introducing trees, seats, lights and
improved materials. The design is largely based on that proposed under the
Heron Tower S.278(2) agreement and subsequently the Heron Tower 278(2)
variation agreement. These designs mitigated the impact of the Heron Tower
development. Appendix 3 shows the original (S.278(2)) and interim designs
(S.278(2) variation) that were agreed.

Options

The options estimated below are in regards to the choice of material for the carriageway
of Houndsditch.

Table 1
Option 1 - Option 2 - Option 3 -
Description Asphalt Asphalt / Granite
only (£) Granite (£) only (£)
Total Funding Requirement 660,718 720,327 810,103
Funding Strategy
Developer (S.278) 660,718 720,327 810,103

Further financial details are provided in table 2 (paragraphs 8: resources expended to
date), table 3 (paragraph 20: funding strategy) and Appendix 4 (full breakdown of the
estimated costs).

The three options presented include the developers preferred option (option 3) which is to
use granite as material on the carriageway of Houndsditch.

The developer has agreed to fund the full cost of the scheme including the maintenance
costs.

Maintenance costs for the trees have been estimated for a period of 20 years (£20,402).

Maintenance costs for granite used on the pedestrian cross-over of the vehicle access (in
both option 2 and option 3) and the carriageway (option 3 only) have been calculated as
being equivalent in value to it being replaced once during the life of the development
(£24,000 for option 2, £67,500 for option 3).

Page 32




Recommendations

Option recommended:

Option 3 for the choice of materials is recommended. This option requires the:
e Houndsditch carriageway to be surfaced in granite for aesthetics; and.

e The area entering the new vehicle service entrance to also be surfaced in
granite setts to provide a contrasting colour and texture to improve safety.

Option 3 provides the most benefits when assessed against economic, social/cultural
and environmental sustainability subject to the inclusion of the maintenance costs
being funded by the developer (providing greater economic sustainability for the City)
and the granite being locally sourced (providing a better environmental sustainability
outcome). The granite carriageway in option 3 provides a higher aesthetic appeal
(social/cultural sustainability) and therefore sets this option as the preferred option
under this assessment method (the same method as was used in the Review of
Materials in December 2010).

This option:
o s strongly preferred by the developer;

o reflects a previously agreed decision by Members (albeit prior to the Review of
Materials in December 2010);

o will best reflect the high quality nature of the development; and

¢ will have negligible impact on traffic during construction and maintenance (see
street works implications in paragraph 10).

In addition, it is recommended that the surface of the Houndsditch carriageway,
between Outwich Street and Bishopsgate, be constructed at the same level as the
footways (Option A in paragraph 10). This will create an environment that allows easy
movement for the high number of people that will cross Houndsditch informally.

Appendix 5 shows the general arrangement drawing of the proposed changes
including the options.

Next Steps

Should Members approve this scheme:

1. A Section 8 agreement (S.8) will be signed with Transport for London (TfL)
permitting the City to implement the works on Bishopsgate, part of the Transport
for London Road Network.

2. Prior to signing the S.278 agreement the following funds will be required from the
developer:

e The remainder of the evaluation and design payment (£44,704)

e The deferred improvement works payments (£80,000 per year since
summer 2011)

3. The S.278 agreement will be finalised (based on the approved option) and signed.
Signing the agreement will remove one of the conditions necessary for the
developer to commence construction. The S.278 agreement will include a
statement that the City and TfL have a S.8 agreement in place.

4. Proposed changes to traffic orders (Houndsditch) will be advertised for public
consultation. If objections are received, this will be reported to Members for

Page 33




decision through an issues report.

5. The approved option for materials and carriageway surface level will be
progressed into detailed design drawings and a new cost estimate will be
undertaken prior to the requesting of the implementation funds from the developer.

Plans for consultation

There is a statutory requirement to consult in connection with the proposed change to
traffic regulation orders on Houndsditch, and to consider consultation responses and
other relevant considerations prior to making any orders.

Procurement strategy

The implementation works will be delivered by the City’s highways term contractor.

Tolerances

A 20% cost tolerance has been included. All costs are to be funded by the developer
including any in excess of the estimate should they be necessary. Therefore, it is
recommended that the scheme should proceed with approval for budget variations above
the 20% tolerance (and allowing for inflation) being delegated to the Chief Officer in
consultation with the Chamberlain and Town Clerk. This will provide the City the best
opportunity to deliver the project efficiently and meet the most important need of the
developer, to ensure it is ready in time for occupation of the building.

The timing of the programme is the critical element of the project. The delivery of the
scheme should not delay the opening and occupation of the building. The programme is
very much aligned to the construction of the building and will need to fit with that
programme. It is expected that should the timings of the highways work fall outside the
acceptable programme for the occupation of the building then more resources (which add
to the cost) will be made available to overcome this issue. Therefore it is proposed that,
as long as the impacts of timeframes can be accommodated by the developer agreeing to
necessary extra funds, the scheme will not be referred back to Members because of
timeframe issues.

The quality and scope of the scheme is the component of the project that may need to be
referred back to Members for a decision. This will occur if there are necessary material
changes to the design of the scheme such that the scheme no longer provides the
benefits to the public that are expected for this area.

Progress Reporting

Progress reporting on the project will reflect the streamlined route that this project is
following by reporting to the Chief Officer. This will occur every 12 months prior to
construction and then every 6 months.

Page 34




Overview

Evidence of Need

The proposed development of Heron Plaza requires changes to the
public highway to accommodate the development.

. Success Criteria

This project will:

1. Deliver the highway works in time for the occupation of the
buildings.

2. Deliver a highway that is designed and implemented to a
standard that the City is happy to adopt and maintain.

3. Deliver the above without financial impact on the City.

Project Scope and
Exclusions

The works will be entirely on the public highway. This project does not
include any works on the private land.

The scope of the works is also constrained by the fact that there was
previous approval for a scheme on Houndsditch for the Heron Tower
development. There is an expectation that the outputs for this project
should be broadly consistent with that agreed for the Heron Tower
scheme in order to fit in with the improvements on the south side of
Houndsditch.

The project is considered separate from the Heron Plaza Security
scheme which is still to be designed and if combined at this stage
would delay the construction of the development. The outcomes of the
Heron Plaza Security scheme are not clear yet, but will ideally be
implemented at the same time as this scheme.

Link to Strategic
Aims

It will help provide modern, efficient, and high quality local services
and policing within the Square Mile for workers, residents and visitors
with a view to delivering sustainable outcomes. This will be achieved
by enhancing the area around the new development in such a way as
to ensure the development can function as it needs to.

This project will help to support the City as the world leader in
international finance and business services by facilitating the
construction of the new hotel and residences that many businesses
will be able to benefit from.

. Within which

category does the

4. Fully reimbursable

project fit
. What is the A. Essential
priority of the
project?
Governance Experience from other projects of this nature is that a senior
arrangements responsible officer, rather than a project board, is considered the most

appropriate form of governance for this project.

Page 35




8. Resources The projected spend by the Committee meeting date is expected to be
Expended To Date | approximately:

Table 2
Budget Spend | Remaining
(£) (£) (£)
Transportation & Public Realm 24,100 18,200 5,900
Staff costs
(For project management and
design)
Highways Staff costs 2,000 500 1,500

(Cost estimates and design)

Open Spaces Staff costs 400 100 300

(Trees costs and design)

TfL 2,000 1,000 1,000
(for S8 agreement)

Total 28,500 | 19,800 8,700

The City has received an initial payment for £28,500 as part of
evaluation and design payment. It is estimated that the total evaluation
and design costs will be £73,204. The remainder of the evaluation and
design payment (£44,704) is required to be provided prior to signing
the S.278 agreement.

If any funds remain from the evaluation and design payment, they will
be applied towards the costs required to progress the scheme.

9. Results of The access team have provided initial feedback stating that the ability
stakeholder for taxis to set down and pick up where there is a kerb makes it easier
consultation to for wheelchair users to exit the vehicle. Therefore, to achieve this it
date would require a kerb either immediately outside the hotel entrance

and/or the length of Houndsditch where such infrequent occurrences
could still occur in close proximity to the Hotel entrance.

The developer has expressed a clear preference to have the
carriageway paved with granite (options 3).

The developer has expressed a slight preference for a kerbed
carriageway on Houndsditch.

TfL have given in-principle approval for the relocation of the pedestrian
crossing on Outwich Street.

10. Commentary on The main design options are:
the options

considered e Carriageway materials; and

o Carriageway level.

With regards to the carriageway materials, the three options are:

Page 36




Option 1: Entirely asphalt.

Reasons: Asphalt is quicker to lay and maintain than granite.

Option 2: Asphalt for the Houndsditch carriageway. Granite for the
entry to the vehicle servicing area.

Reasons: improved pedestrian safety at the entry to the vehicle
servicing area due to colour and texture contrast.

Option 3: Entirely granite.

Reasons: requested by the developer to reflect high quality nature of
the building and the clientele they are likely to attract, such as
domestic and foreign dignitaries.

Granite was approved as part of the previously approved Heron Tower
scheme, albeit prior to the Review of Materials in December 2010.

Appendix 6 assesses options 1-3 for economic, environmental and
social/cultural sustainability which were the basis for the Review of
Materials.

With regards to the carriageway level on Houndsditch, the two options
are:

Option A:

Houndsditch carriageway and footways at the same level (i.e. level
surface) between Outwich Street and Bishopsgate. There will be a
kerb level difference immediately outside the hotel entrance to
allow easy deployment and use of a wheelchair ramp from black
cabs.

Reason: it will create an environment that allows easy movement
across Houndsditch where many people will cross informally.

Option B:

The footway immediately outside the hotel to be level with the
carriageway, with the rest of the carriageway and footway having a
kerb level difference (i.e. kerbed).

Reason: it will allow the footway immediately outside the hotel to
be level with the carriageway, thus being more convenient for hotel
patrons.

The necessity to relocate the pedestrian crossing on Outwich Street
means that many more people will cross Houndsditch informally when
travelling between the pedestrian crossing and Liverpool Street
Station. The low number of vehicles that will use Houndsditch will
mean that the environment is conducive to pedestrians crossing
informally.

It is recommended that the carriageway be level with the footway
(Option A). This will benefit significantly more people, who will cross
Houndsditch, compared to the small number of people that will access
the hotel by motor vehicle. This recommended option is not the
preference of the developer, who quite understandably would prefer
an arrangement that prioritises the hotel patrons (Option B).

Page 37




The decision on this element of the design is considered very straight
forward and therefore no further analysis of these are necessary.

All options include the following:
1. Vehicle access into the service entrance.

2. A wider section of carriageway outside the hotel entrance that
will allow vehicles to move past any that are dropping off and
picking up. CCTV will be in place to ensure that vehicles are
not parking in this area.

3. Relocate the pedestrian crossing on Outwich Street.

Change the traffic order on Houndsditch to be one way with
contraflow cycling permitted. Members had previously
approved it to be a no motor vehicle zone (7am-7pm) with
contraflow cycling permitted. The change will allow motor
vehicles to use Houndsditch anytime, which is needed when
dropping off and picking up passengers from the hotel.

Seven additional trees on Houndsditch.
6. Additional on-street cycle parking.

York stone footways. This project is within the Bishopsgate
conservation area.

Appendix 5 shows the general arrangement drawing with the proposed
changes, including the options.

Street works implications:

In order to implement the works Houndsditch will need to be closed.
This will impact only a very small number of vehicles because the one
way network of streets means that only vehicles accessing Heron
Tower and Heron Plaza have any reason to use the affected section of
Houndsditch.

The existence of a pipe subway containing all the utilities equipment
under Houndsditch will significantly reduce any potential of utilities
companies needing to work on the highway.

11. Consequences if
project not
approved

The development cannot start to be constructed without a S.278
agreement in place. The City’s reputation will be damaged if we are
seen as holding up the development.

Information Common to All Options

12. Key benefits

The options will provide the necessary changes to the
highway to accommodate the Heron Plaza development and
ensure that pedestrian movement continues to be safe and
convenient. Improving Houndsditch to be a high quality area
will help mitigate the large scale and nature of the adjacent
developments.

13. Programme and key dates | The programme is dependent on the construction of the

Page 38




development and has broad milestones of:

. Construction of the development commences
2013/2014;

. Highway works commence in summer 2015;

. Highway works and development completed in late
2016; and

J Project closure in 2017/18 financial year.

14. Constraints and
assumptions

The programme is based on the developer’s intention to start
construction of the development in 2013/2014 and for it to
take two years to construct. There is a need to implement the
works in time for the completion and occupation of the
development, which is currently anticipated to be in late
2016.

Should the programme for construction and occupation of the
development change, the programme for the S.278 works will
be adjusted accordingly.

15. Risk implications

The options are rated as low risk.
Key risks:

1. There are also reputational risks if the implementation
of the public highway work delays the occupation of
the building. This has been mitigated by the inclusion
of some out of hours working costs in the estimate to
ensure that a quick delivery of the scheme can be
undertaken if necessary.

2. Costs risks to the City are considered low because
the developer is paying the full cost of the project.
There is also an “excess” clause in the S.278
agreement.

3. There are reputational risks if the project increases in
costs. These are being mitigated through good
communication with the developer about costs
including the assumptions used to get to the
estimated costs and what they are made up of. For
example, it is already stated in the drafted S.278
agreement that the inflation between now and the
delivery of the project (at least two years) has not
been included in the cost estimates and that the
“excess” clause may be needed for this.

4. There is always a low risk that the developer will
change the development in such a way that it requires
changes to the agreed design for the public highway.
This has been noted and if this was to occur, then a
re-evaluation of the reduced benefit to the public
should take place, similar to that undertaken for the
Heron Tower S.278(2) variation agreement.

16. Stakeholders and
consultees

External stakeholders:

e The developer - Heron

Page 39




e General public (for traffic order changes)
Internal stakeholders:

e Highways in Dept of the Built Environment (DBE) —
design and implementation

¢ Environmental Enhancement (DBE) - design
e Open Spaces Department - trees
¢ Road Safety Team — road safety audits

e Access Team — design

17. Legal implications

Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980 empowers a highway
authority, if they are satisfied it will be of benefit to the public,
enter into an agreement with a third party for the execution
of works to the public highway at the third party’s cost
including maintenance.

The City has general powers to improve the highway under
Section 62 of the Highways Act 1980. In carrying out its
highway and traffic functions the City must have regard (inter
alia) to its duty to assert and protect the rights of the public to
use and enjoyment of the highway (S.130 Highways Act
1980); its duty to secure the expeditious, convenient and safe
movement of traffic (having regard to the effect on
amenities)(S.122 Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984); its duty
to secure the efficient use of the road network avoiding
congestion and disruption (S.16 Traffic Management Act
2004); and its duty in respect of the co-ordination of street
works (S.91 New Roads and Street Works Act 1991).

18. HR implications

none

19. Benchmarks or
comparative data

The works will be carried out by our term contractor (Riney)
at competitively tendered rates.

20. Funding strategy

The funds will be provided to the City in advance of them
being needed. Due to the works not needing to be
undertaken for a number of years, the payments will be in at
least two phases:

e Evaluation & Design — Due prior to signing the S.278

¢ Implementation & Maintenance — due within 21 days
from request.

The developer has already provided the City with £28,500
towards the evaluation and design of this scheme. Prior to
the S.278 agreement being signed the remainder of the
evaluation and design payment (£44,704) will be required to
be paid to the City to bring it to the £73,204 budget required.
These funds will allow the work on the detailed design to take
place.

The developer has agreed to fund the full cost of the scheme
including both the capital costs as well as the projected
maintenance costs for the trees and granite.

Page 40




Using July 2012 rates, these have been estimated as:

Table 3
Option 1 | Option 2 | Option 3
— asphalt | — asphalt | — granite
only (£) | /granite only (£)
(£)
Evaluation & 73,204 73,204 73,204
Design
Implementation 567,112 602,721 648,997
Sub Total 640,316 675,925 722,201
Maintenance 20,402 44 402 87,902
Grand Total 660,718 720,327 810,103

Maintenance costs for the trees have been estimated for a
period of 20 years (£20,402).

Maintenance costs for granite used on the pedestrian cross-
over of the vehicle access (in both option 2 and option 3) and
the carriageway (option 3 only) have been calculated as
being equivalent in value to it being replaced once during the
life of the development (£24,000 for option 2, £67,500 for

option 3).
Further details of the above figures can be seen in appendix
4,

21. Affordability The project will be fully funded by the developer.

22. Procurement approach The highways term contractor will be used to deliver the

works.

Options Appraisal Matrix

See separate document.

Appendices

Appendix 1 Local Area Plan

Appendix 2 Relationship with Heron Tower funds and design
Appendix 3 Original and Interim Houndsditch Designs
Appendix 4 Estimated Costs

Appendix 5 General Arrangement Plan Including Options
Appendix 6 Options assessment against sustainability criteria
Contact

Report Author Jereme McKaskill

Email Address

jereme.mckaskill@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Telephone Number

020 7332 3580

Page 41




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 42



¢ obed

Heron Plaza S278 Highway Works - Options Appraisal Matrix

Option 1 Option 2 Option 3
23. Brief description Entirely Asphalt Asphalt / Granite Entirely Granite
24. Scope and Exclusions (where | N/A
different to section 3)
25. Benefits and strategy for See Appendix 6 See Appendix 6 See Appendix 6

achievement (where different
to section 12)

Overall rating of 7

Overall rating of 8

Overall rating of 9

26. Programme (where different N/A
to section 13)
27. Constraints and assumptions | N/A

(where different to section 14)

28.

Risk implications (where
different to section 15)

Very low risk of disruption to
carriageway. Asphalt is quicker to
lay and repair.

Low risk of disruption to carriageway. The
one way network of streets mean that only
vehicles accessing the adjacent buildings
have any reason to use this street. The
existence of a pipe subway containing all
the utilities equipment under Houndsditch
will significantly reduce any potential of
utilities companies needing to work on the
highway.

Low risk of disruption to carriageway. The
one way network of streets mean that only
vehicles accessing the adjacent buildings
have any reason to use this street. The
existence of a pipe subway containing all
the utilities equipment under Houndsditch
will significantly reduce any potential of
utilities companies needing to work on the
highway.

29. Stakeholders and consultees | N/A
(where different to section 16)

30. Legal implications (where N/A
different to section 17)

31. HR implications (where N/A
different to section 18)

32. Benchmarks or comparative N/A

data (where different to
section 19)




17 obed

Financial Implications

Option 1 - asphalt

Option 2 — asphalt / granite

Option 3 - granite

33. Total Estimated Cost
(£)

£660,718

£720,327

£810,103

34. Anticipated source(s)
of project funding
(where different to
section 20)

N/A

35. Anticipated phasing of
capital expenditure

2012/13 — £73,204
2013/14 - £8,775
2014/15- £8,775
2015/16 — £207,312
2016/17 — £332,415
2017/18 — £9,835

201213 - £73,204
201314 - £9,171
2014/15-  £9,171
2015/16 — £220,896
2016/17 — £353,253
2017/18 — £10,230

2012/13 - £73,204
2013/14 - £9,685
2014/15-  £9,685
2015/16 — £238,549
2016/17 — £380,333
2017/18 — £10,745

Total - £640,316 Total -  £675,925 Total -  £722,201
36. Estimated capital N/A
value/return (£)
37. Fund/budget to be N/A
credited with capital
return
38. Estimated ongoing Tree maintenance — £20,402 Tree maintenance —  £20,402 Tree maintenance — £20,402

revenue implications

(£)

Granite maintenance — £24,000
Total - £44,402

Granite maintenance — £67,500
Total - £87,902

39. Source of ongoing
revenue funding

The developer

The developer

The developer

40. Fund/budget to be n/a
credited with
income/savings
41. Anticipated life 20+ years 20+ years 20+ years




G obed

42. Investment Appraisal N/A
43. Affordability (where N/A
different to section 21)
44. Proposed N/A
procurement approach
(where different to
section 22)
45. Recommendation Not recommended Not recommended Recommended
46. Reasons This option will not be as aesthetically This option will not be as aesthetically This option is the best overall when

pleasing as option 3.

pleasing as option 3.

assessed against the social/cultural,
environmental and financial sustainability
criteria. This provides the design that best
enhances the City’s cultural/social aspect
by utilising the aesthetically pleasing
granite on the carriageway. The potential
environmental impacts are negated by
locally sourcing the granite. This option is
also preferred by the developer and is as
per the previously agreed design for Heron
Tower.




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 46



Appendix 1:

Heron Plaza Local Area

LI £
1

1)
i

NS

A

AN Y/

e
—
~E N T e

=
<
\
I~
El

| .._1_1;.2_7:5.:.' = i . _1 guelly ] - |'II
= ﬁ?‘“‘-‘ﬂl'% ey, 4 |

ﬁ l‘s\gé"%! \a. L=
— iilalgha%;%‘ﬁ}ﬂﬁ&& L

- i " r} Vil _1: -
= INCE- e
= i) -

L A\F

X
e
= . \ .
=N

Liverpool
Street
Station

Development Site

I:I Conservation area

Options Appraisal and Authority to Start Work (Gateway 3/4/5) - Heron Plaza S278 Highway Works

Page 47



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 48



Appendix 2 — Heron Tower / Heron Plaza relationship

Heron Tower:

Planning Permission Granted

(proposes to pedestrianise Houndsditch to
mitigate the impact of the large development)

5.278 (1)

Allows Houndsditch to be
pedestrianised by diverting the
vehicles away from Houndsditch

S.106

o

£1.85M

Erovements Wark All other S.106 funds

One part will pay for Houndsditch to be
pedestrianised.

| |
) N
S.278(2) Other funds:
Design of pedestrianised Houndsditch and _ £350,000 initial
other environmental improvements improvement works
around Heron Tower payment

I—l

Heron Plaza:
Planning permission granted

(requires removal of pedestrianisation of Houndsditch
to allow drop off/pick up for hotel)

I
C )

Heron Tower S.278(2)
Heron Plaza S.278 variation

Deferred improvement

Highway Works works (£80,000 per year)

\ \

Options Appraisal and Authority to Start Work (Gateway 3/4/5): Heron Plaza S.278 Highway Works

Page 49




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 50



o,
N
S ﬂh@hﬂ#@ > <
0

J%ﬁ

w, h%:::::m#« 55
N [/ ST .&N\

Yty U0y,
b, ey

7
IS

Page 51

RevNo.| Date

Description 7 By

Revision

TITLE:

Heron Tower S278 (2)

Original Design

TITLE:

General Arrangement

CLIENT:

HIGHWAY DESIGN
AND CONSTRUCTION

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES
PO Box 270
GUILDHALL

LONDON

EC2P 2EJ

TEL: 020 7606 3030

LONDON

Sheet:

THIS MAP IS REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE
SURVEY MATERIAL WITH THE PERMISSION OF

ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE
CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY'S
STATIONERY OFFICE © CROWN COPYRIGHT

2006. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.
UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES
CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO

SHEET 1 of 1
Date:

August 2012
Designed by:

KM
Checked by:

BM

PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.

Scale & Drawing Size:

1:200

Revision:

CITY OF LONDON 100023243 2008.
Drawing No:

COL/000/1




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 52



OOl
ity
7
N\\“\\N\/.!\
e
Y

Page 53

7
A#NNN\
v

, £/
ity ol

Iy ww..nu.ll >
éu/w\\\\\\ 7

7

RevNo.| Date Description 7 By

Revision

TITLE:

Heron Tower S278 (2)
Variation Design

TITLE:

General Arrangement

CLIENT:

HIGHWAY DESIGN
AND CONSTRUCTION

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES
PO BoXx 270
GUILDHALL
LONDON
EC2P 2EJ

TEL: 020 7606 3030

Sheet:
THIS MAP IS REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE
SHEET 1of 1 SURVEY MATERIAL WITH THE PERMISSION OF
Date: ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE
CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY'S
>c@:w~ 2012 STATIONERY OFFICE © CROWN COPYRIGHT
Designed by: 2006. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.
KM UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES
CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO
Checked by: PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.
BM CITY OF LONDON 100023243 2008.
Scale & Drawing Size: Revision: | Drawing No:
1:200 - COL/000/1




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 54



Appendix 4: Estimated Costs (July 2012)

Table 4: Evaluation and Design Estimated Cost - All Options

Cost (£)

Transportation and Publice Realm Staff Costs 28 754
(project management and design) ’
Highways Staff Costs 29.000
(cost estimates, design and construction package) ’
Open Spaces Staff Costs

. . 800
(trees costs and design recommendations)
City Surveyor Staff Costs 2000
(structural approval of design around the pipe subway) ’
Fees . . 8,650
(traffic order consultation, surveys, safety audit)
TfL
(S8 agreement and S278 requirements) 4,000
Total 73,204
Table 5: Implentation and Maintenance Estimated Costs

Option 1 Option 2 Option 3
Asphalt Asphalt/Granite Granite
(£) (£) (£)

Works:
Irrigation (Fountaineers) 3,000 3,000 3,000
Trees - including liners (Open Spaces) 45,239 45,239 45,239
Utilities covers and connections 23,000 23,000 23,000
Signals (TfL) 18,089 18,089 18,089
All other works (Rineys) 307,746 334,123 368,402
Works Total 397,074 423,451 457,730
Fees 5,300 5,300 5,300
Staff Costs:
Highways 56,825 60,781 65,923
Transportation and Public Realm 30,923 30,923 30,923
Staff Costs Total 87,748 91,704 96,846
Contingency (20% tolerance) 76,990 82,266 89,121
Implementation Total 567,112 602,721 648,997
Maintenance:
Trees 20,402 20,402 20,402
Granites - 24,000 67,500
Maintenance Total 20,402 44,402 87,902
Total 587,514 | 647,123 | 736,899

Options Appraisal and Authority to Start Worp(ég@(v@5/4/5): Heron Plaza S.278 Highway Works




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 56



\\, ,
Bishopsgate to be paved in York
Stone.
) New cycle Stands

Carriageway

Asphalt (Option 1 & 2) 1

Granite (Option 3)

N - S~ New seating

New Trees

Cavendish Court to
be paved in York /
Stone

| New Vehicle Access
| Asphalt (Option 1)
Granite (Option 2 & 3)

Page 57

Rev No Date Description 7 By

Revision

TITLE:

Heron Plaza S278
Highway Work
General Arrangement

Relocated ,
Pedestrian Crossing |

Options Appraisal
Authority to start Works
Appendix 5

HIGHWAY DESIGN
AND CONSTRUCTION

DEPARTMENT OF ENVIRONMENTAL SERVICES
PO Box 270
GUILDHALL
LONDON
EC2P 2EJ

TEL: 020 7606 3030

Sheet:
THIS MAP IS REPRODUCED FROM ORDNANCE
SHEET 1 of 1 SURVEY MATERIAL WITH THE PERMISSION OF
Dale: ORDNANCE SURVEY ON BEHALF OF THE
CONTROLLER OF HER MAJESTY'S
>cmr_w~ 2012 STATIONERY OFFICE © CROWN COPYRIGHT
Designed by: 2006. ALL RIGHTS RESERVED.
KM UNAUTHORISED REPRODUCTION INFRINGES
CROWN COPYRIGHT AND MAY LEAD TO
Checked by: PROSECUTION OR CIVIL PROCEEDINGS.
BM CITY OF LONDON 100023243 2008.
Scale & Drawing Size: Revision: | Drawing No
1:200 - COL/000/1




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 58



Appendix 6:
Options assessment against sustainability criteria

Summary

1. The following table summarises the comparative ratings of options 1-3 against
the three elements of sustainability (economic, cultural/social and
environmental). The explanation for each rating follows the table in paragraphs
2-16.

Option 1- Option 2 - Option 3 -
asphalt asphalt / granite | granite
(score) (score) (score)
Economic sustainability High(3) High(3)* High(3)*
Cultural / social sustainability | Low(1) Medium(2) High(3)
(aesthetics)
Environmental sustainability | High(3) High(3)** High(3)**
Total score 7 8 9

* the rating is subject to maintenance costs also being funded by the developer.
Without it: Option 2 = medium(2), Option 3 = low(1). See paragraph 2-4 below.

**the rating is dependent on locally sourced granite which has a higher cost. Without
it: Option 2 = medium(2), Option 3 = low(1). See paragraph 11-16 below.

Economic Sustainability

2. The economic sustainability of the materials options are rated as:
e Option 1 - asphalt: high
e Option 2 — asphalt/granite: high (medium if maintenance not funded)
e Option 3 - granite: high (low if maintenance not funded)

3. The Review of Material (December 2010) stated that the cost to maintain granite
reduces the economic sustainability. However, in the context of this project being
fully funded by the developer, including the maintenance costs, the economic
sustainability of the three options is considered equal. The funding of the project
by the developer includes:

¢ implementation costs
¢ maintenance costs for the trees for a period of 20 years

e maintenance costs for granite used on the pedestrian cross-over of the
vehicle access (option 2 and option 3) and the carriageway (option 3)

Options Appraisal and Authority to Start Wolle @gji@way3/4/5): Heron Plaza $278 Highway Works



4. The cost of maintaining any granite used has been calculated as being
equivalent in value to it being replaced once during the life of the development.
This is considered less frequent than might otherwise be the case for granite
because the street is rated as having the lowest possible rating for risk of
excavation for two reasons:

. Houndsditch, in this location, and the vehicle access will be used by
only a small number of vehicles.

° There is a utilities piped subway underneath Houndsditch in this
location which means that there is little likelihood of the carriageway
being dug up by utility companies.

Social / cultural sustainability

5. The social / cultural sustainability of the materials options are rated as:
e Option 1: low
e Option 2: medium
e Option 3: high

6. The use of granite on the carriageway (option 3) on Houndsditch is considered
an aesthetic improvement and will positively impact on the social / cultural
sustainability of the area which falls in the Liverpool Street conservation area.

7. The use of asphalt surfacing on the pedestrian cross over (option 1) is not rated
as highly as the granite (option 2) because of the small benefit to safety that the
contrasting coloured granite provides.

8. The use of granite in this location is quite possibly the most appropriate location
for its use on the carriageway in the City for the following reasons:

e It is part of a conservation area and therefore adds to the historic and culture
of the area.

e |t is located on a street that is considered the lowest risk of excavation, which
would otherwise be costly and be disruptive when maintenance is required.

e Carriageway works will have a negligible impact on vehicle movements. This
is due to the one way nature and compulsory turns of the streets in the
immediate area. Houndsditch is a street that effectively serves only the
immediate two buildings (Heron Tower and Heron Plaza) on each side.

9. The developer has stated their preference for Option 3 (granite) because of the
high aesthetic appearance.

10. It is also worth noting that the scheme approved under the Heron Tower project
included the use of granite setts on the carriageway in this location.

Options Appraisal and Authority to Start WoulP@«eNa@mm): Heron Plaza S278 Highway Works



11.

12.

13.

14.

15.

16.

Environmental Sustainability

The environmental sustainability of the materials options are rated as:
e Option 1: high
e Option 2: high (medium if not sourcing granite locally)
e Option 3: high (low if not sourcing granite locally)

The review of materials (December 2010) stated that the use of granite on the
carriageway had a high environmental impact due to the the transportation of the
material from China.

The ratings for environmental impact are effectively based on the amount of
granite that is used if that material would need to travel significant distances.

Option 3 uses the most, while Option 1 uses the least and is rated highest if the
granite is to be sourced from the City’s historically usual location of China. The
significant distance the granite travels from China contributes to the potential
lower environmental rating of options 2 and 3.

By using granite from places such as Portugal (or Cornwall), the environmental
impact from the transportation of it is reduced by about 90% and the rating is
considered equal across the three options. There are cost implications of locally
sourcing granite.

The developer has agreed to provide the extra funds in order for the granite to
be sourced locally and therefore significantly reduce the environmental impact of
the use of the granite. This has been factored into the costs of the options stated
in this report.

Options Appraisal and Authority to Start Wolle @bgji@wy13/4/5): Heron Plaza $278 Highway Works



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 62



Dql‘e(s); g Id A ! el 11 4C

Committee(s):
Streets and Walkways sub 11th December 2012
Projects Sub 13th December 2012
Subject: Issue Report — Mariner House Section 106 Improvement Works Public
Report of: The Director of the Built Environment For
Decision
Summary
Dashboard
Project Status Green

Timeline indicating the stage at which | The main works have been complefed
the project is

Total Approved Budget £644,120 (Inclusive of £585,303 — Implementation
£58,817 — pre-evaluation)

Spend to Date £437,578 (Inclusive of £378,885 for Implementatiq
£58,693 for pre-evaluation)

Overall project risk Low

Brief description of project

Improvements to the streets surrounding the Mariner House redevelopment at a total cost
of £644,120, funded from the Section106 (S106) contribution were approved by
Committees in July 2009. The S106 agreement stipulates that the funds can only be spent
within a few streets surrounding the site (see map of the S106 Area is in Appendix A). Al
Phase 1 works set out in the report have now been substantially completed and the
remaining contfingency elements (Phase 2) that were approved by Committees are
currently being implemented. However, a predicted under-spend of approximately
£152,800, has been identified.

The completed works include the pedestrianisation of the northern section of Savage
Gardens to create a linear public space with trees and seating, lighting improvements
under the railway bridge and the widening of a narrow section of the Crutched Friars
northern footway to improve the pedestrian experience. (See Appendix C showing images
of completed works).

On 20" June 2012 City officers met with Local Ward Members on site to consider the
potential for other enhancements in the S106 area. Members identified areas with
potential for further improvement and the proposals set out in this report have emerged
from their observations and requests. It is proposed to utilise part of the underspend
(£135,000) to carry out these additional enhancements as Phase 3.

Recommendations
[t is recommended that Members:

i) Approve the additional improvement works (Phase 3) at a total estimated cost of
£135,000, funded from the Mariner House Section 106, as set out in this report;
i) Agree that the completion of the detailed design be delegated to the Director of

the Built Environment and Authority to Start Work be sought from the Town Clerk in
accordance with the ‘streamlined’ procedure;

i) Members approve the revised budget for Phase 2 works as outlined in Appendix B.
Table 3C

Page 63



Overview

1. Success Criteria

e The creation of a more pleasant street environment, with
more space for pedestrians, enhanced greenery and
places to rest

e Improved accessibility in the area
e Improved way finding and associated signage

e Improved safety through better lighting of covered sections
of the streets and improved crossings

e De-cluttering

. Project Scope and
Exclusions

A plan of the project area is included in Appendix A

. Link to Strategic
Aims

This project has links to the following strategic aim:

. To provide modern, efficient and high quality local
services and policing within the Square Mile for workers,
residents and visitors with a view to delivering sustainable
outcomes

This scheme will deliver improvements to an area which has seen
a substantial increase in the number of hotel and residential
developments in recent years.

. Within which

category does the
project fit

Fully reimbursable

. What is the priority
of the project?

Desirable

Regular meetings with Senior Responsible Officer and officers from

. Governance ) .
arrangements other departments. Consultation with local stakeholders and
Ward Members
_ Resources £437,578 (inclusive of evaluation, works, fees and staff costs) have

Expended To Date

been spent on environmental improvement works.
See Appendix B:

. Last Gateway
Approval

A project report was approved in July 2009, prior to the
introduction of the Gateway Approval process.

Issue

. Issue Description

Following the substantial completion of (Phase 1) environmental
improvement works related to the redevelopment of Mariner
House, an under-spend of approximately £152,800 has been

Page 64




identified. See Appendix B.
The under-spend on works is principally due to:

e Reduced drainage costs, as less intensive works were
required than originally anticipated;

e Reduced paving costs as a result of materials and works
costing less than originally estimated as well as savings from
the new term conftractor;

e Planting costs being lower than originally estimated;

The Section 106 specifies a restricted number of streets around the
development where the funds can be spent (see Appendix A).

Officers have met with local Ward Members to discuss the need
for further enhancements in the area. Members have identified
several potential improvements and areas of need. Following this
meeting, a list of proposed improvement works with estimated
costs was drawn up by officers and circulated to Local Ward
Members for their consideration.

Of the eleven items identified by Local Ward Members six items
were either already part of contingency works (Phase 2)
approved as part of the original Committee approval and
planned to be implemented, or part of works related to the
forthcoming 10 Trinity Square redevelopment (Trees on Pepys
Street). These items are summarised below:

Table 1: Remaining works that are already approved (Phase 2)

Item

Description

Upgrade Tree Surrounds
on -Coopers Row

Replace poor quality and damaged
free surrounds with standard City
Specification

Seating

Install seats close to hotel (away from
residential areas — locations to be
confirmed).

Removal and
Rationalisation of

bollards on Coopers Row,

remove unnecessary
posts and affix signs to
buildings where possible

De-clutter streets to enhance street
environment

Lighting Coopers Row
Fenchurch Street Railway
Arches

Improved lighting to enhance safety at
night.

Trees on Pepys Street

Street trees to enhance the street
environment — to be undertaken as part
obligations associated with the 10 Trinity
Square redevelopment

Node Sign: Crutched
Friars/Coopers Row

Way-finding sign

Page 65




The remaining five items identified by Local Ward Members are
captured in Table 2 in the Options section below.

10.Last Approved
Limit

£585,303 (July 2009 Planning and Transportation Committee)

11.Tolerance Granted

A 20% contingency was approved in 2009 which, if not required as
contingency, was to be used for specified works (Phase 2).

12.Cause

The cause of this issue is a predicted underspend on the project.

13.Consequences

If funds are not utilised they will need to be returned to the
developer in accordance with the terms of the S106 Agreement.

14.Options

The area where the S106 funds can be spent is limited to a few
streets around the development (see plan in Appendix A). These
streets were assessed for potential improvements as part of a site
visit with Ward Members in June 2012 when a list of proposals was
formulated (set out in Table 2 below).

Another option would be to seek a variation to the S106 with the
Developer to enable the funds to be spent in a wider area.
However, the developer is not obliged to vary the agreement and
may prefer to see the remaining funds returned to them. This
option represents a higher risk and is not recommended to be
pursued given that further improvements in the area have been
identified with Ward Members. This option is further complicated
by the fact that the ownership of the hotel development has
changed hands and a variation may not be agreed by the new
owners.

Page 66




TABLE 2 Cost Estimate: Proposed improvement works as requested by Ward Members (Phase 3)
Item | ltems Identified Estimate | Notes
No. (£)
] Coopers Row Footway 55 000 Approximately 0.9m wider on western footway to provide more
Widening ' space for pedestrians
2 Pigeons prevention Pigeon droppings are corrosive and cause damage — possible
measures — in the local 3,000 | use of a Hawk to force local pigeon population to go
ared
3 Steam Clean Brick To improve the local environment and brighten up the street.
Work Fenchurch Street 10,000 | May require approval of Network Rail
Arches
4 Seething Lane - Currently mastic asphalt outside a Grade | Listed Building. The
Resurface a section of setting of the building would be enhanced by the intfroduction
masstic asphalt 25,000 | of York stone
footway outside St
Olave's Churchyard
5 St Olave's Churchyard 35 000 Landscaping to enhance the Churchyard which has public
(Seething Lane) ' access
Works - subtotal 98,000
Fees 10,000
Staff Costs Planning 14,000 | Including: Communication Programming, Programme
Staff Costs Open 7000 Management, Risk Management Design, Monitoring and
Spaces ' Construction Management
Staff Cost Highways 6,000
Fees and Staff Costs - 37,000
sub total
TOTAL 135,000

15.Recommendation

Recommendations
It is recommended that Members:

i) Approve the additional improvement works (Phase 3) at a
total estimated cost of £135,000, funded from the Mariner House
Section 106, as set out in this report;

i) Agree that the completion of the detailed design be
delegated to the Director of the Built Environment and Authority
to Start Work be sought from the Town Clerk in accordance with
the ‘streamlined’ procedure

iii) Members approve the proposed revised budget for Phase 2
works as outlined in Appendix B, Table 3C

16.Lessons

e Ensure in future that estimates are suitably qualified where
there is uncertainty about the likely extent of elements of the
WOrks.

e The S106 boundary is very tight and restricts where funds can
be spent.

Page 67




Appendices

Appendix A: | The S106 map and proposals identified by Ward Members

Appendix B: | Financial Summary tables of Phases 1 and 2

Appendix C: | Images of Completed Environmental Enhancement Works

Contact
Report Author Emmanuel Ojugo
Email Address emmanuel.ojugo@cityoflondon.gov.uk
Telephone Number | 020 7332 1158

Page 68




Appendix A

NOQNO1

*L00Z £2EZ000L UopuoT jo uonesodiod sBuipaadoid AR Jo uonndasold o pes| Aew pue yBuAdos umolD sabuul
uoljanpoidal pasuoyneun ‘paaasal syybu |Iv 200z JubuAdos umol) @ s010 Asuone)s s fisaleyy JaH Jo Jajjonuod ay) Jo jeyaq uo ASAINg S0UBUPIQ JO uoissiuLad
aU) yum [eUsleW A3AINS SOUBUPIO WO paanpoldal S| dew syl

ealy SHIOAA Jusawiadueyusz auadg }oa4}g JO Jualixy

sapiunpoddg
juswaAoidw| payiuap|

JUBIXT 8SNOH JauLep ﬁNu

suapies) abeaeg -
puaban

oL

==

Seething Garq

SEETHING LANE/

LD

¢ ]
S ‘

XL

O

B \\l‘.’!

TAVASS

STRLL] PaU2INIY) Jo 8sTOf] a1,

1BI0H

59

sg1
=]

yainyo
S.9ABI0 1S

|

133415 NOGNOT v M

o

NEW LONDON STREET
Loy
69

a9

w0

Page 69




Appendix A - Key

Iltem Iltems Identified 20th Notes
No. June 2012 (walkabout)
| Bl Upgrade Tree Surround Replace poor quality and damaged tree surrounds with standard
on Coopers Row City Specification
2wk Seating Install Seats close to hotel (away from Residential Areas —
locations to be confirmed)
k= Removal and De-clutter streets to enhance street environment
Rationalisation of
bollards on Coopers
Row, remove
unnecessary posts and
affix signs to buildings
where possible
T e Lighting Coopers Row Improved lighting to enhance safety at night.
Fenchurch Street Railway
Arches
5 ek Trees on Pepys Street Street trees to enhance the street environment — to be undertaken
as part obligations associated with the 10 Trinity Square
redevelopment
& Node Sign:
Crutched Friars/Coopers
Row
7 Seething Lane - Currently mastic asphalt outside a Grade | Listed Building. The
Resurface a section of setting of the building would be enhanced by the infroduction of
mastic footway outside York stone
St Olave's Churchyard in
York Stone
8 Coopers Row Footway Approximately 0.9m wider on western footway
Widening
9 St Olave’s Churchyard Landscaping to enhance the Churchyard which has public
(Seething Lane) access
10 Pigeons prevention Pigeon droppings are corrosive and cause damage — possible use

measures — in the local
ared

of a Hawk to force local pigeon population to go

1

Steam Clean Brick Work
Fenchurch Street Arches

May requires approval of Network Rail

**k Some items have already been captured as part of approved Contingency
works or an undertaking in a separate project

Page 70




Appendix B

Table 3A - Evaluation Costs

Approved Budget - .
Evaluation Costs Committee July 2009 Spend fo Difference
(£) date (£) (£)
Evaluation Fees 21,739 21,739 0
Evaluation Staff Costs 37,078 36,954 -124
Evaluation Total 58,817 58,693 -124
Table 3B - Phase 1 and 2 Costs
Difference
Approved Budget - Spend / (Approved
Mariner House $106 Works Committee July 2009 | Commitments Budget v
(£) to date (£) Spend to Date)
(£)
Site clearance/preparation 30,865 30,805 -60
Provide and lay new York stone,
drainage, kerbs and granite paving, 265,365 128,629 -136,736
lighting, bollards
Planters and Planting 14,326 7,458 -6,868
Seating 10,000 6,706 -3,294
Traffic orders, signing and lining 5,200 5,200 0
Works Sub-Total 325,756 178,798.00 -146,958
Design Fees 19,425 34,855 15,430
Planning & Transportation staff costs 37,000 43,000 6,000
Open Spaces staff costs (including 15.100 1758 13,342
labour)
DES staff costs 37,000 23,334 -13,666
Fees & Staff Costs Sub-Total 108,525 102,947 -5,578
Open spaces maintenance fees (5 12.712 12.712 0
years)
Cleansing maintenance (5 years) 16,250 16,250 0
Lighting maintenance (5 years) 5,000 5,000 0
Maintenance Sub-Total 33,962 33,962 0
Main Works (Phase 1) TOTAL 468,243 315,707 -152,536
Contingency (Phase 2) Works TOTAL 117,060 63,442 -53,618

Page 71




GRAND TOTAL 585,303 379,149 -206,154
Table 3C - Phase 2 Costs (Proposed Variation)
: . Approved Proposed .
Phase 2 wc;?;:mgency Budget (2009) Budget Var(lg;\ce
(£) (£)
Works 75,060 87,060 12,000
Drainage 12,000 0 -12,000
Street Furniture 20,000 20,000 0
Works Total 107,060 | 107,060 0
Fees 10,000 8.800 -1,200
Staff Costs (Planning) 0 15,000 15,000
Staff Costs (Highways) 0 4,000 4,000
Fees & Staff Costs Total 10,000 27,800 17.800
Tofal 117,060 | *134,860 |  *17,800

*Additional costs to be funded from the works underspend

Page 72



Savage Gardens Following Environmental Improvement Works

Page 73



— N ‘ —r ——
R ey B
NYITTHE

\ ‘ -\ | E‘é-‘ ! i

PV AR
‘flais

............

Savage Gardens viewed from the upper floor of the completed hotel development

Page 74



Agenda Iltem 4d

Committees: Dates:
Streets and Walkways Sub- | 11 December 2012
Committee
Subject: Cheapside Area Enhancement Strategy - Public

Report on progress and proposed review

Report of: For Decision
The Director of the Built Environment

Summary

This report provides an update on the implementation of the Cheapside Area
Enhancement Strategy and proposes a review and update of the strategy.

Since the strategy was approved in 2008 most of the Phase 1 and 2 projects
have been successfully implemented. The enhancement schemes that have
been completed are: Bow lane, Bow Churchyard, Foster Lane, Milk Street
Area, Wood Street, Gresham Street Central, Gresham Street East and
Cheapside stages 1 — 3. Cheapside stage 4 is substantially complete and stage
4ais planned.

The Cheapside area has been transformed by the implementation of the
strategy. The main successes are as follows:

e More space has been created for pedestrians and junctions and
crossings have been improved and made safer;

e The retail environment has been enhanced and the new streetscape
supports a successful retail centfre that is open 7 days a week;

e The streets and spaces in the area are greener, more comfortable and
more accessible;

¢ The street environment now has a consistently high standard and joined-
up feel with the use of a limited palette of materials.

The Cheapside initiative has also had a considerable amount of success in
promoting the retail offer and has run several successful events, including
traffic free Christmas shopping days. The Initiative has recently commissioned a
study on ‘Greening Cheapside’ which identifies several potential projects in
the area. It is proposed to carry out an options appraisal of these projects in
order to further enhance the Cheapside area.

The Strategy is now more than four years old and a review and update of the
document is proposed to ensure that it meets the changing needs of the area.
In particular, the feasibility of removing the gyratory at St Martins Le
Grand/Newgate Street is currently being assessed and there is a long-standing
desire to improve pedestrian connections to Cheapside so that it is better
linked to other visitor attractions such as the Museum of London, the Barbican,
St Paul’s and the Millennium Bridge. This would also bring the area strategy in
line with the City's Core Strategy (2011) and the Cultural Strategy 2012-17, as
well as the City’s emerging Visitor Strategy (2013-18) which looks at how
weekends and the retail offer can be promoted to visitors. It is proposed that

Page 75



the amended document be reported back to Committees, before being
consulted upon with the public and subsequently adopted as a revised
strategy for the area.

Recommendation: It is recommend that:
(i) The update information on the strategy is received and actions noted;

(i) Options for the further greening of the Cheapside area be developed at an
estimated cost of £25,000, funded from the interest accrued on the 120
Cheapside Section 106 agreement, subject to the agreement of the
developer and a Gateway 1 and 2 report to be submitted for approval;

(iii) A revised strategy is prepared at an estimated cost of £45,000, funded from
the interest accrued on the 120 Cheapside Section 106 Agreement, subject to
the agreement of the developer, with the revised strategy presented to
Members in advance of public consultation in 2013.

Background

1. The Cheapside Area Enhancement Strategy was developed in 2008 to
coordinate the delivery of environmental enhancements, leisure and
cultural opportunities in the Cheapside Area. The key vision of the strategy
is tfo create a high quality comfortable street environment that
adequately reflects the status of Cheapside as a world-class retail and
leisure destination. The preparation of the strategy was inspired by the
tremendous growth and change that was happening in Cheapside at the
time and the formation of the Cheapside Initiative. The construction of
One New Change and numerous other developments has seen the retail
offer in the area grow to a size that rivals other centres across London. The
shopping facilities are particularly well-used by City workers.

2. The strategy and the framework for its implementation were approved by
Committees in 2008. Projects in the strategy are divided into Phases with
Phase One covering the side streets and spaces and Phase Two relating
to Cheapside itself. Phase Three refers to ongoing events and cultural
opportunities that are primarily promoted by the Cheapside Inifiative.

Completed Projects

3. To date, all of the Phase One projects have been completed and most of
Phase Two is also complete. Completed Phase One projects are listed in
Table 1 below:

Page 76




Table 1: Phase One projects

Project Description

Bow Lane Re-paving the lane to create a more robust
and improved environment, together with
planters. Completed 2008.

Bow Churchyard Re-landscaping the space to create a

refreshed public square with a better
connection to surrounding buildings and retail
units and an enhanced space for people to
rest. Completed 2011.

Foster Lane

Significant widening of footways and re-
surfacing to create more space for pedestrians
and improve access. Completed 2009.

Milk Street Area

Creation of a pocket space at the southern
end of the street with tree planting and seating,
together with lighting and access
enhancements to form a more comfortable
walking route. The lighting in Honey Lane was
not able to be installed due to the demolition of
the neighbouring building. Completed 2012.

Wood Street

Re-paving and access improvements to better
link the street to Cheapside. Completed 2010.

Gresham Street
Cenftral

A raised pedestrian table and footway
widening fo form an enhanced and more
accessible street environment. Completed
2010.

Gresham Street East

Widening and re-surfacing the footways to
provide a more comfortable street
environment. Completed 2011

4. The public realm of the area has been significantly enhanced through the
implementation of the above projects. As a result, the objectives of the
strategy are being readlised, with a more comfortable and greener
environment emerging. Of particular note is the high standard and
consistency of materials and design which has led to a better connected
street environment for the benefit of all users.

5. All Phase One projects have been completed within approved budgets,
with several having underspends. Financial summaries are set out in
Appendix A. Outcome reports on these projects are planned for 2013.
Officers will also develop options for the use of any underspends which
may include opportunities for road danger reduction measures in the

areaq.

Page 77




Phase Two - Cheapside

6. This major street enhancement project is divided into four stages:

e Stage 1 included footway widening and re-paving works around One
New Change. These works were completed in October 2010 and
have provided an enhanced environment around the new shopping
cenftre with clear connections to the surrounding streets.

Stage 2 involved the re-modelling of the junction of New Change and
Cheapside to remove the guard-railing and form simple straight-
across crossings with a neutral impact on traffic, together with the
widening of footways. This element of the works was completed
December 2010 and has been a significant success with greatly
enhanced pedestrian comfort and safety.

Stage 3 included widening the footways by 3 metres on each side of
the street, re-paving, tree planting and other improvements along the
main section of Cheapside between One New Change and Queen
Street. The sunken garden on the corner of Cheapside and New
Change was also re-landscaped and step-free access was
incorporated. The scheme was completed in July 2011 and has
created an enhanced and more comfortable shopping street with
trees for added shade and pollution mitigation.

Stage 4 involved improvements to Poultry and included widened
footways, raised pedestrian tables and re-paving. The works were
substantially completed in June 2012.

Stage 4ais currently under development and involves improvements to
the junction of Gresham Street and St Martins Le Grand.

7. A financial summary is set out in Appendix A. The success of the scheme
and final outturn costs will be fully assessed in an outcome report on Phase
Two that is planned for 2013. This will include an evaluation of the scheme
against the success criteria, surveys, feedback from stakeholders and
lessons learnt.

Phase Three

8. Phase Three includes a range of programmes and events, primarily led by
the Cheapside Initiative to develop the culture and leisure product for a
wider audience as part of the retail promotion strategy for the area.

9. The Cheapside Initiative is a voluntary partnership that includes
stakeholders and occupiers from the area as well as the City of London
Corporation. It is also active in promoting the 7 days a week retail offer in
the area.

Page 78



10.The Cheapside Initiative has established several areas of activity,
delivering a number of projects under each key theme. Key initiatives /
activities include:

e Community Safety: Links have been made with the City of London
Police to investigate a more joined up approach to developing a
Business Continuity Management Forum, promoting business continuity
practices to the industry recognised standards.

e Retail Club: Quarterly symposium meetings are held with the retail
sector providing them with a collective voice. The meetings cover a
range of issues from public realm improvements through to policing of
the area. As aresult the retailers club has been developed with a
following of over 40 retail businesses.

¢ Events: The Cheapside Initiative has had an active presence at a
number of local events with a view to raising the profile of the
Cheapside area and the work of the Initiative. The events include:

o City of London Festival - City of London Festival Opening
Procession in Cheapside June 2009 involving over 1,000 school
children and community groups was supported by the
Cheapside Initiative.

o Lord Mayor’s Show - Following on from successful involvement in
the Lord Mayors Show in 2009, the Cheapside Initiative also ran a
float in the 2012 show.

o Working with the City Corporation, the Cheapside Initiative was
also a major player in the creation of Celebrate the City: four
days in the Square Mile, held from 21-24 June, 2012. This one-off
event, funded by the City Corporation, City Bridge Trust and
Diocese of London celebrated the City’'s offer in the year of the
Jubilee and the Games and brought together the many City
partners who were putting on events and activities as part of the
summer's celebrations. The focus was the Cheapside Fayre on
the Saturday, which brought 27,500 visitors to Cheapside (of
which nearly 8,000 visited a market hosted in Guildhall Yard). As
with many large-scale public events, shop takings were down
(more so in One New Change than in Cheapside where the
action all took place). That said, the sales for restaurateurs, bars
and coffee shops were up by as much as 15% and both shops
and restaurateurs expressed a positive view about the value of
the event in promoting the Cheapside area as a shopping
destination to an essentially new audience (who may make a
return visit). The local attractions saw record audiences for their

Page 79



events on the day and significant positive feedback was
received from participants and visitors.

o Traffic Free Christmas Shopping — Cheapside held its first traffic
free shopping day in the run up to Christmas in 2011 with over
3,000 people passing through the area. A range of events and
activities and promotions were made available on the day.
Overall the response from retailers was very positive and saw the
benefit with a good increase in footfall and sales within a
number of stores. The event will run again in 2012 with a market
made available in Guildhall Yard, adding to the offer.

Greening Cheapside

11.The Cheapside Initiative has recently commissioned a green infrastructure
audit and study into ‘Greening Cheapside’ that was funded by the Cross
River Partnership. This study sets out the benefits of green infrastructure
including adaptation to climate change, improved biodiversity,
improvements to air quality and an enhanced environment supporting the
visitor economy and commercial fooftfall.

12.The study has identified numerous opportunities for greening throughout
the area. A number of these projects are on public highway or open
space land and it is proposed that officers take some of these forward as

a new project. The main opportunity areas that have been identified are

as follows:

e Wood Street Garden (the churchyard of St Peter Westcheap)- this is a
public open space adjacent to no.130 Wood Street that does not
have step-free access and is in need of enhancement. Proposals
would include access improvements, new planting and street
furniture. The ramp proposal would have to be assessed in terms of
their archaeological impact due to the need to adjust the levels on
the site;

e There are various planters in the area on public highway that currently
contain bedding plantings. It is proposed to evaluate whether more
drought-resistant planting or meadow planting would be suitable for
these planters. This would enable lower maintenance planting to be
infroduced;

e There are several streets in the area where more street trees could be
planted including St Martins Le Grand, New Change and Cannon
Street;

e There are opportunities across the area for creating ‘rain gardens’.
These are areas of green space which are designed to collect and
absorb rain water from surface run-off and are a form of sustainable
drainage.

Page 80



13.1t is proposed that the ‘Greening Cheapside’ proposals are further
developed as a new project of the strategy. Images of proposals are set
out in Appendix C.

Proposed Review and Update of the Strategy

14.The implementation of the strategy has made the area more accessible
and comfortable for pedestrians and better connected. The retail
environment has also been greatly enhanced with a high standard and
consistent public realm.

15.The area has changed significantly since the strategy was adopted in
2008 and a review and update of the strategy is now proposed that will
bring the document up-to date with current policy, including the recently
adopted Core Strategy, to ensure that it meets the changing needs of the
areq.

16. The Strategy review and update will include:

e Updating the document so that it aligns with the Core Strategy
(2011) and the emerging City Local Plan, the City’'s Sustainability
Policy, the revised City’'s Cultural Strategy (2012-2017), the City’s
emerging Visitor Strategy (2013-18) and references the Bow Lane
Conservation Area SPD;

e Improving walking routes, connections and signage between
Cheapside and other visitor attractions including the Museum of
London, the Barbican, St Paul's, the City Information Centre and
the Millennium bridge;

¢ Including schemes for Greening Cheapside that are proposed to be
developed as a new project;

e Incorporating the assessment of the feasibility of the removal of the
gyratory at St Martins Le Grand/Newgate Street. This would include
improved crossings and enhanced road safety;

e Developing options for improved and safer streets and public
spaces in the south of the area that were not addressed in the
original strategy;

e Assessing how best to ensure the future vitality and visitor attraction
of the area through a programme of events and activities in
partnership with the Cheapside Initiative and other local partners.

17.11is proposed that the amended document be reported back to
Committees, before being consulted upon with the public in 2013 and
subsequently adopted as a revised enhancement strategy for the area.

Financial implications

18.Most of the Phase One and Two projects from the Strategy have been
externally funded through Section 106 obligations and Transport for
London. Parts of Phase Two (Cheapside) have also been funded from the

Page 81



City’'s on-street parking meter reserve. Details of costs and funding for
projects are set out in Table 3 in the Appendix.

19.The new ‘Greening Cheapside’ project design development and options
appraisal has an estimated cost of £25,000 (staff costs and fees). It is
proposed that this work is funded from the accrued interest on the 120
Cheapside Section 106, subject to the agreement of the developer. The
cost of implementation has not yet been determined and will be explored
at the next reporting stage.

20. The proposed Strategy review and update has an estimated cost of
£45,000 (staff costs and fees). It is proposed that this is also funded from
the interest accrued on the 120 Cheapside Section 106, subject to the
agreement of the developer.

21. The developer of 120 Cheapside has indicated that they are content for
the remaining interest funds to be used for these purposes and support the
further improvement of the Cheapside area in the vicinity of their
development.

Table 2: Estimated cost of Greening Cheapside options appraisal and Area
Strategy review and update

Iltem Estimated Cost
(E's)
Greening Cheapside Options Appraisal
Staff costs 15,000
fees 10,000
Sub Total 25,000
Strategy Review and Update
Staff costs 30,000
fees 15,000
Sub Total 45,000
TOTAL 70,000

Strategic Implications

Corporate Plan:

22.The Strategy helps achieve Strategic Aim: ‘To provide modern, efficient
and high quality local services and policing within the square mile for
workers, residents and visitors whilst delivering sustainable outcomes.’ by
providing an enhanced environment that supports the local retail and
leisure offer.

Core Strategy
23.The Cheapside and St Paul’s area has been identified as a ‘Key City

Place’ in the City’s Core Strategy (adopted 2011). The key aims for the
area are to develop it as the City’s ‘high street’ and key visitor destination.

Page 82



Policy CSé further expands upon these aims as follows:

“To develop the Cheapside and St Paul’s area as the City’s ‘high street’ and
key visitor destination, increasing the amount of high quality retailing,
promoting the City's unique cultural and leisure activities and heritage and
improving the pedestrian environment, by:

1. Increasing the overall amount of retail floorspace across the Cheapside
and St Paul’s area by over 41% between 2010 and 2017.

2. Prioritising A1 floorspace fronting Cheapside, Poultry and Bow Lane,
resulting in an increase in total floorspace in the Cheapside Principal
Shopping Centre from 21,000m2 in 2010 to 43,000m2 by 2017.

3. Encouraging a mix of retail unit sizes, including large units fronting onto
Cheapside and facilitating the development of smaller retail units in
surrounding streets, particularly in the Guildhall and Bow Lane Conservation
Areaqs.

4. Enhancing pedestrian links:

(i) from the Millennium Bridge to St Paul's and Cheapside and onwards to

the Museum of London and the Barbican Complex;

(i) to and from residential and employment clusters and leisure and
recreation areacs.

5. Promoting visitor atftractions in and around Cheapside, including museums
and art galleries such as the Guildhall Art Gallery, churches and other
heritage assets, cultural events, including the Lord Mayor's Show

and exploring the potential for street markets.

6. Improving visitor information, including use of the Visitor Information Centre,
signage and the “square miler” volunteers.

7. Permitting hotel development that supports the primary business function of
the City and enhances the attractiveness of the area as a visitor destination.
8. Enhancing the environment for pedestrians, shoppers, public transport users
and, where appropriate, motor vehicle users. Improving safety, accessibility
and inclusivity through the development of area-based improvement
strategies.

9. Maintaining and improving on the current low levels of crime and antisocial
behaviour.”

Conclusion

24.Most of the Phase One and Two projects from the Cheapside area
strategy have now been completed, resulting in significant enhancements
to the area. The ‘Greening Cheapside’ study, commissioned by the
Cheapside Initiative sets out a range of green infrastructure projects that
are planned to be taken forward as a new project. A proposed review
and update of the strategy will bring the document up-to date with
current policy and ensure that it meets the changing needs of the area.
The amended document be reported back to committees, before being
consulted upon with the public and subsequently adopted as a revised
strategy for the area.

Contact:
Melanie.charalambous@cityoflondon.gov.uk | 020 7332 3155

Page 83



78 abed

Appendix A

Table 3: Funding Summary (as at October 2012)

Project Approved Expenditure Variance Funding Comments
Budget & (£) Source
(£) Commitments
to date
(£)
Phase One
Bow Lane 209,626 209,626 0| S106 Complete
Bow Churchyard 365,860 352,827 -13,033 | S106 Complete
Foster Lane 252,255 247,208 -5,047 | 8106 Complete
Milk Street Area 481,404 388,603 -92,801 | S106 Complete — However, lighting in Honey Lane
unable to be installed due to demolition of
neighbouring building
Wood Street highway works 361,167 282,068 -79,099 | S106 Complete
Gresham Street Central 405,328 392,703 -12,625 | S106 Complete
Gresham Street East 75,932 74,087 -1,845 | S106 Complete
SUB TOTAL 2,151,572 1,947,122 -204,450
Phase Two
Cheapside Stage 2-4 design 221,916 218,497 -3,419 | S106 Complete
Cheapside Stage 1 944 582 942 563 -2,019 | S106 Complete
Cheapside Stage 2 2,050,200 1,833,010 -217,190 | S106, TfL, Complete. Underspend is OSPR
OSPR
Cheapside Stage 3 1,403,500 1,138,439(to -265,061 | TfL, OSPR Substantially Complete. Underspend is OSPR
date) See comments
Cheapside Stage 4 992 977 537,257 (to -455,720 | S106 Substantially Complete.
date) See comments
Cheapside Stage 4A 57,000 57,861 861 | OSPR
Cheapside (Reserve Funds) 250,000 0 -250,000 | OSPR
Cheapside Outcome Report 40,000 0 -40,000 | OSPR
SUB TOTAL 5,960,175 4,727,627 -1,232,548
GRAND TOTAL 8,111,747 6,674,749 -1,436,998




.
Appendix B
Plan of the strategy area
S = 23 Y, P ==
£ e A i L X 2 CHEAPSIDE AREA
: i ] s
T i / N Ry
— ! 2 5" e, STRATEGY
4 _
wg i . P i s D Cheapside Area Strategy Boundary
g /e =29 3
= b i e == ¢ /e
& el G
ey i b :
£ y iy oy
i X : o ada
i ' .
T i i K SN
e — g ciry
i LONDON
g i c L e
£ 3 bt DEPARTMENT OF THE BUILT ENVIRONMENT
e ; - Philip Everett
& - BSc, CEng, MICE
cupnan g Director of the Built Environment
Centra e .
-
=
&,
5,
i o T gy F
i : ¥
o~ b
- - L i = 1
£
; Bank
/ :
i -
3 P, d
H
AR - i
" l2 > 2
e o
: = o !
@ o H
A Sl £
— 7~
gy S
P
o
\\\\\\\\ Bﬂ
i
C
i e
e T r——" - 5
. e i)
Jbh T
T i ;
i
o i a—— 3
g i " i /3
o S ; e { i rwng,
e "y ;] ) §
= - Bl R e
oy ™ g é; = h""-u,,&
g o g
= § #. bt
o L W o
g
s o o, et S b e
.

Page 85



Appendix C - Images of some ‘Greening Cheapside’ proposals

St Martins Le Grand possible ‘rain grden

Page 86



St Peter Westcheap, Wood Street - Possible access and landscaping improvements

Page 87



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 88



Agenda ltem 4e

Committee(s):

Date(s):

Streets and Walkways
Planning and Transportation

11th December 2012
15th January 2013

Subject: Public
Road Danger Reduction Plan 2013
Report of: For Decision

Director of the Built Environment

Ward (if appropriate):
All wards

Summary

This report presents a draft version of the City’'s Road Danger Reduction Plan
2013. Road safety activity over the last decade has made the streets safer for
most users but now casualty numbers are rising. The need to make the streets
much safer for all means that there is now a need to do something different and
significant if the target reduction in casualties is to be met. The key elements of

the action plan are:

Work to improve the safety of 20 junctions, such as Holborn Circus
and Bank, and corridors, such as Fleet Street/ Ludgate Hill, during
the life of the Plan.

A programme to improve pedestrian safety by extending the
provision of courtesy crossings across the City at points where
vehicles turn from major to minor streets.

A continued programme of enforcement, education, training and
publicity with an increased focus on evaluation.

Utilising a significant % of the Road Safety Team resource to
assess the safety of street corridors favoured by cyclists and
recommend improvements.

Better management of the streets, with a clear emphasis on
reducing dangers associated with streetworks.

Investigating the benefits of introducing a 20 MPH limit throughout
the City.

Further data collection and research to assist in targeting future
road danger reduction measures where they will be most effective
in reducing casualties. This will include commissioning
comprehensive pedestrian and cycling movement data.

Strengthening our current partnership working with the police and
establishing a City Road Danger Reduction Partnership

An annual Member-level meeting to be held jointly with TfL to
monitor and drive forward the City’s Road Danger Reduction
programme and ensure engagement with TfL.

Taken together these measures are intended to deliver the City’s
agreed casualty reduction targets over the plan period through a
combination of delivering safer streets and helping individuals to

Page 89




become safer users of the streets. Further work is required to develop
funding options for implementing the action plan.

Recommendations
| recommend that your Committee agrees to:
1. Approve the Road Danger Reduction Plan in principle;

2. Approve the measures set out for delivery up to December 2014 in
Appendix 1; and

3. Receive an annual report setting out future years’ delivery plans and
reviewing performance.

Main Report
Background
1. The City’s previous Road Safety Plan 2007 became obsolete along with its

parent plan, the City of London Local Implementation Plan (LIP) 2007, when the
new LIP 2011 was approved by the Mayor of London. Although the LIP 2011
sets out high-level policy in relation to road safety, including broad-brush targets
around the numbers of road traffic casualties, more needs to be done to set out
the City's detailed road safety proposals.

The purpose of the Road Danger Reduction Plan (RDRP) is to update the City's
road safety proposals and present them in a single document that will fill the
policy gap left by the outdated Road Safety Plan 2007. This is supported by the
Mayor of London and Transport for London (TfL) who have approved the
preparation of the RDRP as a key programme in the City’s LIP 2011.

The change of title from the previous ‘Road Safety Plan’ to ‘Road Danger
Reduction Plan’ is intended to reflect the Plan’s emphasis on addressing road
dangers at source, rather than attempting to keep vulnerable road users out of
the way of that road danger through excessive segregation. This change in
terminology was an important matter for some of those who made submissions
on the draft LIP 2011 and is an important indicator for road safety campaigners
and road safety professionals about the City's approach.

Too often in the past, attempting to keep vulnerable road users safe has led to
inappropriate solutions such as pedestrian guard-railing and "cyclists dismount"
signs that blight the streetscape, discourage people from walking and cycling
and are often ignored or got around, making them ineffective at reducing danger
and improving safety. It is considered that calling the new plan the City's Road
Danger Reduction Plan will be appreciated by many as an important indicator of
the City’s approach to reducing road traffic collisions and casualties.

Current Position

5.

Over 300,000 people commute into the Square Mile of the City of London every
day, placing a huge demand on the public highways and on public transport.
This demand results in congestion for all and contributes to an accident record
that needs to be addressed. There has been a huge growth in the number of
people cycling within the City. It is predicted that the number of pedestrians and
cyclists will continue to grow throughout the life of this Plan.

Page 90




The City has a disproportionately high number of cyclists and pedestrians,
involved in collisions compared to the Inner London Boroughs. Pedestrians
make up around 26% of all of the City’s casualties, compared with a 20%
average for Inner London. Cyclists make up around 28% of all of the City’s
casualties, as against 12% for Inner London.

The key target, for London and nationally, is the reduction of casualties where
people are killed or seriously injured (KSI). Within London, the vulnerable user
groups of pedestrians, cyclists and powered two wheel riders comprise 76% of
the KSI total; which is high by national standards. Within the City, the
percentage is even higher. 98% of those killed or seriously injured in 2011 were
vulnerable users. The casualty situation within the City is unique. Activity over
the last decade has made the streets safer for most users but the increase in
casualties over the last two years demonstrates the need to make the streets
much safer for all. There is a need to deliver something very different and
significant if the target reduction in casualties is to be met.

The nature of the City, with its relatively narrow highways and huge daily flows
of commuters, leads to a street environment that provides a recipe for collisions,
especially for these vulnerable users. Street users often call for separation or
segregation but the historic evolution of the City’s streets means that most of
the streets are not wide enough to allow segregation, nor of an adequate and
sufficiently regular width to permit a consistent design solution.

The streets managed by Transport for London are generally wider and could
deliver segregation and more consistent infrastructure. TfL is responsible for
10% of the streets within the City. However, these streets carry approximately
50% of the traffic and account for approximately 50% of the casualties. An
analysis shows that the number of KSI casualties is shared equally between the
City’s and TfL’s streets. Pedestrian casualties occur more on the City’s streets.
Cyclist casualties are shared equally. Powered two wheeler casualties occur
more on TfL’s streets. It is clear that both Highway Authorities have a
significant role to play in reducing casualties within the City of London but that
the emphasis for each may be slightly different. TfL has a second key role to
play in exercising their powers under the Traffic Management Act in such a way
that they allow their own organisation and the City to introduce changes to the
highway that are able to deliver significant safety benefits.

The Road Danger Reduction Plan

10.

11.

12.

The Road Danger Reduction Plan sets out targets and actions to address the
City’s road safety issues and to meet the requirements under the Mayor's
Transport Strategy. Put very simply, by 2020 the annual number of casualties
within the City needs to be reduced by 150 and the KSI casualties need to
reduce by 25 from the 2011 situation.

The Plan has been prepared in the light of accident analysis and best practice.
Its purpose is to reduce casualties and to fulfil the statutory duty of the City to
promote road safety under the Road Traffic Act 1988.

The Plan sets out the current situation in the City with road safety and casualty
numbers, and presents the City’s approach and performance against the key
road casualty reduction targets. It concludes with an action plan which sets out
a prioritised series of short, medium and long term measures.

Page 91



13. A multi-targeted approach is proposed in which tried and tested measures such
as engineering solutions, enforcement and education, training and publicity
(ETP) are continued. This will be supplemented by changing the focus of the
Road Safety Team such that they spend more time actively monitoring safety on
City streets and recommending specific improvements. There will also be a
renewed effort to ensure our own operations on street (e.g. streetworks) are
being well managed to provide a safe environment and to influence and
manage, where possible, the safe use of the highway by others.

14. However, it is envisaged that achieving a significant reduction in casualties will
require a more fundamental review of the operation and management of City’'s
streets to reduce risks for vulnerable road users. It is fair to say that the easiest
changes to the City’s highway infrastructure have been delivered over the past
20 years. These further changes are likely to involve sub-regional and City-wide
initiatives such as reduced speed limits, out-of-hours deliveries, restructured
bus routes and the provision of high quality strategic walking and cycle routes
combined with a corridor based approach to secure improvements at the local
level.

Engineering solutions

15. The intention is to work to change 20 junctions, such as Holborn Circus and
Bank, and corridors, such as Fleet Street/ Ludgate Hill, during the life of the
Plan. There are currently a number of active major schemes which seek to
improve road safety at key casualty locations, with a particular focus on major
junctions, corridors and gyratories because of concerns about cyclist safety:

¢ Strategy consultation is on-going for Bank Junction.
e Holborn Circus is being prepared for implementation in 2012/13

o A strategy is being prepared to deal with the key corridor of Fleet Street
and Ludgate Hill.

o TfL officers are reviewing their whole highway network and every Cycle
Super Highway to ensure that they are as safe for cyclists as they can be.
The programme will encompass some 500 junctions throughout London;
including the City

¢ TfL and the City are working on a project for Bishopsgate, which  accounts
for 10% of all casualties in the City.

e The removal of Aldgate gyratory is a key element of the Aldgate Area
Strategy.

¢ A study into the feasibility of removing the Newgate Street gyratory will be
undertaken in 2013/14.

To give a feel for the scale of this investment it is estimated that the cost of
delivery of all these physical measures will be in the region of £40-60 million
over the period of the Plan.

16. One further change that appears to have potential to significantly reduce the
number of casualties, and their severity, in the short term is the application of 20

Page 92



MPH to all streets within the City. An important recommendation of the plan is
therefore to undertake a full assessment of the costs and benefits of introducing
a 20 MPH limit. This could be complemented by finishing the courtesy crossing
programme quickly to provide a consistent design approach across the City that
reinforces considerate behaviour and reduces speed. Evidence from within
London indicates that significant reduction in casualties is delivered when
courtesy crossings are introduced.

Behaviour change

17.

The overall approach is predicated on reducing road danger through
encouraging a positive shift in road users’ behaviour — i.e. making the City a
more civilised and tolerant place for all users. This will be achieved by a
combination of enforcement and ETP initiatives together with physical changes
to the street environment to encourage driving, riding and walking behaviours
that are appropriate for the City’s busy streets. Behavioural factors, such as
inappropriate speed, lack of concentration, impairment, intolerance of other road
users and bad judgement, are the most common cause of collisions. Therefore,
a key aim of the Plan is to reduce the incidence of these behaviours and, where
they continue to occur, to reduce their adverse consequences.

The role of the Road Safety Team

18.

The activity set out in the previous Road Safety Plan had a heavy slant on
enforcement and education, training and publicity (ETP) and a focus on
improving major junctions, in the expectation that this would enable the casualty
reduction targets to be met. This has not proven to be the case and it is
therefore proposed to reduce the ETP programme by 20% and to redeploy the
saved resources on safety audits of key cycle corridors and junctions with high
levels of casualties. Successful training and enforcement programmes would
continue but would be more sharply focussed on high casualty users and
locations. We will also be increasingly focussing upon the evaluation of
programmes wherever possible to better demonstrate the cost effectiveness of
actions taken.

Research and modelling

19.

20.

21.

More research will be required to fully understand the reasons behind the
conflicts, particularly for cyclists, and make sound recommendations as to the
best interventions required to reduce collisions and casualties. There is also a
need to improve understanding of the level of existing and likely future
pedestrian activity in the City as significantly increased footway congestion is a
real possibility with potentially significant safety implications.

There is also a need to better understand the primary function of each street so
that steps can be taken to manage safety for the primary users. For example,
widened footways may be appropriate where pedestrians are the predominant
users and it may be possible to move motor vehicles away from key cycle
routes at peak times.

The action plan therefore includes the following as high priority areas for further
investigation:

° Improved causation data collection and analysis.

Page 93



o Engagement with TfL’s junction review programme.
o Examination of the road safety benefits of a City-wide 20 mph zone

. Examination of the road safety benefits of peak time priority routes for

pedestrians and cyclists

o Development of a pedestrian database and model to allow forecasting of

future pedestrian activity and the testing of potential improvement measures
such as pedestrianisation schemes and wider footways.

Partnering

22.

23.

In order to drive forward the desired reduction in casualties, it is recommended
that an annual Member-level City Road Danger Reduction meeting be held that
would include representatives from the City (Planning & Transportation and
Police Committees) and TfL. The role of the meeting would be to monitor and
challenge progress, foster partnership working and to keep the RDRP under
review and updated as necessary. It is anticipated that officers from the City, the
City Police and TfL would report on activity and outcomes for the preceding 12
months and submit a programme of action for the next 12 months. Close
engagement with TfL is important because the TLRN accounts for
approximately 50% of casualties within the City and because TfL is the primary
source of funding for highway and transport schemes within the City. As such
the City and TfL have a shared responsibility for devising and implementing
appropriate measures to meet the Mayor’s casualty reduction targets.

Close cooperation with the City Police is also very important given the
overlapping responsibilities for enforcement and ETP activity. It is therefore
proposed to also establish an officer led Road Danger Reduction Partnership to
meet on a quarterly basis and include the City Police, TfL and other interested
parties (e.g. the London Fire and Civil Defence Authority) and be chaired by the
City Corporation. This proposal is under current discussion with the City of
London Police management.

The Action Plan

24.

The action plan focuses on a limited number of key initiatives for implementation
in the short term (to December 2014) and for which funding is available either
from local risk budgets or externally such as from TfL. It also includes the
medium term (to December 2017), and the longer term (up to 2020 and
beyond). The Plan concentrates on ‘big ticket’ actions which have the potential
to deliver significant change. It will be reviewed on an annual basis and updated
as necessary to take account of progress and any changed circumstances that
may arise during the Plan period.

Page 94



25.

The action plan is summarised in the table below.

Action Expected Timeframe
outcome
Short term (to December 2014)
1. Refocus Road Safety team to conduct safety monitoring of streets within Safer 2013
the City to identify danger hotspots and possible remedial measures. streets
2. Investigate 20 mph speed limit/zone Safer 2013
streets and
people
3. Implement 20 mph speed limit/zone (depends upon the outcome of 2 Safer 2014
above) streets and
people
4. More focussed and evidence based enforcement/ETP activity, with a strong Safer ongoing
emphasis on cyclists, those on foot and motorcyclists. To include a cost people
benefit analysis based upon the promotion of safer cycling in Cheapside.
5. Investigation and development of measures for implementation in the Safer 2013
medium and longer term, including better data collection and analysis, streets
development of a pedestrian model and commencement of a programme of
street auditing looking first at junctions with high casualty rates and at least
one key cycle route across the City.
6. Implement approved engineering measures; both large and small — e.g. Safer 2014
Holborn Circus, 2-way cycling, advance cycle stop lines. streets
7. Review management of road works, temporary reinstatements and Safer 2013
construction sites, including road safety elements of the Considerate streets
Contractors scheme; to deliver better safety outcomes.
8 Review the safety aspects of the operations and contracts undertaken Safer 2013
using vehicles within the City, ensuring that all drivers are trained in relation people
to cycle safety and the fleet is fitted with appropriate safety measures such
as reverse cameras, audible warning, and ‘fresnel’ mirrors.
9. Engagement with TfL to secure improvements on the TLRN and to lobby Safer 2013
for the optimisation of signal timings to improve road safety streets
10. | Hold annual Member-level City Road Danger Reduction meeting with TfL. 2013
11. | Strengthen work with the City Police at an operational and strategic 2013
management level.
Medium term (up to December 2017)
12. | Continued enforcement and ETP activity Safer ongoing
people
13. | Continue investigation and development of measures for implementation in Safer
the longer term, including continued review of major junctions, gyratories streets
and key cycling corridors
14. | Implement measures from TfL junctions review Safer 2016
streets
15 Implement measures from Area Strategies and the review of dangerous Safer 2017
junctions and streets. e.g. Aldgate and Bank junction improvements and streets
the Fleet Street to St Paul's corridor. Seek to remove all gyratories within
the City.
16. | Complete the universal courtesy crossing programme. Safer 2015

Page 95




streets

17. | Prepare streets for major transport projects such as Crossrail and Bank Safer 2017
Station upgrade ensuring street design mitigates risks associated with streets
pedestrian congestion.
Long term (up to 2020 and beyond)

18. | Continued enforcement and ETP activity Safer ongoing

people

19. | Continued implementation of safety related measures identified in Area Safer 2020
Strategies and LIP programmes streets

20. | Change the streets to provide increased priority and safety for pedestrians Safer 2020
and cyclists, once Crossrail has opened. streets

Consultation

26.

27.

The Plan has been developed taking account of the expressed views of a wide
range of range of stakeholders. The Road Danger Reduction Plan is a non-
Statutory document and, as such, officers propose that the Plan be adopted in
principle now; so that resources can be targeted immediately towards achieving
the desired outcome of reducing casualties.

The City of London Police have been consulted in the preparation of the Plan
and this report.

Corporate & Strategic Implications

28.

29.

30.

31.

32.

The City has a statutory duty, the Road Traffic Act 1988, to promote road safety
and ensure that changes to the highway infrastructure are as safe as possible.

The City Together Strategy: The Heart of a World Class City 2008 - 2014 sets
out a priority to ‘encourage walking and cycling safely’. It highlights that there
are ‘competing interests in road usage’ and that ‘the number of cyclists is likely
to continue to grow, which is to be encouraged’. It also states that the City
should ‘encourage improvements to transport safety, especially road safety’.

The Corporate Plan 2009 - 12 states that we provide excellent services for our
community by ‘working to ensure the City residents and businesses enjoy an
environment which is safe and, as far as possible, free from risks to health and
welfare’.

The Road Danger Reduction Plan is key to one of the seven programmes in the
approved LIP 2011. It will serve, along with the other six programmes, to
deliver on LIP objective LIP 2011.3, which is "To reduce road traffic dangers
and casualties in the City, particularly fatal and serious casualties and
casualties among vulnerable road users".

There is no significant negative impact on any of the City’s equality target
groups.

Implications

33.

Preparation of the Road Danger Reduction Plan and the delivery of the

schedule of short term actions (with the exception of implementing a 20mph

zone) can be met within existinlg budggtgry and staff resources (Local and
age




34.

35.

36.

Strategic Transport Planning) although the extent of the programme under each
action heading will vary dependant upon the resources available .Therefore the
detail of each years proposed programme will be reported annually to
Committee for agreement.

The action plan is relatively high level and many of the medium and long term
proposed work streams, in particular, have not been fully costed. Some of the
actions will be funded from existing budgets but it is clear that additional funding
will be required to fully implement these measures and further work will be
undertaken to provide cost estimates and identify potential funding sources.
These might include S106 contributions, the Community Infrastructure Levy
(CIL), EU funding, private sponsorship or most likely utilise the City’s On-Street
Parking Reserve; which can be used to change the highway and traffic
infrastructure and, deliver the Mayor’s Transport Strategy.

Much of the funding from TfL for 2013/14 (circa £1M) will deliver on the safety
agenda. However, additional sources of funding may need to be sought to
undertake surveys, produce publicity and guidance materials, and, not least, to
implement any road danger reduction schemes or initiatives that may be
developed. Funding for the junctions and corridors activity is likely to total some
£40M to £60M over the life of the Plan. It is expected that most of this will be
funded from external sources; such as contributions from developments and
from Transport for London. Full implementation will necessarily be subject to the
funding constraints and priorities, both within the City of London Corporation
and of other funding partners, such as Transport for London and each proposal
contained within the Plan will need to be evaluated in the normal way, according
to the City’s project management arrangements, Standing Orders and Financial
Regulations.

Subject to Members approving the Road Danger Reduction Plan in principle a
further more detailed report would be prepared setting out the detailed delivery
plan for 2013/14.

Background Papers:

Towards a Road Safety Action Plan for London: 2020 (TfL consultation
document)

The Mayor’s Road Safety Action Plan for London: 2020 — report to Planning
and Transportation Committee (9/10/12); Streets and Walkways Committee
(15/10/12)

Road Traffic Casualties in the City — report to Streets and Walkways
Committee 16™ July 2012

Transport for London Funding 2013/14 — report to Planning and
Transportation Committee (September 2012)

Effect of Side Raised Entry Treatments on Road Safety in London, London
Road Safety Unit, Research Summary No 9 - June 2007

Appendices

Draft Road Danger Reduction Plan 2013
The supporting technical document will be available in the Members’ reading
room or on request from the contact below.

Contact:
andrew.phipps@cityoflondon.gov.uk |020 7332 3229

Page 97



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 98



DRAFT
ROAD DANGER REDUCTION PLAN

CONTENTS
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

SETTING THE SCENE
Background

About this document
Policy context

Working together

THE PROBLEM FACING THE CITY
Casualty trends in the City

Why we need to reduce casualties
Casualties by user group

OUR CURRENT APPROACH
Targets

Engineering solutions
Enforcement and ETP
Highways management
Research and data analysis

WHAT ELSE IS NEEDED?
Review of current situation
Existing research

Areas to be explored

A way forward

A NEW APPROACH
Recommended approach
Priorities and timescale
Funding options
Governance and monitoring
Partnership working
Recommended action plan

Page 99



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Total casualties for all road users in the City are less than they were ten years ago but they
are still too high and have increased over the last two years due to an increase in cyclist
casualties. The main challenge facing the City is to tackle this upturn in cyclist casualties.
There is also a need to address a recent increase in motorcyclist casualties and to continue
to improve safety for the increasing numbers of pedestrians using the City’s streets.

If nothing is done it is likely that casualties will continue to increase in connection with the
anticipated future growth in the numbers of pedestrians and cyclists using the City’s streets.
The City’s policies, such as the provision of more cycle parking, are intended to encourage
more cycling and the growth in employment and improved transport links such as Crossrail
will generate a significant increase in pedestrian movements. Action is therefore needed to
reduce the dangers on the City’s streets with a particular focus on improving conditions for
vulnerable users.

The City already has an ongoing programme of initiatives which are designed to help reduce
road casualties. These range from engineering measures through to comprehensive
programmes of road safety education, training and publicity (ETP) and enforcement. These
traditional measures have been successful in reducing casualties in the past and still have
an important part to play. However most of the easy solutions have already been tried and
the current surge in casualty numbers suggests that a more radical approach will be needed
to bring about further improvement.

No one solution is likely to solve the problem. The City is a unique environment and
solutions that work elsewhere, such as segregated routes for cyclists, may be difficult to
implement in much of the City where narrow streets predominate. Shared surfaces have
been shown to work elsewhere but in many parts of the City these would need to be
considered carefully because of the possibility of conflict, both real and perceived, between
cyclists and pedestrians.

There is some evidence that reconfiguring streets can help. For example, Cheapside was
deliberately narrowed to make cars and cyclists move together at broadly the same speed.
The design reduces the prospect of vehicles stopping on the carriageway; which limits the
risk of vehicle doors being opened in front of cyclists. All of these are behavioural issues but
they are influenced by the surrounding street environment.

This approach might be applicable elsewhere, such as Fleet Street, which experiences
relatively high casualty rates, but further evidence is needed to demonstrate that such
changes to the street layout can influence behaviour in a positive manner leading to a
reduction in casualties.

Similarly with ETP, there is little hard evidence of the impact of specific initiatives on the
number of casualties. Subject to the outcome of further research, there is in the short term a
case for reviewing the balance of ETP activity to focus on areas where positive results can
be demonstrated and redirecting some of this resource to deliver safety assessments of our
streets.

The dispersed nature of collisions across the City and the wide range of causal factors mean
that there are few obvious trends and little or no commonality between individual collisions.
This militates against blanket City-wide actions with the possible exception of a 20 mph
zone. A key element of the plan is therefore further data analysis and research to help
identify those measures with the greatest potential for casualty reduction. In particular a
fuller understanding of pedestrian and cyclist movement patterns and the impact upon these
vulnerable users of new developments in the City is necessary.

The plan proposes a multi-targeted approach in which tried and tested measures such as
engineering solutions, enforcement with education, training and publicity (ETP) are

Page 100



continued in the short term. This will be supplemented by the use of the Road Safety Team
to actively monitor safety on City streets. There will be a renewed effort to better manage our
own operations on street and to influence and manage, where possible, the safe use of the
highway by others. This monitoring activity and the subsequent actions will be reported to
the Department of the Built Environment Senior Management Team for regular review.

In the medium and longer term; traditional road safety measures will continue to have a part
to play. But, it is envisaged that achieving a significant reduction in casualties will require a
more fundamental review of the operation and management of City’s streets to reduce risks
for vulnerable road users. In some cases engineering solutions will be the answer; schemes
are in the pipeline for key junctions including Holborn Circus and Bank and the removal of
gyratories such as Aldgate and Newgate Street is being investigated because of concerns
about cyclist safety. It is fair to say that the easiest changes to the City’s highway
infrastructure have been delivered over the past 20 years. Further changes are likely to
involve sub-regional and City-wide initiatives such as reduced speed limits, out-of-hours
deliveries, restructured bus routes and the provision of high quality strategic walking and
cycle routes combined with a corridor based approach to secure improvements at the local
level. Research is needed to identify the primary users of each City street and journey
corridor. Once known we need to assess how each street can be made as safe as possible
with the primary users in mind. This may involve the establishment of a network of well
promoted parallel routes to avoid conflicts.

A key change that appears to have potential to significantly reduce the number of casualties,
and their severity, in the short term is the application of 20 MPH to all streets within the City.
An important recommendation of the plan is therefore to undertake a full assessment of the
costs and benefits of introducing a 20 MPH limit. Finishing the courtesy crossing programme
quickly would complement a 20 MPH speed limit by providing a consistent design approach
across the City that reinforces considerate behaviour and reduces speed. Evidence from
within London indicates that significant reduction in casualties is delivered when courtesy
crossings are introduced (source: Effect of Side Raised Entry Treatments on Road Safety in
London, London Road Safety Unit, Research Summary No 9 - June 2007)

The overall approach is predicated on reducing road danger through encouraging a positive
shift in road users’ behaviour — i.e. making the City a more civilised and tolerant place for all
users. This will be achieved by a combination of enforcement and ETP initiatives together
with physical changes to the street environment to encourage driving, riding and walking
behaviours that are appropriate for the City’'s busy streets. Behavioural factors, such as
inappropriate speed, lack of concentration, impairment, intolerance of other road users and
bad judgement, are the most common cause of collisions. Therefore, a key aim of the Plan is
to reduce the incidence of these behaviours by education and by removing the opportunities
for them to occur, and, where they continue to occur, to reduce their adverse consequences.
It is envisaged that setting up an annual City Road Danger Reduction meeting at a political
level with TfL would be a useful driver of improved road safety. This is considered
particularly important as approximately 50% of casualties in the City are on TfL roads and
they are a primary funding body for highway improvements.

The action plan focuses on a limited number of key initiatives for implementation in the short
term (to December 2014), the medium term (to December 2017), and the longer term (up to
2020 and beyond). The Plan concentrates on ‘big ticket’ actions which have the potential to
deliver significant change. It will be reviewed on an annual basis and updated as necessary
to take account of progress and any changed circumstances that may arise during the Plan
period.

The plan places a heavy emphasis on partnership working. In particular, delivery of the plan
will depend upon a high level of cooperation with the Police regarding ETP and enforcement
and with TfL as strategic transport authority and highway authority for strategic routes in the
City. It is therefore proposed to work with interested partners to establish a City-wide Road
Danger Reduction Partnership. It is envisaged that this partnership would meet quarterly to

Page 101



oversee the delivery of the City’s Road Danger Reduction Plan. Working closely together will
allow sharing of data, research and expertise and ensure compliance with the Mayor of
London’s policies.

This plan is supported by a separate technical document which contains more detailed
casualty data.

SETTING THE SCENE

Background

1.

The City’s previous Road Safety Plan 2007 became obsolete along with its parent plan,
the City of London Local Implementation Plan (LIP) 2007, when the new LIP 2011 was
approved by the Mayor of London. Although the LIP 2011 sets out high-level policy in
relation to road safety, including broad-brush targets around the numbers of road traffic
casualties, more needs to be done to set out the City's detailed road safety proposals.

The purpose of the Road Danger Reduction Plan (RDRP) is to update the City's road
safety proposals and present them in a single document that will fill the policy gap left
by the outdated Road Safety Plan 2007. This is supported by the Mayor of London and
Transport for London who have approved the preparation of the RDRP as a key
programme in the City’s LIP 2011.

The change of title from the previous ‘Road Safety Plan’ to ‘Road Danger Reduction
Plan’ is intended to reflect the Plan’s emphasis on addressing road dangers at source,
rather than attempting to keep vulnerable road users out of the way of that road danger
through excessive segregation.

Too often in the past, attempting to keep vulnerable road users safe has led to
inappropriate solutions such as pedestrian guard-railing and "cyclists dismount" signs
that blight the streetscape, discourage people from walking and cycling and are often
ignored or got around, making them ineffective at reducing danger and improving
safety. It is considered that calling the new plan the City's Road Danger Reduction
Plan will be an important indicator of the City’s approach to reducing road traffic
collisions and casualties.

About this document

5.

This Plan has been prepared in the light of accident analysis and best practice. Its
purpose is to reduce casualties and to fulfil the statutory duty of the City to promote
road safety under the Road Traffic Act 1988. The Plan is intended to complement the
Mayor of London’s Road Safety Action Plan: 2020 which sets out London-wide targets
and strategies for casualty reduction.

To be consistent with the Mayor’s plan, an eight year time frame has been adopted for
the RDRP extending to 2020. The proposed measures within the Plan are divided into
short (up to December 2014), medium (up to December 2017) and longer term (up to
2020 and beyond) depending upon their priority, ease of implementation and likely
funding resources.

The RDRP will be subject to regular review with annual progress reports submitted to
the City’s Streets & Walkways and Planning & Transportation Committees.

The approach to road safety in the City is being increasingly developed along the
principles of ‘Road Danger Reduction’ which is not just about casualty reduction but

Pafe 102



10.

11.

about changing attitudes to speed and the dominance of the car as an integral part of
promoting cycling and walking. It involves adopting an inclusive approach to road
safety that incorporates improvements to the highway layout to remove dangerous or
potentially dangerous situations, education and training, maintenance and
enforcement, as well as encouraging safer modes of travel and reducing conflicts
between different types of road users.

This approach depends upon a close working relationship with other relevant bodies
such as the City of London Police, schools, businesses and commercial organisations,
our neighbouring boroughs, health authorities, local voluntary groups, and road user
organisations.

The City of London supports the principles of road danger reduction which are:

e Seek a genuine reduction in danger for all users by identifying and controlling
the principal sources of threat;

e Find new measures to define ‘danger’ on our roads that will more accurately
monitor the use of and threat to benign modes;

o Discourage the unnecessary use of private motorised transport where
alternative benign modes or public transport are equally or more viable;

e Pursue a transport strategy for sustainable travel based on developing efficient,
integrated public transport systems. This would recognise that current levels of
motor traffic should not be increased; and

o Actively promote cycling and walking, which together pose relatively little threat
to the environment or other road users by taking positive and co-ordinated
action to increase the safety, priority and mobility of these benign modes.

The City of London Road Danger Reduction Plan seeks to achieve a genuine reduction
in danger for all, to make the City’s streets safer and improve the quality of life for
everyone in the City. To achieve this the City of London will address road safety in a
broader sense and it is committed to:

e Promote appropriate speeds and manage traffic better, thus benefiting the
environment by cutting traffic emissions and pollution as well as reducing
noise.

¢ Implement engineering solutions to improve safety at locations with the highest
risk, including the removal of gyratories and junction remodelling;

e Promote cycling and walking by providing traffic management solutions and
road safety education and training programmes;

o Work in partnership with the City of London Police to tackle road crime such as
careless and dangerous driving and speeding;

e Liaise closely with the City schools and their pupils, teachers and governors to
provide a road safety education and training package that will instil safe road
user attitudes and behaviour from an early age; and

o Develop City road safety publicity campaigns and tailor national campaigns to
reflect the City’s particular needs.

Page 103



12.

13.

The Plan sets out the road safety situation facing the City and reviews the City’s current
approach and performance against the key road casualty reduction targets. The Plan
identifies areas for further investigation and recommends an approach with a focus on:

e Improving safety through partnership working;
e Promoting appropriate driving, riding and walking behaviour;
¢ Protecting vulnerable road users, i.e., cyclists, pedestrians, powered two

wheeler users and children.

The Plan concludes with an implementation strategy which sets out a prioritised series
of short, medium and long term measures which are intended to improve road safety
not only at specific hotspots but also more broadly across the City highway network.

Policy context

14.

15.

16.

17.

The City has a statutory duty, the Road Traffic Act 1988, to promote road safety and
ensure that changes to the highway infrastructure are as safe as possible. This duty is
achieved through the programme of education, training and publicity (ETP) and,
through the process of design and safety auditing.

The City Together Strategy: The Heart of a World Class City 2008 - 2014 sets out a
priority to ‘encourage walking and cycling safely’. It highlights that there are ‘competing
interests in road usage’ and that ‘the number of cyclists is likely to continue to grow,
which is to be encouraged'. It also states that the City should ‘encourage improvements
to transport safety, especially road safety’.

The Corporate Plan 2009 - 12 states that we provide excellent services for our
community by ‘working to ensure the City residents and businesses enjoy an
environment which is safe and, as far as possible, free from risks to health and
welfare’.

The Road Danger Reduction Plan is key to one of the seven programmes in the
approved City of London LIP 2011. It serves, along with the other six programmes, to
deliver on LIP objective LIP 2011.3, which is "To reduce road traffic dangers and
casualties in the City, particularly fatal and serious casualties and casualties among
vulnerable road users". The LIP contains a nhumber of challenging casualty reduction
targets which are set out in paragraphs 54-57.

Working together

18.

19.

This Plan draws on the results of collaborative working with Transport for London.
Officers have been working with Transport for London and the City of London Police to
analyse and understand the full extent of the current casualty trends. This activity
culminated in a workshop on the 17" May 2012 that was also attended by key external
stakeholders. Improving road safety within central London is now on the agenda for the
Sub-Regional Transport Forum and further analysis and activity is expected to follow
the recent establishment of the Mayor of London’s Roads Task Force.

The Plan also draws on input from other stakeholders. The draft has been prepared in
consultation with the City Police and has been informed by submissions and
representations made to the City Corporation by interested individuals and groups over
recent years.

Page 104



20.

21.

The Plan is intended to complement and contribute towards the achievement of the
strategic road safety actions which are expected to be set out in the forthcoming Mayor
of London’s Road Safety Action Plan; 2020 (draft issued for consultation July 2012).

Implementation of many of the measures contained in this plan will require continued
close partnership working with a wide variety of stakeholders including local schools,
businesses and road user groups. It is proposed to facilitate partnership working by
holding an annual City Road Danger Reduction meeting at a political level with TfL and
establishing a City-wide Road Danger Reduction Partnership.

THE PROBLEM FACING THE CITY

Casualty trends in the City

22.

23.

24.

25.

Total casualties for all road users in the City are less than they were ten years ago but
they are still too high and have increased over the last two years due to an increase in
cyclist casualties. The main challenge facing the City is to tackle this upturn in overall
casualties by improving the safety of vulnerable users (cyclists, pedestrians, and
powered two-wheeler users - P2Ws) who account for the majority of casualties in the
City.

Over 300,000 people commute into the Square Mile of the City of London every day,
placing a huge demand on the public highways and on public transport. This demand
results in congestion for all and contributes to an accident record that needs to be
addressed. There has been a huge growth in the number of people cycling within the
City. It is predicted that the number of pedestrians and cyclists will continue to grow
throughout the life of this Plan because of the City’s policy of encouraging more cycling
and the growth in employment and improved transport links such as Crossrail which will
generate a significant increase in pedestrian movements.

Although casualty numbers in the City are relatively small, a disproportionately high
number of cyclists and pedestrians are involved in collisions compared to the Inner
London Boroughs. Pedestrians make up around 26% of all of the City’s casualties,
compared with a 20% average for Inner London. Cyclists make up around 28% of all of
the City’s casualties, as against 12% for Inner London.

To give an overview of casualties in the City, Figure 1 illustrates the numbers over the
last 11 years from 2000 to 2011.

Page 105



FIGURE 1 - TOTAL CASUALTIES IN THE CITY 2000-2011

Oslight Oserious Mfatal

500

4 2
450 H
42 52 3 0
400 ] - | a8 1 1 2 2 1 2
350 H L L 1 3 60 ||| 46 ||| 49 3 40 |||
41 o 43
1] | | | 36 | | || | || || || |
Cas?i%tes
250 11 R R R o R o R o R o R
1| 412 || 408 || ||| i ||| i ||| i ||| i |||
200 374 360
328 333 328 339
150 H ax ax - 291 [+ 299 [ 308 | a s - 297 | o
100 N N N N N N N N N N N
50 11 N N N N N N N N N N N
0
2000 2001 2002 2003 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 2010 2011

26. It can be seen that whilst the number of casualties per year has varied over time, there
has been a significant recent overall increase. Total casualties in 2011 were 409 (the
last full year of data). This is a rise of 7% over 2010.

27. The number of slight injuries increased to 360 in 2011. Serious casualties increased to
49 in 2011. Fatalities have remained low, with none occurring last year.

28. In 2011 vulnerable road users accounted for the vast majority of the 49 KSI casualties
in the City. The relative split amongst user groups is:

Pedal cyclists 47%
Pedestrians 24%
Powered two Wheelers 27 %
Vehicle occupants 2%

29. The significant increase in casualties arises from collisions involving cyclists. However,
there has been a dramatic increase in cyclist numbers in recent years.

30. The nature of the City, with its relatively narrow highways and huge daily flows of
commuters, leads to a street environment that provides a recipe for collisions,
especially for these vulnerable users. Street users often call for separation or
segregation but the historic evolution of the City’'s streets means that most of the
streets are not wide enough to allow segregation, nor of a regular enough width to
provide a consistent design solution.

31. The streets managed by Transport for London are generally wider and could deliver
segregation and more consistent infrastructure. Transport for London are responsible
for 10% of the streets within the City. However, these streets carry approximately 50%
of the traffic and account for approximately 50% of the casualties. An analysis shows
that the number of KSI casualties is shared equally between the City’s and TfL’s
streets. Pedestrian casualties occur more on the City’s streets. Cyclist casualties are

Pa8e 106



32.

shared equally. Powered two wheeler casualties occur more on TfL'’s streets. It is clear
that both Highway Authorities have a significant role to play in reducing casualties
within the City of London but that the emphasis for each may be slightly different.
Transport for London have a second key role to play in exercising their powers under
the Traffic Management Act in such a way that they allow their own organisation and
the City to introduce those changes to the highway that are able to deliver significant
safety benefits.

The Road Danger Reduction Plan sets out targets and actions to address the City’s
road safety issues and to meet the requirements under the Mayor’s Transport Strategy.
Put very simply, if we are to meet the Mayor’s targets by 2020 the annual number of
casualties within the City needs to be reduced by 150 and the KSI casualties need to
reduce by 25 from the 2011 situation.

Why we need to reduce casualties

33.

34.

35.

36.

37.

Road deaths and injury have a devastating impact on the people directly involved, as
well as their families, the wider community and society. It is imperative that the road
safety community takes action to reduce the number of casualties.

Collisions also have a serious detrimental impact on the economy in terms of lost
output, medical and ambulance costs, human costs, police costs, insurance and
property damage. They also have a major detrimental impact on traffic flow: increasing
congestion, reducing capacity, lengthening journey times, worsening journey time
reliability and affecting the resilience of the City’s road network

Making roads safer can yield other benefits. More people may be encouraged to walk
and cycle if they perceive these ways of travelling to be safe, bringing environmental
and health benefits.

The trend of increasing cycling casualties will, if unabated, result in the City not
achieving casualty reduction targets. The key target, for London and nationally, is the
reduction of casualties where people are killed or seriously injured (KSI). Within
London, the vulnerable user groups of pedestrians, cyclists and powered two wheel
riders comprise 76% of the KSI total, which is high by national standards. Within the
City, the percentage is even higher. 98% of those killed or seriously injured in 2011
were vulnerable users.

The casualty situation within the City is unique. Activity over the last decade has made
the streets safer for most users. However, the need to make the streets much safer for
all means that there is a need to do something different and significant if the target
reduction in casualties is to be met.

Casualties by user groups

38.

Figure 2 shows the 2011 casualty numbers for the various categories of user;
compared to the 2004 — 2008 average figures which form the base line for the LIP
casualty reduction targets.

Page 107



1

1

1

1

Casualties|

60

40

20

00

80 ~

60

40 ~

20 +

39.

40.

41.

FIGURE 2 - TYPES OF CASUALTIES: 2004-2008 AVERAGE AND 2011

[02004-2008 average 2011

149

106
99 ] 98

82

71

LY

23 22

L || —. 16 16 , .

cyclist pedestrian powered two car bus or coach taxi goods vehicle
wheeler

All casualties to cyclists increased in 2011 to 149. This shows a significant rise when
compared to the 2004/8 average of 99. It is evident that the growth in casualty numbers
is due to the growth of cycling and the consequential increase in collisions involving
cyclists. The rate of increase in cyclist casualties is therefore approximately the same
as the increase in the number of cyclists which increased from 15,000 per day in 2005
to 24000 in 2010.

All casualty rates for other user groups have declined with the exception of marginal
increases in the car and goods vehicle categories though there has been an increase in
P2W KSiIs (see paragraph 50). .

The main challenge facing the City is therefore to tackle the upturn in cyclist casualties
whilst maintaining the downward trend in other casualties, particularly pedestrians and
powered two wheeler users which still account for a disproportionate number of
casualties.

Cyclists

42.

43.

Cyclist casualties in the City have been increasing since 2007. This figure continues to
increase and in 2011 there were 23 KSI casualties. Looking at the proportion and types
of traffic involved in accidents; cyclists, who make up only 9% of the total traffic
composition, comprise 28% of all the casualties and 47% of KSls, a disproportionately
high figure.

Research undertaken by the City and TfL has identified the following key issues:

e There has been an increase in casualties, reflecting the growth in levels of
cycling.

e Initial findings from TfL analysis of the Mayor's Cycle Hire scheme (CHS)

indicates that the rate of collisions is far lower amongst CHS users compared
with cyclists in general.

Palde 108




e The number of casualties reflects AM and PM peaks suggesting traffic
volumes are a factor. There is a further evening peak in casualties.

e Taxis and goods vehicles are disproportionately represented in collision data.
e The largest increase in casualties has been seen on City-managed roads.

e 84% of casualties are involved in collisions at intersections or junctions. This
is in line with the Greater London average.

e Collisions are more likely to occur in the middle of junctions rather than on
their approaches.

e Failure to see a cyclist appears to be a significant causal factor.

e The main contributory factors identified in cyclist casualties are “turning right”,
“changing lanes”, “opening vehicle doors” and “undertaking of large vehicles
turning left across cyclists path”. The last factor being the most significant in

KSI casualties.

Pedestrians

44,

45.

46.

47.

48.

Data on pedestrian numbers and movements in the City is patchy and further research
is urgently needed to provide a definitive picture of current and future levels of
pedestrian activity across the City. It is known, however, from anecdotal evidence and
studies of certain hotspots such as Liverpool Street Station that many footways are
already at or over capacity at peak times with resultant implications for road safety.

The City’s daytime population is expected to increase from 340,000 people in 2011 to
423,000 people in 2021 due to increased employment opportunities and improved
transport links such as Crossrail. The LIP target is to increase the number of
pedestrians by 10% by October 2013. This level of increase will require a significant
improvement in pedestrian facilities to ensure a safe and pleasant walking
environment.

Pedestrian casualties in the City have presented a mixed picture with numbers
fluctuating. However, 2011 saw a reduction to 12 KSI casualties.

There is no evidence to suggest that total (or KSI) pedestrian casualties have
increased over the last 10 years. However, the challenge will be to secure further
reductions in the number of casualties in the face of increased numbers of pedestrians.
Data analysis shows the following key findings:

e A decline in casualties until 2003-04, followed by a fluctuating pattern .

e There may be a proportionately greater risk for pedestrians on the TLRN,
although further research is required to explore this.

e The City experiences considerable over-crowding of footways, particularly at
peak times, with pedestrians stepping onto the carriageway.

e There appears to be clusters of casualties in the immediate area surrounding
main stations.

e Goods vehicles, coaches and buses are disproportionately involved in
collisions.

Page 109



e A high number of cyclists are involved in collisions, which if tackled, could
reduce pedestrian and cyclist casualty rates in the City.

e Pedestrians are more often a casualty when first stepping off the footway and
evidently fail to look properly.

e There appears to be a disproportionate number of collisions between
pedestrians and buses/coaches and P2Ws which requires further analysis.

o ‘“Pedestrian inattention” has been identified as the main contributory factor for
pedestrian casualties.

Powered two-wheeler users

49.

There were 13 KSI motorcyclist casualties in 2011, the highest figure since prior to
2001, and after a steady reduction to two in 2010. So far there have been five
motorcyclists seriously injured in 2012. As 72 per cent of motorcyclists were injured due
to the actions of other road users, a significant reduction in motorcyclist casualties will
only be achieved by addressing the behaviour of other road users, particularly car, taxi,
and goods vehicle drivers and by increasing motorcyclists’ awareness of other road
users. The most common causes of a motorcyclist being injured are pedestrian lack of
attention, motor vehicles turning right across their path, and vehicles U turning.

Children

50.

51.

The City has a very low child population and only five schools. The number of child
casualties is low. Three children were slightly injured in 2011 and three in 2010. There
were no fatalities

The Road Safety Team has provided a comprehensive programme of road safety
education in the City’s schools in accordance with the City’s statutory duty to promote
road safety. This is very well received by the participating schools and assists with
ensuring that casualties remain at a low level.

Other road users

52.

In 2011 vehicle occupants accounted for only 2% of KSI casualties in the City. Because
the numbers involved are so small and geographically dispersed it is difficult to devise
effective remedial measures to specifically address these casualties. Given the need to
make best use of limited resources the focus of the RDRP is necessarily directed
towards the much higher level of casualties amongst vulnerable road users. That said,
many of the measures within the Plan will also benefit vehicle occupants by providing a
generally safer environment for all road users and encouraging driving, riding and
walking behaviours which reduce the risk of collisions.

OUR CURRENT APPROACH

53.

The City’s approach to date has encompassed targets, engineering solutions, ETP,
enforcement, highways management, research and data analysis. In overall terms
these initiatives have contributed to a general reduction in casualties over the last ten
years, apart from the recent increase in cycling casualties. However, whilst the overall
programme can be considered successful it is not possible to identify which initiatives
have delivered the biggest benefits in terms of casualty reduction because of the
difficulty in gathering accurate evidence of the impact of many of the measures. In the
future greater emphasis will be given to project evaluation wherever practicable and it
will be important to quantify the relative contribution of individual measures so that
resources can be directed towards those measures that will be most effective in

reducing casualties.
Palge 110



Targets

54.

55.

56.

57.

A key tool in the City’s efforts to reduce casualties has been the adoption of highly
challenging targets in order to drive forward action and assist in monitoring progress.

The current LIP 2011 has targets to reduce casualties over time. The 2013 target is to
reduce the number of persons killed or seriously injured in road traffic collisions to a
three-year rolling average of 39.1 casualties per annum. This represents a reduction of
20.9% from the 2004—2008 average of 49.4 casualties per annum.

The 2013 target for the total number of persons injured in road traffic collisions is a
reduction to a three-year rolling average of 322.5 casualties per annum by 2013. This
represents a reduction of 12.5% from the 2004—-2008 average of 368.6 casualties per
annum.

The long term target is to reduce the number of persons killed or seriously injured to a
three year rolling average of 24.7 by 2020 and to reduce the total number of persons
injured to a three year rolling average of 258 by 2020.

Engineering solutions

58.

59.

60.

Over the last 10 years, the traffic management regime within the City has remained
relatively stable but gradual changes have been introduced to address specific road
safety issues. The introduction of the Western Traffic and Environment Zone and
Congestion Charging, both in 2003, reduced traffic levels in the City and allowed some
reallocation of road capacity to improve conditions for pedestrians and cyclists.
Functional safety orientated changes have been made to streets like Ludgate Hill,
junctions like London Wall/Moorgate and at the gyratory system by Mansion House
Tube Station which was removed in 2010. City-wide action programmes such as the
removal of guardrailing and introducing two way cycling on one way streets have also
taken place. The two way cycling programme is still active and further streets will be
changed. Monitoring confirms no reported casualties as a result of these programmes.

Many of the changes to the highway infrastructure have been driven by funding from
developments, often branded as environmental enhancement projects, but which also
seek to address road safety as an important consideration. During the early part of the
last decade, this activity took place on the local access streets; which have always
been relatively safe. During recent years, major environmental enhancement has taken
place on more major streets such as Cheapside and St Paul’'s Churchyard.

As over recent years, there are currently a number of active major schemes which seek
to improve road safety at key casualty locations, with a particular focus on major
junctions, corridors and the remaining two City gyratories because of concerns about
cyclist safety:

¢ Strategy consultation is on-going for Bank Junction.

¢ Holborn Circus is being prepared for implementation in 2012/13

e A strategy is being initiated to deal with the key corridor of Fleet Street and Ludgate
Hill.

o TfL officers are reviewing their whole highway network and every Cycle Super
Highway to ensure that they are as safe for cyclists as they can be. The programme
will encompass some 500 junctions throughout London; including the City

¢ TfL and the City are working on a project for Bishopsgate, which accounts for 10% of

all casualties in the City.
Palge 111



e The removal of Aldgate gyratory is a key element of the Aldgate Area Strategy.

e A study into the feasibility of removing the Newgate Street gyratory will be
undertaken in 2013/14.

Enforcement and ETP

61.

62.

63.

64.

65.

66.

Extensive, respected and award winning programmes of enforcement, education,
training and publicity have been delivered over the last five years. Much of this activity
has been copied and used by Transport for London and the Metropolitan Police
throughout central London.

The Road Safety Team has expanded their activity and delivers a full and demanding
programme to the highest standards. All campaigns and activity have been delivered in
accordance with the previous Road Safety Plan. The messaging and deployment of
their resources is driven by data analysis covering a period of several years. The core
activity has been to focus on pedestrian and cyclist campaigns.

Their current focus has been on education and publicity activity. Through this activity,
the team has engaged with school children, residents, businesses and workers, drivers,
cyclists and pedestrians. During the Olympic and Paralympic period, activity was
focussed exclusively on tourist and cyclist safety. Much of this activity is delivered
jointly with the Police.

The team analyses causative data and shapes their programmes accordingly. This is
an ongoing process and 2011 data will be used to shape the 2013/14 programme.

Typically, the Police and the Road Safety Team work on joint activity for one day a
week. For example, within May 2012, the Police conducted five different operations.
Four of these focussed on public safety with one (Atrium) in particular focussing on
reducing fatalities and serious injury collisions involving cyclists. Over 200 fixed penalty
notices were issued and over 100 people attended the road show as a result and had
their notice cancelled.

The Road Safety Team and the City of London Police have enjoyed very good joint
operational working for many years. Senior managers are now building upon this work
and improving the sharing of data and strategy development. Regular meetings are
now being held with the Police to drive the casualty reduction programme.

Highways management

67.

68.

69.

There are always considerable amounts of utility and building site activity in the City of
London which, if not properly managed, can increase risks for road users. Over 20
utilities have active plant under the highway, and around 5,000 individual excavations
are permitted to take place each year to install, repair or replace that equipment.

The City undertakes regular monitoring of all streetworks under by the New Roads and
Street Works Act 1981, and officers report defects to the responsible utility company for
them to remedy. Defects reported to the City by the public or the police are also
investigated and then passed to the appropriate utility for appropriate action. If deemed
to be dangerous, the City can require the utility to make safe any defect in signing,
lighting and guarding without delay. Having said this the importance of well managed
street works is such that a further review is proposed to ensure all is being done to
make sure street works do not unnecessarily add to road danger.

In addition there are typically over 50 major long-term building sites located in the City
during the course of any one year. Building site activity is typically regulated by British
Standards, Euro Codes and various pieces of national and European legislation, but in

Pade 112



70.

71.

addition, building sites are provided with well-established guidance on the standards
the City expects to be delivered in terms of scaffolds, hoardings, lighting, cranes, road
closures and street cleanliness. This is in order to ensure that important development
activity can still take place whilst maintaining a safe environment for the many
thousands of people who use our streets every day. Licences and permissions granted
by the City for various site activities are typically based on this guidance, with the
primary considerations being those of safety and reasonableness.

The City also has its own Considerate Contractor Scheme for utilities, contractors and
building sites which is now in its 25th year. The scheme is intended to promote care
and consideration by contractors in terms of their public-facing activities, and we
believe it has played an essential part in keeping the City a safer and more pleasant
place to live and work. It is now proposed to review this scheme and our inspection
protocols to see if more can be done to improve road safety.

Cleanliness and street cleansing operations are another consideration in delivering a
safe street environment. A recent example of the City’s pro-active approach towards
improving the highway environment is the ban on putting out bagged waste for
collection during the working day. This has contributed to danger reduction by reducing
obstruction of the footway and reducing the need for pedestrians to walk in the
carriageway and moving waste collection traffic away from peak travel times.

Research and data analysis

72.

73.

74.

75.

76.

77.

78.

To address collision problems on the City’s streets an understanding is needed of
which road users are involved, where collisions are happening, the timing of casualties
and what factors are causing or contributing to collisions. With this understanding,
interventions can be selected which are most likely to address the casualty problem.

The Accident Statistics Casualty Database (ACCSTATS) is compiled by the London
Road Safety Unit within Transport for London from police collision reports. There are
some gaps in the data collected but these statistics still provide a significant amount of
information about the reasons why collisions occurred and the contributory factors
leading to them.

The City Police use these statistics to produce a monthly Collision and Casualty
Intelligence Report which includes a detailed analysis of the causes of collisions and is
used in planning future education and enforcement initiatives.

Studies have also been undertaken by the City and TfL to provide a greater
understanding of the causes of collisions, particularly those involving pedestrians and
cyclists.

In 2009 Steer Davies and Gleave completed a study for the City which included a
detailed analysis of the causation factors of collisions resulting in injuries to cyclists and
pedestrians.

A joint City/TfL Road Safety Study was undertaken in 2012 which sought to analyse
and explain current trends, patterns and causes of collisions and casualties in the City.
This included research into casualty and collision trends in Greater London and the City
of London; with a particular focus on causation factors.

TfL has also commissioned two reports from the Transport Research Laboratory (TRL)
which analyse Metropolitan and City Police collision files for pedal cyclist and
pedestrian fatalities in London and provide a more detailed insight into causation
factors. The reports also put forward possible interventions that might have reduced
the number or severity of casualties.

Pade 113



79.

The results of these studies have been taken into account in preparing this plan and
the key findings are summarised in the separate supporting technical document. One of
the key actions in this Plan is to continue to use the resources available to the Police,
TfL and the experts at the Transport Research Laboratory to regularly monitor
collisions and casualties in the City with a particular focus on causation factors.

WHAT ELSE IS NEEDED?

Review of current situation

80.

81.

82.

83.

The City has already implemented many of the easier and more obvious measures to
improve road safety but casualties are still occurring. In line with the City’s policy of
encouraging sustainable forms of travel, a huge and increasing number of cyclists are
now using the City’s streets. This has been accompanied by an increase in the number
of cyclist casualties. There is little discernable change in the number of casualties for
any of the other user groups except for a recent upturn in P2W KSIs. Pedestrian KSls
appear to show a trend of improvement which needs to be maintained.

The task is now to reverse the increase in cyclist and P2W casualties and to maintain
the improvement in the casualty rates for other road users.

The activity set out in the previous Road Safety Plan had a heavy slant on enforcement
and education, training and publicity (ETP) and a focus on improving major junctions, in
the expectation that this would enable the casualty reduction targets to be met. This
has not proven to be the case and additional actions have therefore been included in
this plan to develop a more effective strategy. We still believe there is a place for ETP
and work to improve junctions but this will be supplemented by other measures such as
corridor studies, the removal of gyratories and improved management of the City’s
streets.

Devising a cost-effective action plan that will deliver tangible results in a realistic
timescale needs to take account of several key factors:

There is a lack of detailed data on the causes of many collisions making it difficult to
devise appropriate remedial measures with confidence of the outcome;

There is a lack of evidence as to the effectiveness of many of the traditional ETP
measures for addressing road safety problems;

By their very nature, there is a lack of evidence that innovative measures will deliver
desired outcomes;

Although there are some concentrations of casualties, many are dispersed across
the City meaning that targeting action at specific locations will only address a small
proportion of potential future casualties.

Many potential measures such as revised highway layouts or radical strategies to
restrict certain classes of vehicle in certain areas are likely to have long lead-in times
to allow for planning, design, consultation, approval and funding.

Limited funding and staff resources will affect the pace of delivery.

Approximately 50% of casualties occur on the TLRN for which TfL is the highway
authority rather than the City.

EU and national Government initiatives to deliver innovative solutions such as
advanced emergency braking systems and improved vehicle designs are likely to
have a minimal impact on casualty rates in the short to medium term. This means

Page 114



84.

85.

86.

87.

88.

89.

90.

that the City must continue to rely largely on its own local initiatives to deliver
casualty reductions.

The City already has an ongoing programme of initiatives which are designed to help
reduce road casualties. These range from engineering measures through to
comprehensive programmes of road safety education, training and publicity (ETP) and
enforcement. These traditional measures have been successful in reducing casualties
in the past and still have a part to play. However most of the easy solutions have
already been tried and the current surge in casualty numbers suggests that a more
radical approach will be needed to effect further improvement.

No one solution is likely to solve the problem. The dispersed nature of collisions across
the City and the wide range of causal factors mean that there are few obvious trends
and little or no commonality between individual collisions. This militates against blanket
City-wide actions with the possible exception of a 20 mph zone.

The City Corporation and City Police analyse casualty data on a regular basis to
identify trends and assist in developing remedial measures. The City has also
undertaken various studies to help identify the effectiveness of various measures as
tools for reducing casualties such as the impact of courtesy crossings. However, the
City is a unique environment and solutions that work elsewhere, such as segregated
routes for cyclists, may be difficult to implement in much of the City where narrow
streets predominate. Shared surfaces have been shown to work elsewhere but in many
parts of the City these would need to be considered carefully because of the possibility
of conflict, both real and perceived, between cyclists and pedestrians.

There is some evidence that reconfiguring streets can help. For example, Cheapside
was deliberately narrowed to make cars and cyclists move together at broadly the
same speed. The design reduces the prospect of vehicles stopping on the carriageway;
which limits the risk of vehicle doors being opened in front of cyclists. All of these are
behavioural issues but they are influenced by the surrounding street environment

This approach might be applicable elsewhere, such as Fleet Street, but further
evidence is needed to demonstrate that such changes to the street layout can influence
behaviour in a positive manner leading to a reduction in casualties.

Similarly with ETP, there is little hard evidence of the impact of specific initiatives on the
number of casualties. There is therefore a case for reviewing the balance of ETP
activity to focus on areas where positive results can be demonstrated.

A key element of the plan is therefore further data analysis and research to help identify
those measures with the greatest potential for casualty reduction. Some work is already
underway, as follows:

Existing research

91.

92.

The City has recently completed an assessment of the effectiveness of courtesy
crossings which has shown that such measures can have a beneficial impact on driver
behaviour. Evidence from within London indicates that significant reduction in
casualties is delivered when courtesy crossings are introduced (source: Effect of Side
Raised Entry Treatments on Road Safety in London, London Road Safety Unit,
Research Summary No 9 - June 2007)

A study of pedestrian activity at Bank junction has demonstrated the determination of
pedestrians to walk along desire lines. This provides a powerful indication that
pedestrians will be reluctant to use facilities that require deviation from their preferred
routes and suggests that innovative solutions will be required such as the diagonal
crossings recently installed at Oxford Circus.

Pade 115



93.

94.

95.

A study is to be undertaken in 2013 to assess whether the Cheapside improvements
have delivered the anticipated reduction in traffic speeds, improved road safety,
improved cycling facilities and improved environment as set out in the initial scheme
objectives. This will this will provide valuable lessons for the design of future corridor
improvement schemes.

A campaign is to be undertaken in 2013 to encourage better positioning of pedal cycles
and motor vehicles on the carriageway in Cheapside.

Stage 3 safety audits are routinely undertaken on the completion of highway schemes
but more needs to be done to harness the results and to share learning about the
impact of highway infrastructure changes on road safety.

Areas to be explored

96.

Other key questions that need to be addressed are set out below and a forward
research programme is included in paragraph 108;

Research is needed to identify the primary users of each City street and journey
corridor. Once known we need to assess how each street can be made as safe as
possible with the primary users in mind. This may involve the establishment of a
network of well promoted parallel routes to avoid conflicts..

In many parts of the City there is a level of footway crowding that encourages walking
in the road. Is it possible to resolve the problem of pedestrian inattention or is it
necessary to focus more on wider footways to avoid people casually stepping into the
carriageway due to congested footways?

What percentage of collisions in the City involve a vehicle travelling over 20 mph?

To what degree do dedicated cycle lanes reduce casualties?

Does the shared space concept deliver significant safety benefits in the City context?

What is the relative value of painted cycle lanes versus physical separation
measures?

Can ACCSTATS data be made more helpful — could we capture more?

In view of current casualty rates, should cyclists have priority over other road users?
What is the nature of pedestrian activity in the City and how will it intensify with future
employment growth and the opening of major transport infrastructure such as

Crossrail and the upgrade of bank station?

What are the road safety benefits of peak time priority routes for pedestrians and
cyclists?

A way forward

97.

98.

Although there are shortcomings of existing data and many unanswered questions this
does not mean that we can afford to stop work and await the results of further research.
The way forward must involve a mix of continuing doing things and collecting more
evidence to help target actions as effectively as possible in the future.

Sharpening the focus of future interventions will depend upon being able to predict
more accurately where, when and why casualties occur and having better evidence of
the relative effectiveness of potential remedial measures. This will require improved

Pade 116



data collection and forecasting tools with a specific focus on vulnerable road users. A
particular requirement is for a pedestrian model of the City to allow the modelling of
future pedestrian activity and assist with targeting road danger reduction measures at
pedestrian hotspots.

A NEW APPROACH

Recommended approach

99.

100.

101.

102.

103.

In view of these factors, a multi-targeted approach is recommended in which tried and
tested measures such as engineering solutions, enforcement and ETP are continued in
the short term. This will be supplemented by the use of the Road Safety Team to
actively monitor safety on streets within the City. There will be a renewed effort to
better manage our own operations on street and to influence and manage, where
possible, the safe use of the highway by others. This will include a safety training
programme targeted at the drivers of City contract vehicles. This monitoring activity and
the subsequent actions will be reported to the Department of the Built Environment
Senior Management Team for regular review.

It is proposed to reduce the ETP programme by 20% and to redeploy the saved
resources on safety audits of key cycle corridors and junctions with high levels of
casualties. Successful training and enforcement programmes would continue but would
be more sharply focussed on high casualty users and locations. The implementation of
engineering measures would continue where evidence of effectiveness already exists.
In parallel, further research would be undertaken into causation factors and the
effectiveness of alternative measures and strategies with a view to devising a more
radical agenda for the medium and longer term.

In the medium and longer term traditional road safety measures will continue to have a
part to play but it is envisaged that achieving a significant reduction in casualties will
require a more fundamental review of the operation and management of City’s streets
to reduce risks for vulnerable road users. This is likely to involve sub-regional and City-
wide initiatives such as reduced speed limits, out-of-hours deliveries, restructured bus
routes and the provision of high quality strategic walking and cycle routes combined
with a corridor based approach to secure improvements at the local level. A key
change that appears to have potential to reduce casualties and their severity in the
short term is the application of 20 MPH to all streets within the City. A study of the
benefits and weaknesses of such an approach is therefore proposed as part of the
forward research programme.

The overall approach is predicated on reducing road danger through encouraging a
positive shift in road users’ behaviour — i.e. making the City a more civilised and
tolerant place for all users. This will be achieved by a combination of enforcement and
ETP initiatives together with physical changes to the street environment to encourage
driving, riding and walking behaviours that are appropriate for the City’s busy streets.
Behavioural factors, such as inappropriate speed, lack of concentration, impairment,
intolerance of other road users and bad judgement, are the most common cause of
collisions. Therefore, a key aim of the Plan is to reduce the incidence of these
behaviours and, where they continue to occur, to reduce their adverse consequences.

It is not realistic to expect engineering solutions to eradicate casualties by themselves.
Analysis of collision data, particularly the location data, shows that most accidents do
not occur at particular major junctions, nor do they appear to be associated with any
particular street configuration. Therefore, whilst work to improve junctions needs to
continue this will not provide the step change in reducing cyclist and other casualties
that is needed.

Page 117



104.

105.

106.

107.

108.

All this points to the need to look at the nature of particular streets and to devise
bespoke measures to suit local conditions. For example, Cheapside was deliberately
narrowed to make cars and cyclists move together at broadly the same speed. The
design reduces the prospect of vehicles stopping on the carriageway; which limits the
risk of vehicle doors being opened in front of cyclists. All of these are behavioural
issues but they are influenced by the surrounding street environment. This adds weight
to the corridor based approach.

There may also be a case for introducing specific measures at peak times when there
is a definite spike in the number of collisions and casualties. Enforcement and ETP
activity is already targeted at these times but further measures such as restrictions on
the use of certain streets by certain classes of vehicle at peak times warrant
consideration. This could potentially provide greater priority and safety by reducing
some of the conflicts which increase the risk of collisions.

Achieving the City’s casualty targets will be heavily dependent upon reducing
casualties on the TLRN. A key element of City’s approach will therefore be to continue
to lobby and encourage TfL to address problem locations on the TLRN and, as far as
resources allow, to work in partnership with TfL to develop and deliver appropriate
solutions. The main focus of the City’s own efforts and investment will inevitably be
directed to those streets for which the City is the highway authority but the City’s
enforcement and ETP initiatives will also benefit users of the TLRN.

More research will be required to fully understand the reasons behind the conflicts,
particularly for cyclists, and make sound recommendations as to the best interventions
required to reduce collisions and casualties. There is also a need to improve
understanding of the level of existing and likely future pedestrian activity in the City as
significantly increased footway congestion is a real possibility with potentially significant
safety implications. The action plan therefore includes the following as high priority
areas for further investigation:

o Improved causation data collection and analysis.
o Engagement with TfL’s junction review programme.
o Examination of the road safety benefits of a City-wide 20 mph zone

o Examination of the road safety benefits of peak time priority routes for
pedestrians and cyclists

o Development of a pedestrian database and model to allow forecasting of future
pedestrian activity and the testing of potential improvement measures such as
pedestrianisation schemes and wider footways.

The delivery of change will almost certainly require an even more effective working
partnership; involving the City, the Police, Transport for London and the campaign/user
groups. It is therefore proposed to establish a City-wide Road Danger Reduction
Partnership which it is envisaged will meet quarterly to oversee the delivery of this plan.
Furthermore it is proposed that an annual review meeting is established at a political
level with TfL given their important role in supporting casualty reduction generally and
on their network within the City in particular.

Priorities and timescale

109.

The action plan focuses on a limited number of key initiatives for implementation in the
short term (to December 2014), the medium term (to December 2017), and the longer
term (up to 2020 and beyond). The action plan concentrates on ‘big ticket’ actions

Palje 118



which have the potential to deliver significant change. It will be reviewed on an annual
basis and updated as necessary to take account of progress and any changed
circumstances that may arise during the Plan period.

Short term (to December 2014)

110.

111.

112.

113.

114.

115.

116.

117.

The lead-in times for designing and securing approvals and funding for engineering
measures are such that there is little scope for implementing major new schemes in the
short term, other than those which have already been approved such as Holborn
Circus. The number of casualties means that there is an urgent need for action but we
need to avoid simply implementing hastily devised measures which may not deliver the
desired casualty reductions.

It is recommended therefore that the short term focus should be on measures that have
the potential to encourage City-wide behaviour change and thereby reduce the
incidence and impacts of collisions. Because of the dispersed nature of collisions
across the City, the biggest potential benefit will be achieved from measures that can
be applied on a City-wide basis. These will need to be measures that can be introduced
with a minimum of delay so as to tackle the rising cycle casualty problem as soon as
possible.

The key action is the completion of the 20 mph speed limit investigation which has
already been approved by Members.

The approved LIP 2011 includes a proposal for the ‘Investigation of the benefits and
disbenefits of a 20 mph speed limit or a 20 mph zone across the City, preferably
including the Transport for London road network’. This investigation is due to be
completed by late summer 2013 and will provide a thorough assessment of the
implications of introducing such a measure in terms of road safety, environmental,
traffic and other relevant factors. Depending upon the outcome of the investigations it
would be possible to introduce such a 20 mph limit or zone during 2014 subject to
funding.

Continued enforcement and ETP activity will also be an important means of
encouraging behaviour change and it is recommended that where possible additional
resources be devoted to allow the development of new harder-hitting campaigns, the
deployment of road safety marshals at main stations and the provision of cycle
awareness training for commercial vehicle, taxi and private hire drivers.

A large part of the short term programme will be devoted to the investigation and
development of measures for implementation in the medium and longer term. This will
include working with the City Police to improve the coverage and quality of ACCSTATS
data to allow for a better understanding of the causes of collisions and participation in
TfL’s junction review programme. Reducing road danger will also be integral part of the
City’s Area Strategies which will be completed during 2013 and will contain proposals
for implementation in the medium and longer term.

The short term will see the continuation of various approved road safety programmes
including the near-universal provision of advanced stop lines (ASLs) for cyclists and the
expansion of two-way working for cyclists.

There will also be an increased focus on devising appropriate highway management
measures to ameliorate the potential risks associated with road works, temporary utility
reinstatements and construction projects. This will include a review of the City’s
Considerate Contractor scheme to encourage the adoption of safe driving techniques
and appropriate vehicle safety devices.

Pade 119



118.

119.

There will be a continuing need for engagement with TfL to secure improvements on
the TLRN and to lobby for the optimisation of signal timings throughout the City of
London to improve road safety.

In order to drive forward the desired reduction in casualties, it is recommended that an
annual Member-level City Road Danger Reduction meeting be held that would include
representatives from the City (Planning & Transportation and Police Committees) and
TfL. The role of the meeting would be to monitor and challenge progress, foster
partnership working and to keep the RDRP under review and updated as necessary. It
is anticipated that officers from the City, the City Police and TfL would report on activity
and outcomes for the preceding 12 months and submit a programme of action for the
next 12 months. It is also proposed that this Plan would be monitored by an officer led
City-wide Road Danger Reduction Partnership including the City Corporation, the City
of London Police, TfL and other interested parties.

Medium term (up to December 2018)

120.

121.

122.

123.

124.

The main challenge in the medium term is likely to be ensuring safety for an increasing
number of cyclists in the City. The medium term programme will build upon the
foundations established by the short term research, scheme development and Area
Strategy work which is either currently underway or still to be commenced. It will also
be heavily influenced by whether or not a 20 mph speed limit or zone is in place. As a
consequence the precise range of medium term initiatives cannot be finalised at this
stage but it is likely that the key components will comprise some or all of the following:

Continued enforcement and ETP activity will be an essential ongoing component of the
RDRP strategy. Maintaining and reinforcing appropriate behaviours will continue to be
important though the precise measures to be used will depend upon the particular
circumstances pertaining at the time.

It is likely that there will be a number of potential engineering measures for
implementation at specific hotspots following completion of TfL’s junction review.

The various Area Strategies will have been adopted and are likely to include a series of
measures to improve the safety and operation of key junctions and corridors, such as
the removal of one-way working and full or partial pedestrianisation schemes. Thus a
key feature of the medium term is likely to be the implementation of major
improvements at locations such as Aldgate and Bank junction.

The existing courtesy crossings (raised entry treatments) in the City have proved very
effective in reducing vehicle speeds and reducing risk for pedestrians. A programme of
introducing these crossings at most junctions in the City would help to improve driver
behaviour and would complement and reinforce the proposed 20 mph limit or zone.

Long term (up to 2020)

125.

The main challenge in the longer term is likely to be providing a safe environment for
the increasing number of pedestrians in the City following the opening of Crossrail in
late 2018 and the associated increase in City employment. To an even greater extent
than the medium term, the long term is affected by uncertainties and the proposed
actions will need to be reviewed and refined during the life of the Plan. The following
measures are proposed:

. Continued enforcement and ETP activity with an increasing focus on pedestrian
safety particularly on routes to and from the new Crossrail stations.

Paje 120



. Continued implementation of safety related measures identified in the Area
Strategies.

. Implementation of measures to achieve a radical change in the function of City
streets such as removing or reducing the number of buses from certain corridors
following the opening of Crossrail and/or banning deliveries when streets are
most heavily used by pedestrians and cyclists.

Funding options
Estimated costs

126. Further work will be required to identify the viability and estimated cost of implementing
some of the recommended actions. The City of London will be able to undertake some
additional preliminary investigations from within existing staff resources but additional
sources of funding are likely to be needed to provide enhanced enforcement and ETP
activity, undertake surveys and evidence gathering, produce publicity and guidance
materials, and, not least, to implement the any additional road safety schemes or
initiatives that may be developed.

Sources of funding

127. The action plan is relatively high level and many of the proposed work streams have
not been fully costed. Some of the actions will be funded from existing budgets but it is
clear that additional funding will be required to fully implement all the measures within
the Plan and further work will be undertaken to provide cost estimates and identify
potential funding sources. These might include S106 contributions, the Community
Infrastructure Levy (CIL), EU funding, private sponsorship or most likely utilisation of
the City’s On-Street Parking Reserve; which can be used to change the highway and
traffic infrastructure and, deliver the Mayor’s Transport Strategy.

Governance and monitoring

128. TfL proposes to establish a new Road Safety Reference Board for London (RSRB) to
facilitate input into the development and implementation of road safety policies and
help oversee continuous improvements in road safety in London.

129. The City Corporation and the City of London Police will participate in the RSRB, the
aims of which include:

e To review and report on progress in implementing road safety policy in London
e To report progress towards achieving the KSI casualty reduction target for London
o To report on safety camera operations in London

e To foster links with other organisations to encourage a holistic approach to road
safety in London

o To discuss road safety priorities and key road safety issues
e To disseminate good practice

e To provide a high profile reference point for all road safety activities in London

130. The City will monitor the progress made in reducing the number and severity of
casualties yearly in an annual report produced for collisions and casualties on the City’s
roads to include pedestrian, pedal cycle, powered two-wheeler and child collision and

Palje 121



other casualty data. This will complement the monthly Collision and Casualty
Intelligence reports prepared by the City of London Police.

131. An annual City Road Danger Reduction meeting is proposed at which politicians from
the City and the GLA would review past performance and the forward work
programmes of the Corporation and TfL.

Partnership working

132. Improving road safety requires work across a wide range of issues involving many
organisations working in partnership. The preparation of this plan has been supported
by engagement with the City Police and this engagement approach needs to continue.

133. The City Police play a vital role in reducing road casualties through their road policing
activities and have units dedicated to reducing offending on London’s roads and the
provision of road safety education. Successful joint working with the police already
occurs and will underpin successful delivery of further road safety improvements. It is
therefore proposed to establish a Road Danger Reduction Partnership to include the
City Corporation, the City of London Police, TfL and other interested parties to work
together in delivering this plan.

134. The following activity will take place.
¢ Review casualty reduction targets jointly
e Continue to deliver jointly staffed campaigns
e Continue to support the police with their enforcement campaigns

e Senior Police and City of London officers will meet quarterly to review joint
engagement.

e Reports to the Police Committee and the Streets and Walkways Sub-Committee
where possible to be jointly authored, but otherwise to be shared between services
for consultation.

135. The City will also work with neighbouring authorities through the central London Sub-
Regional Forum or bilaterally to share best practice and deliver shared solutions, where
appropriate. This will include benchmarking its road safety activity, against other
authorities’ performance as appropriate.

136. There will also be consultation and dialogue with road user groups on proposed road
danger reduction schemes arising from this plan.

Recommended action plan

137. The key actions that the City proposes to take are summarised in the table below.

Palfe 122



Action Expected | Timeframe
outcome
Short term (to December 2014)
1. Refocus Road Safety Team to conduct safety monitoring of streets Safer 2013
within the City to identify danger hotspots and possible remedial streets
measures.
2. Investigate 20 mph speed limit/zone Safer 2013
streets
and
people
3. Implement 20 mph speed limit/zone (depends upon the outcome of Safer 2014
2 above) streets
and
people
4. More focussed and evidence based enforcement/ETP activity, with Safer ongoing
a strong emphasis on cyclists, those on foot and motorcyclists. To people
include a cost benefit analysis based upon the promotion of safer
cycling in Cheapside.
5. Investigation and development of measures for implementation in Safer 2013
the medium and longer term, including better data collection and streets
analysis, development of a pedestrian model and commencement
of a programme of street auditing looking first at junctions with high
casualty rates and at least one key cycle route across the City.
6. Implement approved engineering measures; both large and small — Safer 2014
e.g. Holborn Circus, 2-way cycling, advance cycle stop lines. streets
7. Review management of road works, temporary reinstatements and Safer 2013
construction sites, including road safety elements of the streets
Considerate Contractors scheme; to deliver better safety outcomes.
8 Review the safety aspects of the operations and contracts Safer 2013
undertaken using vehicles within the City, ensuring that all drivers people
are trained in relation to cycle safety and the fleet is fitted with
appropriate safety measures such as reverse cameras, audible
warning, and ‘fresnel’ mirrors.
9. Engagement with TfL to secure improvements on the TLRN and to Safer 2013
lobby for the optimisation of signal timings to improve road safety streets
10. | Hold annual Member-level City Road Danger Reduction meeting 2013
with TfL.
11. | Strengthen work with the City Police at an operational and strategic 2013
management level.
Medium term (up to December 2017)
12. | Continued enforcement and ETP activity Safer ongoing
people
13. | Continue investigation and development of measures for Safer
implementation in the longer term, including continued review of | streets

major junctions, gyratories and key cycling corridors.

Palje 123




14. | Implement measures from TfL junctions review Safer 2016
streets
15 | Implement measures from Area Strategies and the review of Safer 2017
dangerous junctions and streets. e.g. Aldgate and Bank junction streets
improvements and the Fleet Street to St Paul's corridor. Seek to
remove all gyratories within the City.
16. | Complete the universal courtesy crossing programme. Safer 2015
streets
17. | Prepare streets for major transport projects such as Crossrail and Safer 2017
Bank Station upgrade ensuring street design mitigates risks | streets
associated with pedestrian congestion.
Long term (up to 2020 and beyond)
18. | Continued enforcement and ETP activity Safer ongoing
people
19. | Continued implementation of safety related measures identified in Safer 2020
Area Strategies and LIP programmes streets
20. | Change the streets to provide increased priority and safety for Safer 2020
pedestrians and cyclists, once Crossrail has opened. streets

Paife 124




Agenda Item A4f

Committee(s): Date(s):

Streets & Walkways Sub-Committee 11/12/2012

Projects Sub-Committee 13/12/2012
Subject: Public

Road Danger reduction in the Shoe Lane area —
Stonecutter Street & Little New Street

Report of: For Decision
Director of the Department for the Built Environment

Gateway 3-5 Report (Streamlined)

Summary
Dashboard
Project Project Total Estimated | Spend to | Overall project
Status Stage Cost Date risk
Authority to | £149,838 53,738
start work — | To complete the | Staff
GREEN Gateway 5 | project Costs, GREEN
Fees
Context

In July 2012 Members agreed a project to explore how road safety and the local
environment (including air quality and noise) might be further improved in the
Shoe Lane area. In particular, to consider what benefit might be derived from the
formal closure of Stonecutter Street to through traffic. This followed an approach
from Goldman Sachs who expressed concern about the safety of vulnerable road
users (including their own staff based at their Shoe Lane campus) and agreed to
fund the project. They have already provided £100,000 of advance funding for the
evaluation and design phase of the project.

One of the ways to improve road safety in this area and the local environment
would be to remove through vehicular traffic. Stonecutter Street currently
accommodates competing and conflicting transport activities. The dominant use
of Stonecutter Street is as a cut through route for traffic moving south-eastbound
from Holborn Circus to Farringdon Street. This conflicts with the character of the
road, the local activities, and the interests of pedestrians and cyclists.

Growth in pedestrian and cycle numbers is expected in the area as a result of
local developments and national public transport enhancements (Crossrail) as well
as modal shifts to more sustainable forms of transport.

Locally, Transport for London (TfL) has forecast that 140,000 passengers will use
the new Farringdon Station each day once Thameslink and Crossrail are fully
implemented in 2018 and 2019 respectively. A proportion of these passengers will

Page 125



travel through the Stonecutter Street area, either on foot or by bicycle. Giving
higher priority to pedestrians and cyclists on Stonecutter Street would help to
accommodate these higher flows by improving both safety and the quality of the
public realm in the area. Improving the priority given to vulnerable road users is
entirely consistent with the nearby Holborn Circus Enhancement Scheme, which
the City will implement in 2013.

These aims and objectives have been communicated to local Ward Members,
residents, businesses, user groups and TfL via a public consultation which was
held between 27" September and 26™ October 2012.

Brief description of project

The City has now undertaken feasibility studies in the Stonecutter Street, Shoe
Lane and New Street Square area to develop measures which would increase the
priority given to vulnerable road users, such as pedestrians and cyclists. This
could be achieved partly by redirection of through traffic on to more appropriate
streets whilst limiting impacts on journey times and distances for local residents
and businesses.

Three options were developed and consulted upon. These were:

1. Option 1 (Recommended): Permanently close Stonecutter Street at its
eastern end to motorised vehicles.

2. Option 2: Permanently close Stonecutter Street at its eastern end to
motorised vehicles and also close Little New Street at its junction with Shoe
Lane, to motorised vehicles.

3. Option 3: Permanently close Stonecutter Street at its eastern end to
motorised vehicles whilst allowing for one-way traffic to travel eastbound
from Little New Street onto Shoe Lane.

After an analysis of the consultation results it was noted that 50% of respondents
were in favour of Option 1 and only 4% were in favour of Option 2. There was no
support for Option 3. Results of the consultation show that there was negligible
support for Options 2&3. This report focuses on the proposal to close Stonecutter
Street at its eastern end to motorised vehicles (Option 1).

A full breakdown of replies is given in Appendix 1, with the results (after re-
engagement in Table 4. Of the 22 Businesses/Key Stakeholders consulted, 11
were in favour of the scheme, 5 undecided and 6 were against.

Of those respondents that expressed support for the scheme, traffic speed
reduction and reduction of rat-running traffic were commonly cited as key reasons
for supporting the scheme. Of those that did not support the scheme, concerns
regarding potential increases in vehicle journey times were generally expressed.
Traffic analysis suggests that although there may be increases in travel time for
certain journeys, these increases are minimal. Furthermore, discussions are
progressing regarding linking the signal timings of the Holborn Circus and
Charterhouse Street junctions to further minimise any potential impact.

Page 126




Recommended Option

1. Option 1 (Recommended): Permanently close Stonecutter Street at its
eastern end to motorised vehicles as set out in Appendix 3 — drawing
22484901-109 - Sheet 1 - REV D.

Recommendations
It is recommended that Members:

1. Approve the detailed design (Appendix 3) and closure of Stonecutter Street to
motorised vehicles subject to:

i.  The making of any necessary Traffic Management Orders which will be
the subject of a separate statutory process, (including statutory
consultation);

ii. The Comptroller and City Solicitor entering into an agreement (under
Section 278 of the Highways Act 1980) with Goldman Sachs; and

ii.  That Goldman Sachs provide full funding for the project in accordance
with the conditions of the S.278 and prior to the commencement of any
works;

2. Members are also asked to approve revisions to the project budgets as detailed
in Table 2.

Resource requirements to complete the project

It is anticipated that the total costs to complete the project will come to £149,838.
Goldman Sachs has committed to fund the costs of the entire project, and has
already provided £100,000 advance funding for this purpose.

Page 127




Table 1: Total Estimated Project Costs — Option 1

Stonecutter St Evaluation Option 1
Permanent Closure
of Stonecutter
Street
£

Evaluation 53,738
Highways Works 32,100
TfL Signals Works 10,000
Works Sub Total 42,100
Fees 16,000
Staff Costs 18,000
Sub Total 34,000
Sub Total before Tolerance 129,838
Tolerance (allowance for utilities) 20,000
Grand Total 149,838
Total Funding Requirement 149,838
Advance funds received (100,000)
Balance remaining* 49,838

*Note: Additional funds required via S.278.

Plans for consultation prior to the next Gateway report

The following consultation processes are anticipated:

e Statutory consultation on the Traffic Management Order; and
o Stakeholder engagement with those properties that may be affected during
the construction phase.

Tolerances
e Goldman Sachs will be required to underwrite the full costs of the project;

¢ The making of any necessary Traffic Regulation Orders, which will be the
subject of a separate statutory process.

Page 128




Overview

1. Evidence of Need

Shoe Lane and Stonecutter Street are designated as
local access roads and are expected to cater only for
local trips. If Stonecutter Street were to be closed to
motorised vehicles this would enforce this designation
and reassign through-traffic onto designated London
distributor roads such as Farringdon Street, and onto
City of London local distributor roads such as New
Fetter Lane and Charterhouse Street.

From investigations it can be demonstrated that there
is justification for action based on the high numbers of
vehicles using Stonecutter Street as a through route
to Farringdon Street. Surveys indicate that 60% of
traffic using Stonecutter Street is rat-running traffic.

1 fatal, 10 serious and 73 slight accidents have been
recorded in the area over the last 36 months. A
reduction in vehicular traffic will normally lead to a
corresponding reduction in accident occurrence.

In the morning peak hour alone, approximately 200
vehicles using Shoe Lane and Stonecutter Street as a
cut through have the potential for conflict with over
550 pedestrians that currently cross informally at the
western end of Stonecutter Street and towards the
southern end of Shoe Lane.

With pedestrian and cycle growth predicted to rise in
the future, accident rates are also predicted to
increase should the local environment remain
unchanged.

Cycling Environment

Although St. Bride Street is an attractive route for
both pedestrians and cyclists, this does create
conflicts within a designated shared area. By
improving the facilities at Stonecutter Street for
cyclists to enter / exit the Shoe Lane area, a reduction
in the numbers of cyclists currently using St. Bride
Street can be achieved without affecting journey
times or cycle safety.

A Barclays Cycle Hire station operated by Transport
for London (TfL) is located on both sides of
Stonecutter Street, adjacent to the junction with
Farringdon Street. Approximate 46 docking stations
are provided and generate frequent cycle trips.

Development in this area is likely to be predominantly
office based which will encourage a further increase

Page 129




in cycle numbers.

e The closure of Stonecutter Street to motorised traffic
would retain permeability for cyclists, improve safety,
and the local environment to further encourage these
sustainable travel options.

2. Success Criteria

The success criteria for this project will be:
e Reduction in traffic volumes;

e Reduction in personal injury accidents on the local
streets;

¢ Redirection of through traffic on to more appropriate
streets with limited impacts on journey times or
distances;

o [Effective use of the local streets for local needs,
without detrimental impact on the operation of the
surrounding highway network;

e Enhanced pedestrian and cycle environment;

¢ Maintain the effectiveness of the ‘Traffic and
Environment Zone’ in the west of the City; and

e The ability to accommodate higher pedestrian and
cycle flows, particularly to local public transport hubs
where services have recently been or will soon be
enhanced.

3. Project Scope and
Exclusions

There are no notable exclusions.

4. Link to Strategic
Aims

This project seeks to deliver against the following Strategic
Aim:
e To support and promote ‘The City’ as the world leader
in international finance and business services

This will be delivered by ensuring that the needs of the local
community are met fully.

This project also supports delivery of the Statutory Local
Implementation Plan. In particular, the plan includes an
objective to reduce road traffic dangers and casualties.

5. Within which
category does the
project fit

(2) Statutory (a requirement under the RTA 1988 to reduce
casualties) and (4) Reimbursable.

6. What is the priority
of the project?

(B) advisable

Page 130




7. Governance
arrangements

Not required, a formal working group was set up with the
external funder at Gateway 1-2.

8. Resources
Expended To Date

To date the following resources have been expended on the
evaluation of the Stonecutter Street Danger Reduction
scheme:

Table 2: Evaluation & Design

Stonecutter St | Original Spend to | Remaining
Evaluation Budget date /

(Revised

Budget)

£ £ £

Fees 31,000 2,556 (28,444)
DBE Staff 69,000 51,182 (17,818)
Costs
Grand Total 100,000 53,738 (46,262)

As is explained later in this report, the amount of time that
needed to be spent on consultation and stakeholder
engagement was much larger than initially envisaged.
However, much less time was spent on design as a result,
resulting in an underspend on staff costs overall.

The remaining unspent evaluation funds (£46,262) are set
aside for the implementation of the scheme; the progression
of the scheme being subject to a S278 agreement with
Goldman Sachs and all additional funding being received in
advance of implementation.

9. Results of
stakeholder
consultation to date

From September 27 to October 26 the City undertook a
public consultation on three proposed options. A
consultation leaflet seeking comments on the proposals was
distributed to Ward Members, and 750 local businesses and
residents in the vicinity of Shoe Lane, Stonecutter Street,
and New Street Square, including statutory consultees, and
TfL. The options were as follows:

e Option 1 (Recommended): Permanently close
Stonecutter Street at its eastern end to motorised
vehicles;

e Option 2: Permanently close Stonecutter Street at its

Page 131




eastern end to motorised vehicles and also and close
Little New Street at its junction with Shoe Lane, to
motorised vehicles; and

e Option 3: Permanently close Stonecutter Street at its
eastern end to motorised vehicles whilst allowing for
one-way traffic to travel eastbound from Little New
Street onto Shoe Lane.

In addition to the consultation leaflet, officers also attended
meetings with major occupiers in the area and key
stakeholders (Deloitte, Hines, City Temple, St Andrews
Church, and Land Securities) who sought clarification on the
proposals prior to submitting their responses.

As a result of this exercise the City received 22 responses of
which 13 were from businesses and key stakeholders and 9
from local residents. This represents a response rate of 3%
which is typical for this type of consultation.

The full breakdown of results received by the deadline date
of 26 October and hard copies can be found in Appendix 1-2
of this report.

Analysis of the consultation responses and stakeholder
feedback revealed that:

e residents were either strongly in favour or against
Options 1-3; whereas

¢ business stakeholders and major occupiers in the City
would only agree with the principles of the proposals,
stating they were unable to decide given the
information available to them.

Table 3: Initial Consultation Responses

PROPOSAL

Options 1-3 For Undecided | Against
Resident 2 (9%) 2 (9%) 5 (23%)
Business and | 5 (23%) | 7 (32%) 1 (4%)
Other Key

Stakeholders

TOTAL 7(32%) | 9 (41%) 6 (27%)

In total 41% of respondents were of the opinion that further
research should be undertaken to better understand the

Page 132




environment and local needs, and therefore could not agree
to any of the proposed options by the consultation deadline
date of 26 October.

In particular, there were concerns regarding how the
proposals would work in the context of the programmed
Holborn Circus Enhancement Scheme, part of which
proposed to restrict movements at the junction of St
Andrews Street / New Fetter Lane.

Because of the mixed response to the options, officers
undertook further analysis into the impacts of the proposals
in conjunction with TfL to further clarify the benefits and
impacts of the proposals and in turn communicate these to
stakeholders.

To this end, the City commissioned specialist transport
consultants to produce an addendum technical report which
could be sent to key stakeholders and major occupiers who
sought further clarification. In addition, Officers discussed
and agreed with TfL that the junction of St Andrews Street
/New Fetter Lane could work as an all-movements junction
without any effect upon either the Holborn Circus scheme
nor the Stonecutter Street proposals.

Follow-up meetings were then held with Deloitte, TfL, St
Andrews Church, City Temple and Land Securities.

A summary of the respondent’s issues, and the technical
addendum outlining the City’s response to the issues raised
are given in Appendix 4.

Current Position

Subsequent to the second round of engagement, officers
noted a shift in opinion from “Unable to decide at this time”
to “In favour” based on the technical analysis/mitigation
provided and supporting correspondence provided by TfL.

Of the major occupiers and key stakeholders the City re-
engaged with, the following are now in favour of Option 1.

1. Deloitte ( approx. 10,000 employees)
2. The City Temple

3. St Andrews Church

4. Transport for London

Table 4 summarises the consultation responses following
the second round of engagement.

Page 133




Table 4: Consultation results following re-engagement:

PROPOSAL

Option 1 For Undecided | Against
Resident 2 (9%) 2 (9%) 5 (23%)
Business and | 9 (41%) 3 (14%) 1 (4%)
Other Key

Stakeholders

TOTAL 11 (50%) | 5 (23%) 6 (27%)

As a result of the re-engagement, 50% of respondents are
now in favour of Option 1, with 23% still unable to decide,
and 27% who are still against Option1.

In addition to the changes noted above officers are of the
opinion that with further re-engagement there may be an
additional 3 businesses, and 2 residents who may change
their views from “Unable to decide” to “In favour” of Option 1.

10.Commentary on the
options considered

Option 1 (Recommended): Permanently close Stonecutter
Street at its eastern end to motorised vehicles to reduce
unnecessary through traffic in the area.

The City, in conjunction with TfL have identified that the
closure of Stonecutter Street would have no adverse effects
on Farringdon Street and the Transport for London Road
Network (TLRN). It would help in achieving the City’s aims to
reduce accident rates, provide a quieter, safer route for
pedestrians and cyclists, accommodate future growth in
pedestrian and cycle flows, and improve local cycle access.
This option will also increase the priority given to vulnerable
road users, such as pedestrians and cyclists; and redirect
through traffic on to more appropriate roads whilst limiting
impacts on journey times and travel distances for local
residents and businesses.

It is envisaged that the physical closure of Stonecutter Street
would be achieved via the installation of removable bollards,
associated regulatory and advisory signage, lining works,
and amendments to TfL signal aspects on Farringdon Street.
Please refer to Appendix 3 — 22484901-109.dwg - Sheet 1 -
REV D.

In order to ensure that the closure satisfies the Success
Criteria set out in Section 2 of this report, and to further
satisfy consultees concerns with regard to through traffic,
monitoring will be undertaken. Modelling of the traffic impact
of the proposed closure indicates a de-minimus impact in
terms of through traffic using Little New Street. This will be

Page 134




kept under review to enable further understanding of the
impact on local environment and needs, and assess any
requirement for further measures. If the closure is not
adequately achieving the Success Criteria, particularly with
regard to through traffic, additional measures will be
considered. This could include further physical restriction or
the use of Access Only Traffic Regulation Orders.

The cost implications of Option 1 are given in Table 5.

Table 5: Option 1 S.278 Construction Estimate

Stonecutter St Description £
Highways Works Riney’s / Highways 32,100
TfL Signals Works TfL Signals Works* 10,000
Works Sub Total 42,100
Fees Surveys, Traffic 16,000
Orders
T&PR Staff Costs Project 15,000
Management
Highways Staff Costs | Project
3,000
Management
Sub Total 34,000
Sub Total before 76,100
Tolerance
Tolerance Utility Diversions 20,000
Grand Total 96,100

* - TfL and utilities diversions estimates yet to be received.
An estimate of £10k has been assumed for TfL works costs
and a £20k tolerance for utilities diversions.

Should members choose not to close Stonecutter Street
officers will close down the project and return any remaining
funds to Goldman Sachs.

11.Consequences if
project not
approved

e Should Members not approve the recommendations
within this report the project will be closed and an
opportunity to improve the local environment at no
cost to the City will be lost.

e There is a possible risk to corporate reputation with
major City stakeholders if this project suffers undue
delay.

Page 135




12.Key benefits of the
proposal

A genuine reduction in danger for all road users by
identifying and controlling the principle sources of
threat;

Reduction of road danger at source by promoting
environmentally sustainable transport which will
provide equity and accessibility for non-motorised
road users;

Provide for expected cycle and pedestrian growth in
the area due to new developments, the Crossrail and
Thameslink improvements, in addition to projected
changes in future modal share;

Redirection of through traffic on to more appropriate
local distributor roads whilst limiting impacts on
journey times and distances for local residents and
businesses:;

Increase the priority given to vulnerable road users,
such as pedestrians and cyclists;

Improve permeability for cyclists and pedestrians and
improve the environment to further encourage
sustainable travel options; and

Generation of opportunities for significant public
realm improvements in the future.

13.Programme and key
dates

Local Stakeholder consultation: 27/09/2012 —
26/10/2012;

S&W Sub Committee: 11/12/2012;
Projects Sub Committee: 13/12/2012,

Enter into S.278 agreement with Goldman Sachs:
December 2012;

Obtain formal approvals from TfL: early 2013;
Advertise Section 6 traffic orders: early 2013; and

Implementation: early 2013

14.Constraints and
assumptions

Goldman Sachs to fully fund the delivery of this
project via S.278 agreement;

Possible delay to implementation due to construction
requirements of known or future developments and
Crossrail.

Page 136




15.Risk implications

MEDIUM RISK

This project will require formal approval from TfL on
traffic and bus matters;

Objections to the statutory consultation of Section 6
traffic orders; and

There is a possible risk to corporate reputation, if
delays occur during the project process or approval is
not granted to proceed with the recommended option.

16.Stakeholders and
consultees

External stakeholders:

Transport for London (TfL);
Local business and community interests; and
The public and user groups.

Internal Stakeholders:

Dept of the Built Environment (DBE);

Highways
Access Team; and
Road Safety Team — Road Safety Audit;

Open Spaces Department; and
Ward Members — Castle Baynard

Traffic Regulation Order :

Statutory consultation

17.Legal implications

Section 6 Traffic Regulation Order (TRO) would be
required;

In order to ensure that the City can continue to fulfil
its statutory duties, the City retains full discretion to
consider the introduction of alternative traffic
arrangements (either temporary or permanent) on the
affected roads should this be necessary in the future,
in the event of changed circumstances such as
altered traffic patterns;

S.278 agreement; and

In exercising its highway and traffic functions the City
must have regard, inter alia, to its duty to assert and
protect the rights of the public to use and enjoyment
of the public (S.130 Highways Act 1980); its duty to
secure the expeditious, safe and convenient

Page 137




movement of traffic (having regard to effect on
amenities) (S.122 Road Traffic Regulation Act 1984);
its duty to secure the efficient use of the road network
avoiding congestion and disruption (S.16 Traffic
Management Act 2004), and the co-ordination of
street works (S.91 New Roads and Street Works Act

1991).
18.HR implications None
19.Benchmarks or N/A
comparative data
20.Funding strategy e 100% external, from Goldman Sachs; and

e S.278 agreement.

21. Affordability This project will be funded in full by Goldman Sachs.
22.Procurement N/A
approach

Options Appraisal Matrix
See separate document.

Appendices

Appendix 1 Initial and post consultation response breakdown
Appendix 2 Hard copies of initial consultation responses
Appendix 3 General arrangement drawing for Option 1
Appendix 4 Technical note addendum — Issues Resolution
Appendix 5 Stonecutter Street Consultation Document
Contact

Report Author Aaron Banfield

Email Address aaron.banfield@cityoflondon.gov.uk

Telephone Number 0207 332 1723

Page 138




APPENDIX 1

Initial and Post-Consultation Response Breakdown

Version 2 - May 2012 Page 139



APPENDIX 1:

Business and Other Key Stakeholder Consultation Breakdown - Closure of Stonecutter Street

1- Shoe Lane roundabout ¢onfusing indec
predicting vehicle/eycle movements,

2- Vehicle/cyclefscooter speeds too high: and
3- poor pedestrian protection.

1- Business area with business requirements,
2- Reduction in permeability; and
3- Low accident rates to justify need.

1- Requires a response reassuring that the City has assessed
the impacls or redi: ing traffic onte Cl Street

1- Objects to closing Little New St
- reduction in permeability;

- re-rauting issues unlikely,

- Felter Lane has lengthy queues.

1- High pedestrian footfalihigh cycle numbers

2- laxi/LGV rat running numbers high,

3- befieve Littls New 5t should be closed to mitigate against re]
routing vehicles,

4- Strest Layout unsuitable for rat running dus (o appearing
part pedestrianised.

1- Not been enough thought/time gone into evaluation
process,

2- Not enough time lo censider the consequances given
Holborn Circus proposals have not been agresd:

3- Construction and planning applications dus fo begin or ba
submitted;

4- Proposals would ¢

1- Broadly in favour of the proposals,

2- Stonecutler Streel will have little negative impact,

3- Congerned about cycle traffic/speed on St Bride Street

4- Prefers Stoneculter St as an access point 1o Shoe Lane/SL
Andrews S rather than St Bride St for p

1eIncreased journey times;

2- Reduction in p ility te public

3- Jeopardise client interests, reduce the valus of the property;
4- Need to investigale alternative/fiexible options, timad
closures |.e. exit for Laxis only,

1- Need fo ensure thal the scheme will not exacerbats existing
issues while creating new issues

2- Failed to consider their impact on the intersection of
Farringdon Street and Stanecutier Street;

3- Failed to consider the impact on the redeveloped Holbor

1- Scheme should be delayed until impacts to Chartsrhouse St
are assessed. new bus stand location is agreed, road safety
audils complated

1- Land Securities generally suppart the principle of improving
the publiic realm and pedestrian and cyclist safety in this area,
2- Unable to support the permanent closure of Stonecutler
Street to laxis. buses and other vehicles, or any modifications
to

1- Deloitte is broadly supportive with the Col's

2- Deloitte engourages the Col lo lake inta consideration the
concerns sel out above that may impact upon the operational
efficiency of the business.

3- Proposals gurrently show little detail

Unable to decide at
espondent No. RESPONDENT RESPONSE TYPE FOR
2 n this point in time

6 Innovative Legal BUSINESS

7 Ravensbeck Lid BUSINESS

] GDF Suez E&P UK Ltd BUSINESS

1" Stevens Hewlett & Perking BUSINESS

12 Individual - Deleilte LLP BUSINESS

14 8t Andrews Church KEY STAKEHOLDER

15 GOODMAN DERRICK LLP BUSINESS

Tyler (Knighl Frank) C/O River

- Courl Properties Lid e

17 City Temple KEY STAKEHOLDER R

1 Transport for London -Borough. | gy graypron pER

Projects and Programmes
YWaterman's Transporl &
19 Development Consullancy BUSINESS
C/O Land Securities

20 Deloitte LLP - Athene Place BUSINESS

21 DP9 C/O Goldman Sachs BUSINESS

1- Supports the closure of Stonecutter Streat,

2- Support is dependent on the right and left turn being
available out of St Andrews St onto New Fetter Lane, nat in
favour of Closing Little New St;

3- Agrees with the principals of the scheme.

Page 140



APPENDIX 1:

Resident Consultation Breakdown - Closure of Stonecutter Street

Unable to decide at AGAINST

: NSE TYP
Respondent No RESPONSE TYPE FOR this point in time
1 RESIDENT
2 RESIDENT
3 RESIDENT
4 RESIDENT
5 RESIDENT
9 RESIDENT OR
10 RESIDENT
13 RESIDENT OR
2 RESIDENT

KEY POINTS °

1- Increased journey times to residents Car Parks;
2- Reduction in permeability to public amenities;
3 Re-routing via other sensitive areas.

1- Increased journey times to City Car Parks;
2- reduction in permeability o public amenities.

1- Increased journey limes to residents car parks;
2- Reduction in permeability lo public amenities;
3- Lack of pedestrian attractors.

1- Access must be maintained for res/businesses;
2- Well used by peds;

3- Vehicles pose a danger and detract from ped
experience.

1- Imporiant transit route for businesses;
2- Would create issues for servicing;
3- Cycle/Pedestrian behaviour is poor,

1- Shoe Lane roundabout is confusing causing
indecision when predicling vehicle/cycle movements;
2- Vehicle/Taxi speeds too high;

3- Identifies reute as a cut through.

1- Improves safety and the local environment;
2- Scheme should be followed by remodelling of
Holborn Circus.

Page 141

1- High volumes of rat running traffic;
2- High taxi volumes, idling/waiting commercial

vehicles around Little New S1, narrow Streets,

1- Mobility impaired people using taxi's and should
not be unduly punished;

2- Important to maintain canvenient reutes through
the city;

3- Chanterhouse Street has bad congestion;

4- Agrees with reducing large vehicles in the area;
5- Need to maintain per




APPENDIX 2

Copies of Initial Consultation Responses

Version 2 - May 2012 Page 142



[puosiad IncA moy jno
ib paAolisap aq |im s
"UolD|INsSuUoD Jo sesodl
jouosiad BuilBounwi uy

go sauanb AUD 8ADY NOA J| “uolDHNSUOD Iy} jo pus ayy
ID19D (1D pup Appd payy Aup of psssod aq |im 5|IDJeP-ON
nd sy Jof Aj9j0s pesn aq (1m SIDEP JODIUOD I "UouDWIO U
B661 12V U0UD8401d DIDQ BY) YiiM$81IdWD UOPUGT Jo AjD By

‘suoysabBns dn mojo) pub UOILD}INSUOD Byj JO sjnsal
B} ssassD Ajjn) ADw am Joyj os S|lojep 130jU0D INOA apiacid as503|d

P (1 o5 | hemar
T I (e
7Y = e, o 4] mgoty oy
o g oy gy

e EN sl s
Sphy a4 By W

3
.__.
I

e R

‘42 4223 uopuo ‘oyp
uewpndeaq Jeo1o uol
[ouosiad InoA moy jno

1IN ‘0L X089 Od 'UopuUoT jo ApD
+28]01d DIDQ 0} 8)lim aspa|d 'sn Aq
qo selenb Aub eApy noA 3} "uol

‘juswiuolAug Ying By} Jo
paboupul 5| uolouLIoU

12DJUOD ||V "UoLDWIO)U)

Ipuosiad BuiBoubw uigg| 10V ucloajoid bipg m__z Yimsaljdwos uopuon J0AlIDBY)

"suolsebBns dn mojjo) pup UOHDNSUOD 8} JO sJINsal
B4} ssessp A|iny Aowl am joy) os S|IBESP JODIU0D JINOA apircid aspald

Coao .%.<G&w \aiojnﬂhﬂv__ﬂﬂﬂ\

Core: eveg

..... iww._l_leqllﬂﬂm anvl Fapnll Trm

mn \o\;: ..__._m,S; Wy

T — AR

c— “TmIr) vﬁﬁ ry g ?QN.\SIN

W N s

.wm.N\ [ (= dllw.n.[%

reky?d ?&yﬁ@

4

AR o S R TSRS I TR

pnfurrvﬂ.l.w

—
ef...
©

I wrew oy

Aﬁ-ll TLo UL.QJ\H\ - .ﬂwmﬂ\iuw

)

-

| 1 w7 |
0y Wy ] Vv oy vy pe Dpvé/
Ralsladis A

'TLOZ 129020 9z Appli Aq sjuswiwos oA puas aspajy

y

e =

"}981IS MBN S|IIN PUD joaliS
BHNOBUOIS UO s8.1ns0j2 pool pesodoid sy Buipiobal sjusuwos

InoA Bupiass alojaiay) aip SM "sn O} Juppodw §) uoluido INoA

&

Wwiio4 juswwon)

._d\jéoi ﬁ&;@g\fum drﬁ wl

ke

oy

i n . -
Yroveag q 552559 T Ko ___D)ﬂ.ﬂ :
J]lw% —“Ty T evalg 3e

2.5

_ R \ua__\_
mYodsS rciﬁoQ v ¥

_ \ ’ T
yvo \_LIJQ_M.N:OMN %Q ﬁw_d\uwcmnwg owon \N\z\/
"TLOZ 19Q0J20 9Z Applg AQ sjuswiwos InoA puas aspajd

'19314S MBN B}IT PUD 984S
Jal{nd8uoys uo seINsolD pool pasodo,

1d sy BuipipBai sjuswuod
INOA Bupoas SI0jalal 810 M 'SN O} Juppodul s| uoluido Jnoj

W04 juswuwon

)

S



S OSSOSO AUD SADY NOA J] Uiy NsuoD siyy jo pue sy
D padolsap aq jm SiIolep Io pup Auod payy Aup O} passpd aq |m s|ipisp opN
“UOURHNSUOD Jo sasodind ay ioJ Ajsjos pasn aq i1M S|IDjap 2DjuoD ||y ‘uoloulIoiu; i
[Puosiad Bulbbupw ul g4 10w UOD8101d DIDg 2y} ypm sadwos uopuoTjoAud eyl =

‘suoysebBns dn mojjo) pup UOHDNSUOD 8y} Jo sinsal
Y} ssasso AN} Abw am Joy; os S|IIDIBP JODIU0D INOA apiacid aspald

A% Wi M«i&s FPram : @ i ¥
. ‘TLOZ hwnmw O 92 Appli4 Aq sjusWIWIOD INoA puss wmou_n_

'TLOT 1290420 9T Appiig Aq sjuswwos oA puss CELETR]

I
} .
19911 MEN SIHIT PUD Jo31jS
"}92UIS MBN B4I PUD josug A
. JBND8UOIS UO s8INSOJD PO pasodoid ayy BupIpBa) sjUBWILOS
1SHNO8UOJS Uo s81nsofd ppos pasodoid ey BuipIoBal sIusWWOS ! tSo g m_m_mom m:o,ﬂm_hmﬁu_ m_ouoz, - _m_ctan_ wpe pegey
INOA Bupjess a10js10y) 810 M *sn o} jubjiOdL 5| LoD inoj “ ! I's| uowl
I
I
|
I
|
I
I
|

O

Wo4 juswuwon W04 juswiwo’)

)



——tea ¥ ¥ - ¥ 5 | s Y PUSTEgr
1o U@)Oﬁmmﬂu.mﬂ_ 1M SlIDISP || pUD }tOQ paIy} Aup 0} passnd aq [IIM S{IDJBD ON
“uoupyNSUOD Jo sasodind syy 10 >_®_Om Pasn aq [|IM s|IDjap {DDIUoD IV ‘uonDLIOUl
|puosiad BuiBoubw Ul844] 1OV UOD8]01d DID 84} UM m@:ﬂEOU uopuoljoAjin eyl

"suoyseBBns dn Mojjoj puL UOKDYNSUOD By JO si|nsal

|
i
{
|
BU} $5855D AJIn) ADWI M DY} OS S[IDJEP JOPUOD INOA 8pIACId 85D8)d w
m
i
:
'

Mé\f§§v§£f§m\§§
Ay i Lt sy el [opana = g S
- D YD) | A 4
HUgrd SV OV VAN davd 0V | koot |
v 0043wy han) v v 3k, i mkm vaey
THMRA Y 2T | VY 8 5SS B Qp\s@\,\,\_ Mo
B0l 5500) of gy vy | o) - b e
g Tk py 490 Yoot af g vei) |
b\_ﬁ&!g%*gﬁﬁgz@\s A% & Ad Bl u.LIT\_\a.%m

L Prap U~ /2499015 / @:\*‘oﬂo\i:.\ﬁbg 118 ggm

1155949 w\af\«me& gﬁﬁs 44 ¥ b1 W«M Q4 VWY __.
vrpn9l g 4o +1

h 4
£0 P ARl AN S SUYT
e’ o 4t W 7 bt ot Yy of Jvmend
ﬁfx}a v oo hs v Wil 4 o v 20Ys VoY Ay m Y

"T10Z 12q0}20 9T ADpPl4 AQ SJUBWIWOD INOA puas aspaly _

‘{e8liS MoN 8|l pup ja3.is
J8}JNd3u0js Uo saINso|D pol pasodoid ay} Bulpiobai sjuswwoD
INoA Bupiess alojaiay}) 1D ap "sn o} juppodw) S| uoulido JNoA

7

WHO4 jJuswwon)

1D peAousap aqg |m SIIRLSp |0 pub Auod pauy >c4mg o} mmmm_ua aq .__'mrqm._;ﬂwv oﬂ
.:o:o::mcouhommmoahjawcto;_m_om vmmgmn_:kﬂ_g .

8P }ODJUOD ||y UOLDULIOUI
[Puosiad BuiBoubw uIg4| OV UOID8101d DIDg ay) Yim saidwos uopuoijoAuD eyl

"suolsabBns dn mojjo) puo UOLDNSUOD 8y} JO sjnsal
BY} 558550 AN} ADW aMm JoU) OS SIIDISP {ODUOD INOA apiacid aspaly

VA PR Spanded SSOYSE U <1 STH]

"TLOT 1990420 97 Apply Aq sjuswiwos oA pusas aspajg

198.S MON S| puD Jass
19ND3UOIS Uo saINso|o pool pasodoid sy} Buipiobai sjuswiwod

INoA Bupieas siojeiay) aio OM SN O} Juopoduwl st uojuido ino

Wwiio4 juswuwon

b



|ouosiad InoA moy jnogo ssusnb Aup SADY NOA §| "UCHDJINSUOD S|y} 4O pus ayj
1o paioysap aq |im S|iojep |0 pup Aluod payy Aup oy passod aq |Im s|injep oN
‘uolpNSUOD o sasodind ay} o) AjBjos pasn aq [Im S|ID{8p JODIUOD ||y "UOLDLLIOU|
|ouosiad BUuIBbUDW U144 |2V uola8j01d Ding 8y} yim seldwes uopuo jo Al eyl

‘suoyseBBns dn mol|j0) pup UOIRHNSUOD 8y} JO synsal
B} s53s5D ANy ADW @M DUy} Os S|IDBP {ODJUOD INOA Bpirold aspa|d

- PVR TS wgn

TYOIOW Qb | IS WLEMENOS
| (S 2y 29101059 )
N 2VUNGTM ZHL WO OFTha |

.Im,@_é\ 1M v SusnIceg

2nup( XYL 3SWH29Y WYWINZ

W)o@&ﬁ%@ kuvan SV oy uonNr oy

| mﬂ.\hﬂ!ﬁd@/ﬂj& SOWIVOL (1§

BLUVANOIS  AMOG 59RT ﬁqmq}nqdﬂﬁ.

-

"TLOZ 1390120 9T Abply Aq sjuswiwos INoA puas asDald

"1921IS MeN Bl pup |aals
#BHNOBUOYS UO s8Inso|d ppos pesodoid ay; Buipipbal sjuawwod
INOA Buptess 10184} 810 M *sN O} Juppoduw s uoiuido INOA

€)

W04 juswiwon

i

|
|
j
“
|
u

[s] 1 4y In en AUD 2ADU noA || “UCHD}NSUGS SIGT 10 pus ET
1o pakossep ag |iim s|IDiep |IB pup Apod paiyt Aup o) passnd aq [lIM S|IDJep ON
“UCHDHRASUOD JO wm.moncaa 8yl 1o} A|3]os pasn.aq ||is SHDjep JODJUoD IV "uonBtuioyll,
|puosisdBuiBoup W UiB661 10V UOIOa101d DIDQ Y} Yiim sadwiod Uopuojo Al syl

..mco:mmmmz,m dn mojjo4 Uco.,co;o:}mcoo 8y} Jo synsal
BY} 553550 A|[} ADW M DU} OS SiIDIEP GMOEOU INOA apinoid estald

o it sy ik G e )
e o Tl i

L e (o 0

SL
L BT s ey v S P
g0 yoofs

SO 0N L LI
0b Fro o oh gy sspdR Ty

rraiafsined o P R ol ousrden o 4
,E%é T

: WO fpaav AT N LY,
3 ru “... T e ~ : ;
mw.weamj ° Sy u/%\.nl. uo% WSy L ad 62 S

: o7 <.owum._?.1~%u_ dﬁgg ey ai
\?«ﬁi,?ﬁé‘&a&!w@dﬁ D SRy - T gooy
P~ 8o v e Woed pon ,QJ_W.J.SSQ
R T VTS G T Yy St
Al s, gy 4, v S0 48 Aprngs busa o)

R ?E?amme utcm ﬁaw N wtmm.?\ %

"TLOZ 1990420 9T Applid Aq SjUSWIWOD INOA puas aspald

}98IS MBN 3|l puD Je8ls

49HNO3UOLS U0 sainsold proi pasodoid sy} BuipioBai sjuswiwios
INoA Bupiaes aioja18y} 91D oM SN O} juopoduwi st uoluido JNoA

" Wwiod juswwon



-7 40%¥d IN0A MOY IN0GB Seenb AUD AL NOA J| “UGHB]NSUGS SIU} JO pus ay; .
©,02158p 8q |IM SIDJOP HD PuD ALDd Pl AuD Ofpessod od HIM.S|IDJSP OR. -
2 \WV2100 Jo sasodind a4 1o Aj9|os pasn aq (1M SIDISP JODIUOD || “UOIDWLIO) U

e
. c/ccm BuiBoupw uigssl 1ov U0l}28101d DD 84} Ujim sa1|dwod Uopuo Jo AjlD ayl
s

, - " “suoysaBBAsdn MOJ[Of PUD UOUDIINSUOD BU4 JO SHNSS)
'8y} ssass0 A||nj Abw om Jpy) 0s S|IDJeP JODJUOD INOA apiaoid 8spajd

b5y, s, pavoeJuiy- b

S oy g Wi o sl Wess |
TS RS o Wogse
w10 DS vinzd v o By ou sy

a8

"TEOT 13q0}20 9T Apply AqQ sjuawiwiod InoA puas aspajd

"1931IS MBN 814N puD Jaalls
18HN38UOLS UO s8INsol0 pool pesodoid ayy BuipipBal sjuawiwoDd
INoA Bupiaas alojalay} 810 ap "sn O} fuppoduwi s uoluido Jno i

WO Jusawiwion)

V)

s gy

I .

Rl =g A g S [l i s =

o1 4 J T
[ouosiad JNOA Moy jnogp seuanb Auo SADY NOA }| "uclypynsu
10 pakoyisap aqg |im sipisp |0 pub Aund payl Auo 0} passod eq |IIm s|IDjep oN
"UOHDYINSUOD jo sasodind By) 1o} A|8|0s PasSN 84 [jIm SIDISP §O0IUOD IV “UOLDWIIOUI
[pucsiad BulBounuulges| joV UOID810I4 DO Yl yimsalidwoo uopuo jo Ay eyl

RO OO OO O

0D sl Jo pus auyy

‘suoysabBbns dn mojjo) pup UOD}NSUOD By 1O S§NsaL
BU} 558550 ANy AW @M DY} OS S|IDISP JODIUOD INOA apiacid aspa|d

e ARSI HT ¥

Z10Z 1390420 9Z Appid Aq sjuswiwod INoA puas aspald

198U MON BT pUD j28uls
19HNOBUOS UO 58INs0|2 pool pesodoid ay} Buipiobai sjuswiwiod
INOA Bupiees siojalayy aio ap “sn o) juopoduw st uoiuido Jno A

W04 jusawiwion)



—

= IIFAITEIET JOSSSUOITU ST IO A0S PSSh 8 (1A S[IB[8P (oBjuocs Iy "Uoljouwiojul
|pucsiad BuIBDUDW Ul g4 19V UCHD840i4 DIOQ 9y} Yiim salidios uopuot jo AlD ayl

1D PSASISSE 54 (A 35180 0 pus AT PO roo-or passe TR ST
‘UoHD|NSUGS jo sesodind ayj 1o Ajejos pasn aq jim SIIDISP 2DJU0D ||V "UOIPULIOU]
[ouosiad BuiBounw uiggs| 1o UOHI8J0Id DIDg U4 Yim se)doD UopuoT JO Ao syl

'suoysafBBNns dn moj|oj PuUD UOKDYNSUOD B} JO SYNSal “sUoliseBBNs dn MojIo) PUD UOKDYINSUOD By} 4o sijNsal
AU} 558550 AlIny ADW 9M JDY} O5 S|IDISP 1ODJUOD INOA SpIACId BsDS|Y it S| SS9SSD Aling ADW @M §DU} OS S|IDISP JODJUOD INOA SpPIACId aspald

I m EQSY,M%% J%H&Q,Sw.es PP s mniey

T e g TRk poy
wu_m\uh&ﬂ%\\ IXAL AW NOS Sdzie S ‘ \w_k,ol*w mﬁ«.u “y._ I\Uiﬂxﬂ —wi w..._f\wal.v‘

AIITUIN [ A pal SAWLL fApiSS. w507 (e hon 75 TSR miym ey
e e e — WO . - — -Ih s 0 il B P———
. CSIRHL A AP RTINS IS — v\_lu,,«w\w.v_] poivorem of ku«w.ﬁw

S/ LT IEHL T Sgmn0zy 29iZ @0 ox

e

Page 148

PRI YT ()5 ) A5 i
“EISEEG 31 vkl Wmwmr Wk | = ﬁﬁwwfﬂnb& W {eltns

LIT2L [ UFLIPIOAMGLS 4@  =APTIH Bl - - [ Y B

, _ T ro o) e prapisk o sy

"TLOZ 1290120 9Z Apppd AQ spuswwos INoA puas aspajg

_ 'TL0Z 1990400 9T Appuy AqQ sjuawiwos InoA puss asp3|d
|

}93US MBN 81417 puD Jesys
18HNO3UO|S UO saunsojo pooi pesodoid sy} BuipioBal spuswwos

199IUIS MON S|I|IT pUD Ja8ls
InoA Bupjess aiojaisy} a1b opm “sn o} jubpoduwil st uoiuido Jno

18}{N38U0JS Uo $8INSOID pooI pasodoud 8y} BuipiobBai sjuswiLuod
InoA Bupiees aiojalay) a1b apm “sn O} juopoduwl st uouido JNo

Wwiio4 jJuswiwon)

> T s

|
|
“
|
| wio4 juswwon)
|
[}

él




GOF S\wvCZ @

R ————

1% October 2012

Aaron Banfield
Project Manager
Department of the Built Environment

City of London Corporation
Guildhall PO Box 270
London EC2B OZY

Dear Mr Banfield

Stonecutter Street - Road Danger Reduction Scheme Consultation -

Our Company is located at 40 Holborn Viaduct. If through-traffic for vehicles headed towards
southbound Farringdon Road is now restricted, as proposed on Stonecutter Street and (optionally)
Little New Street, in addition to existing restrictions on through-traffic on southern St. Bride Street,
southern and northern Shoe Lane, and Plumtree Court, then the cumulative effect will be to funnel
southbound motorised vehicles away from St Andrew’s Street entirely, which will thereby flow onto

Charterhouse Street to access Farringdon Road.

While this may not be of concern to cyclists and pedestrians frequenting Shoe Lane, it must be
noted that Charterhouse Street already suffers the burden of intense eastbound traffic which is
focused especially at the traffic lights at the junction of Charterhouse Street and Farringdon Road.
The proposed Stonecutter and Little New Street changes may thus actually hinder The City from
achieving its primary objective of “reducing road danger”, by shunting motorised vehicles into these
other areas that already sustain high volumes of traffic, including pedestrians and cyclists coming

to work here at our Company.

i -

I would thus be grateful for an assurance that The City has also included Charterhouse Street and
the Viaduct itself as part of its risk assessment of the proposed changes, which would include
appropriate mitigation measures, because all Londoners working in the vicinity of Holborn Circus

are equally deserving of The City's consideration.

GDF SUEZ E&P UK Limited

40 Holborn Viaduct, London ECIN 2PB, UK

Telephone: 00 44 (C) 20 3 122 1500

(Registered office No. 3386464 England) P ag e 149



s s

Tr:;,'. B R —
o ' —— L30CTN —

oM i

| § _Na...[.. PUEE— nmw
E FILE | 1 l 6 2!6 .| BB |
ST ANDREW HOLBORN GUIL e '

St Andrew Holborn, 5 St Andrew Street
London, EC4A 3AB

Department of the Built Environment
City of London Corporation
Guildhall PO Box 270

London

EC2B 0ZY

22" October 2012

Dear Sir

Proposed Closure of Stonecutter Street and Little New Street

| am responding on behalf of St Andrew Holborn in regards to your Road Danger
Reduction Scheme Consultation.

| am very concerned that the documentation in respect of the closure of Stonecutter
Street and Little New Street does not refer to the Holborn Circus Area Enhancement
Scheme and the interface between the two projects. Together, these changes will have a
major impact in regards to the access and egress from St Andrew Street and this will
particularly affect the church as well as existing businesses.

i -

In addition the affect of the changes at Holborn Circus have not been taken into account
when looking at traffic volumes for Stonecutter Street and it may be that once the
redevelopment of the Circus has taken place these additional changes will not be
required. There are large number of exciting new planned developments on and just off
St Andrew Street and the consultation document does not address the implications of
these nor the affect on traffic which will occur with the opening of the major Crossrail

Station at Farringdon.

St Andrew’s consider that the closure of Stonecutter Street in conjunction with the
inability to turn right out of St Andrew Street which is in the proposed plans for the
Holborn Circus Area Enhancement Scheme will have a major effect on the life at St
Andrew Holborn. St Andrew’s would be unable to agree to the closure of Stonecutter
Street while there is no right hand turn to enable access to the Circus.

Office: +44 (0)20 7583 7394 Pag eglliﬁQcar@standrewholborn.org.uk



| understand that TFL are consulting on a proposal for the right hand turn at St Andrew
Street, however, this is dependant on the removal of the right hand turn from
Charterhouse Street to Hatton Garden and there is no guarantee that this will be

agreed with Camden.

St Andrew Holborn fully supported the enhancement scheme at Holborn Circus on the
basis that vehicles could access Farringdon Street via Stonecutter Street. ;

I am concerned about the rights of access to public worship and to all the activities and
events and use of the church and facilities by ourselves, local businesses and other
charities. | have detailed below some of the affects of the closure on the church and its

users:

e St Andrew Holborn is home to three grant giving charities for the relief of
need. The area of benefit covers the City of London and South Camden and
many of the recipients are vulnerable, elderly or disabled. For those who
require transport after attending services or events at St Andrew Holborn the
exit route will take them in the opposite direction from where they wish to
travel. This will increase their travel time, costs and stress.

e Members of Staff who travel to and from work by car over Blackfriars Bridge
will increase their journey time considerably and may not be able to travel at

all.

o Egress for funerals and weddings and other major events will be via New Fetter
Lane which may not be the direction of travel required.

e Although your consultation indicates that most journeys via Stonecutter Street
are using the route as a cut through. Small-medium goods vehicles represent
22% of those using Stonecutter Street of these most are likely to be on a
delivery route. The closure has the potential to affect the efficiency of the

businesses in the area.

I consider that there has not been enough time to integrate all of the proposed changes
in an area which needs a well thought out plan. | suggest that the proposals for
Stonecutter Street are put on hold until confirmation of the revised layout at Holborn

Circus is received.

Yours aitfully

Page 151



Flat 5
4 Pemberton Row
London
EC4A 3BA
Department of the Built Environment
City of London Corporation
Guildhall
PO Box 270
London
EC2B OZY 23 October 2012
Dear Sirs
STONECUTTER STREET

| am very concerned at the City's constant attempts to make life more difficult for City
residents of a certain age. | am sure that the City does not do this intentionally and
quite rightly is concerned to improve the environment. It is mainly young people who
cycle, but very few over 50 would dare cycle in London given how aggressive other
cyclists are. It is quite difficult just being a pedestrian.

It is most important that City residents can pick up black taxis in the City and travel
easily and it is absolutely vital that the black taxis are allowed through Shoe Lane,
Stonecutter Street etc and that these routes should not be cut off so that only cyclists

and pedestrians can use them.

| think it would be a grave mistake to introduce a road closure at the eastern end of
Stonecutter Street, allowing access only for local businesses and residents. It is
important that traffic can get through and that there are alternative routes to
Charterhouse Street which is constantly clogged with standing traffic and very
unpleasant traffic fumes and pollution. "By all means make the roads narrower to stop
large vehicles getting through, but please keep the City moving and allow black taxis

free access.

| very much hope you will bear my comments in mind and remember that older
residents need consideration as well as young cyclists.

Yours faithfully

Page 152



Knight Frank

PSDD |

ow 240CT 017

No
et .
FILE

Department of the Build Environment
City of London Corporation

Guildhall
London EC2B 0ZY

18 October 2012

Dear Mr Banfield

Re: Stonecutter Street - Road Danger Reduction Scheme Consultation

We act for River Court Properties Limited, the owner of River Court, 120 Fleet Street, London EC4.
We write to let you know our client’s concern in response to the above consultation.

The proposed road closures to all motor vehicles at Stonecutter Street and Little New Street would
adversely impact on local businesses causing great inconvenience to users of the buildings in the
area, including River Court. By closing Stonecutter Street and Little New Street, this part of Shoe
Lane would effectively become a dead-end street. The total cut off of vehicular traffic will no doubt
jeopardize our client’s interest by depressing the property value of River Court. While our client
respects your plan to improve the traffic condition in the vicinity, our client does not think any
drastic movement is appropriate especially if this is to be done at the expense of our client. We are
sure there are better ways to improve the region in terms of traffic flow without having to shut off
all vehicles entirely. In that connection, you may consider more flexible arrangement like traffic
control of private vehicles only but not taxi, or closure during part of the day only.

It is hoped that our suggestions are of merit and trust you will study the scheme thoroughly before
embarking on the road closure. In any event, all our client’s rights are hereby expressly reserved.

We look forward to hearing favourably from you.

rely

andrew.tvler@knightfrank.com
D/L 020 7861 1319
M 07876 145 904

Woolgate Exchange, 25 Basinghall Street, London EC2V 5HA
T 020 7606 0606 F 020 7256 2762
www.knightfrank.com

Knight Frank LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England with registered number OC305934.

Our registered office is 55 Baker Streel, London W1U BAN where you may look at rs
you ey ookl D Y] 5




Planning Consultants

MIK/DGM/ns/DP.2294

26 October 2012

Department of the Built Environment
City of London Corporation

100 Pall Mall

GI_II]. ﬂ ]1 PLANN[NG % London SW1Y 5NQ
TRANSPOHTAT] telephone 0207004 1700
PO Box 270 m 2 facsimile 02070041790

ner PPD

London
EC2 0ZY
FAQ: Aaron Banfield

www.dp9.co.uk

' LTP

30 0CT 2012
[ e
[[b255 [P

e ng

Dear Sirs

Stonecutter Street & Shoe Lane
Road Safety and Environmental Improvements - Road Danger Reduction Scheme

Consultation

Thank you for the opportunity to comment on your Stonecutter Street "Road Danger Reduction
Scheme Consultation". We set out below our response on behalf of our client, Goldman Sachs.

Goldman Sachs, as freehold owner of the Fleet Building (which has a frontage onto Stonecutter
Street) and a major occupier in the immediate vicinity, supports the main objectives of the
proposal as stated, which are to reduce road danger, enhance the streetscape and improve the

public realm.

Goldman Sachs also supports the proposal to remove unnecessary traffic through the area
bounded by New Fetter Lane, Fleet Street, Farringdon Street and Holborn by creating an “access
only” area for local businesses and residents. It is clear that both pedestrians and cyclists will
benefit from an enhanced public realm environment and improved road safety experience as a
result of the proposed closure at the eastern end of Stonecutter Street.

Advocacy for the initiative is directly linked to an important element in implementing the
proposed closure, namely the retention of the left and right turn traffic movements out of St
Andrews Street into and from New Fetter Lane to ensure that the locale retains full traffic access
and permeability. We understand that the proposals for Holborn Circus traffic enhancements

already take this into account.

You have also requested views on a secondary proposal to close Little New Street permanently
to motorised traffic at the junction of Shoe Lane or to allow one-way traffic to travel eastbound
from Little New Street onto Shoe Lane. This proposed change is not required to achieve the
primary objectives of reducing road danger, enhancing the streetscape and improving the public
realm, therefore the proposed closure of the eastern end of Stonecutter Street to through traffic
should not be conditional on the approval or otherwise of the Little New Street closure proposal.

L3

s/\userfolders\dgm'\2012\project armada - dp2294\correspondencell - col - 261012.doc

Page 154

A list of the names of the partners and their professional qualifications is available for inspection at the above office



APPENDIX 3

General Arrangement Drawing for Option 1

Version 2 — May 2012 Page 155



\

89

Existing signal poles replaced with

]

— - footway to maich existing surface and levels

A=

Cycle signal heads and pedestrian
aspects lo be removed

Retain existing tactile paving Sl

e

N
_Jm
2
Remove tactile tail and resurface area of __J

=

OoooOooooooo

S0ooOoon

=]

ODoobooooa

LN\ \/\/Q
——————— o SR X X X K
RN N QAN \/j
xisting "no left turn" on / ]
W !\ o ;IL?:};LF:%zd"\Nith /N :

b 1 DTt X

_)]_4 : % _--mn---“‘-é‘-'-;ilﬁ—-

D) : : '\

Note:

per existing.

All signal phases, cycle limes and general signal operation to remain as

Cycles enlering Stonecutter Street from Farringdon Street to do so during

Sign to diag 616 "No
entry” supplement
with "except cycles"

Eastern section of

Stonecutter Street to become

two way for cycles with all

motorised vehicles banned

— 3 No. new "City of London™
— bollards installed in line with

existing footway bollards to

— enforce the vehicular closure

Existing bollard line

/

: Retain existing tactile paving

7

Existing sign to diag 616

i "No entry” supplemented
with “except cycles"

3301103 dwg - Sheet |

=}

!
suitable breaks in traffic not under a designated signal phase = B E

are 1 Lo " re i ry |Design
RN .- e S org, —— A% oo o g
—_ 2 Title [rev] Date [comments | App| 5 - =% g
= steer daVBS m & Amendments to foctie paving ond @ =
e R g i Stonecutter StreetSection 6 D | 18/10/12 e aclws| MSB 1:200 @ A3 D |g
Tl 02079105000 Fax G20 75105007 Danger Reduction Scheme G | D4/10/12 [ e i k) K3
= e Signal Junction minimal works proposal B | 25/00/12 e e o Vx| W16 | MSB| i o oA s
ty P g )| 22484901-109 10f 1 =
A 124 J2C [USB ﬁ




SSNOH fityy

= route to
Farringdon St

No through

, | =
2 e =
=
74 "—:
. b= Ao
% - B 42 a‘.- i m\\

p 3
£| No through

x route to 2.
- | Farringdon St| & »
g =
3 -
- ~

#6010,

esign

BE USED FOR CONSTRUCTION P|

Rev. Date Comments

Ckd

AP Drawn Scale

Rev

Jzc 11250 | @ A3

— Title
= steer davies gleave 2
B ey o e Stonecutter StreetSection 6
Tel 020 7910 5000 Fax D20 7910 5001 Dal‘lger‘ Redul:ﬁon Scheme
- Proposed Signing
City of London Drawing No. Sheet No
Paae: - - 22484901-109 20f2

PLOT DT 04710/ 20120160 wmuumm\n«m-m ~ Sheet 7




APPENDIX 4

Issues Resolution

Version 2 - May 2012 Page 158



Issues Resolution
Response to Issues raised by those that felt they were unable to provide
a clear opinion (41% of respondents):

Issues: )
1. Respondents are unable to make an informed decision as the

proposals have not been developed in conjunction with known projects
and developments i.e. Holborn Circus

The proposals were too focused and more comprehensive plans
should be developed for the benefit and safety of the entire area; and

No analysis of the impacts of redistributed traffic on Holborn Circus
proposals, and the potential for increased congestion at the junction of
Charterhouse Street and Farringdon Road;

Resolution:

Recent discussions with TfL have confirmed that the previously
consulted scheme- which restricted access from St Andrews Street
onto New Fetter Lane for right turn vehicular traffic - is to be amended.
The revised scheme will allow for access from the Shoe Lane area
along St Andrews Street onto the main Holborn Circus junction which
in turn allows access to routes via Holborn Circus, Holborn Viaduct and
Charterhouse Street. The destination choice that this secures will help
to minimise the impact on journey distance and journey time that the
proposed closure of Stonecutter Street could have on redirected
vehicular movements for traffic that has a purpose in the local area.

The benefits the closure would deliver for pedestrian and cyclists
through the area, and the potential improvements to the public realm
which could be generated are considerable and need to be fully
assessed as part of the overall benefits of the proposals.

The redesign of the Holborn Circus junction allows an opportunity for
TfL to establish a new regime for traffic through this area. The revised
junction has fewer routes into Holborn Circus, and in the final layout
there will be three routes from which to access Charthouse Street
rather than the five which currently exist. This means that two fewer
traffic phases will deliver traffic to the Charterhouse Street junction.

By linking the signal timing at the two junctions it is predicted that it will
be possible to minimise any additional delay caused by the close
proximity of these facilities and to manage and mitigate the slight
increase in journey times and junction demand that the closure of
Stonecutter Street to vehicular through traffic could divert to the

Charterhouse Street junction.
Information for these predicted impacts regarding the closure proposals

was shared with TfL in early October 2012 to enable any additional
analysis to take place at that time and it is now confirmed by TfL that

Page 159

Version 2 - May 2012



the predicted impacts on the Charterhouse Street junction with
Farringdon Street will be able to be accommodated.

Response to Issues raised by those against (27% of respondents) the
closure of Stonecutter Street:

Issues:
1. Increased journey times;

2. Reduction in permeability for residents and businesses wishing to
access public amenities i.e. Public Car Parks; and

3. Accident rates are low and do not justify the need.

Resolution:

e Taxi journey times have been calculated for various destinations within
the City of London and the impact that the closure of Stonecutter Street
to vehicular through traffic could have on these journey times and
distances has been calculated.

o The effect on journey distance can be very simply calculated. From the
decision point at the Shoe Lane roundel, the distance to Farringdon
Street southbound is approximate 95m using Stonecutter Street
whereas the same journey via Holborn Circus and Charterhouse Street

is approximately 735m, therefore an additional 640m in distance.

¢ The effect that this additional distance has on journey times has been
estimated using an online journey planner which includes an element
of delay for congestion. The additional time taken is estimated at an
average of 2 minutes per journey. The approximate additional 120
second journey time over the 640m distance equates to travelling at a
little over 10mph for the journey which is in line with the estimated
average speed of vehicles through London, and is therefore a robust

assessment.

o There will be some journeys that might take longer than this due to the
time of arrival at the signal junctions and from the impact of the signal
phasing. However, under normal conditions it is predicted that there will
be the ability to travel the additional 640m in less than the 2 minutes
predicted for the average journey time increase.

o The overall benefits for pedestrian and cyclists in particular and the
public realm in general cannot be achieved by anything other than a full
closure to vehicular through traffic along Stonecutter Street as it is the
impact of the vehicular through traffic that is having the negative impact
on the safety for vulnerable road users.

Page 160

Version 2 - May 2012



APPENDIX 5

Stonecutter Street Consultation Document

Version 2 - May 2012 Page 161



v._;_n,?n,.wn.o..ig_ [BiUsuUOIAU] PUD Ajalog PRCY

{210

SUD] 30US Z 42345 I9)ynd>3u0)S

Departmenti of the Built Environment
City of London Corporation

Guildhall PO Box 270
London EC28 07Y

ol

i

— Foldhere — — __

Ul LD syjdouy Buy

Fold along doted line
{No sfamp nheeded)

Thank you for your time




U3 Jing ayj jo yuswipedag

NOgNo1
ALID SISIDAS PUD subpseped
JT 5D yons "uasn pooy Syqruauina

©} uaaib Ajroyud ey| espesou)

sasseusng pup
$58000 3949 j0o0| ancxduy 5 S84 {00} 4O S8IUD|
PUD sMoy BIoAD JayBiy . puo noﬁ...“..... ..hE:OmH
8|DPOWLICID O} jaais sod
- 3 is|ndsucys Buoip sisyoAS Jo) " u_fusaﬁgﬂ.gﬁf un”n_,“
SiiDjap joDuo) 3|N0413J05 “JoyBINb D SplAGLY

Aoy ybnouy) jo uoyoazpay
.]ll.'l’l'llrl.l.,l[lalllllllll
e e =

s5a.ppy
B

JWoN
‘dnoib Jayjo AUD Jo Auodwoo p juasaidai noA 1 Ajioads asoay

'T3Z 4223 Uopue] IBYRING ‘0/Z %08 Od "UOpUOT Jo Al ‘uswupaAug Jing By jo
uewibdaq Jasyjo uoysaloig RIBQ 0} ajum aspad sn Aq pebbupw 5| ua LUl P g sy
|pucsiad InoA Moy jnogp sapsnb AUD sApy nok d| "Uclipjinsuoa sy jo pua ay; 3 MO|BQ dol
1D pakajssp aq (I S0jep (1o pup Alpd pay| Aup O passod aq [m sipjep oN 19a4s uopBuwoy ¥ Dauo sionbg no 30 sipsoded sy}
‘uoyRyinsuoD o sesodind sy Joj Ajsjos pasn 29 Jllm 5ibjep {oDjueS ||y “uolpwiciy) ) Woy j9ays Jajinseunys 19a4s man eyy yBnouyy ooy Buynora ayy saAI105[G0 Al
IBucsied BuiBpuow uigss| joy UOHI3|0Id BIDg BUj Yim seydwod uopuot jo AjiD ayy u| sup) e242 [punogsam) 10 51033 By |as}o o} 58(2AS pun sunyysepad ¢
i MOU=DHUOD D o uoyDNPOKL| i io} |daaxa suD Boys Jo uokduUN| By} |o |aays
suolsaBBns dn moj0) PUD LOKDIINSUDD Buy §O syjnsa) MEN SHin 25012 Ajusuouiad o uoydo ey,

B} 559550 AJjny ADW 8M JDUY) OS SIDSP |ODJLOD JNOA apiaoid 8spa|g

e

$3{2A5 puo
Suppsapad joj jdaoxa |eauls . S 1} 3581000 O} 8lf
43nJ8UO|S JO pue Wanor ¥

e X v IOHIDED Sy U0 BLI
By} JD BINSOP JuaUDULaY { 3| y
e e i i 7 e

RESUOICILI D} Bl

AUCHDUN UL |D |8tuss

1 BUISOID AllUSUDWL 18]

HAM SMBIA INCA X555

1C RINCM 8AlDala0

ADpU0Das B sD 49211
ISHADBUCIS WO 2oL 4BN0iUL
SUIAGWaI |0 8DUSNDS5UAD D Sy

Al2105 DaACKWL pUD

WioSlolgad isag o Wolj |isusq

J{laA 818 PUD sURLisSpad Dol

AIDssEoaUUN BUAOWID]

AZSIUSP[SE] pUD sassausng |020]

Buiouwis, ay 10} D20 AJUO S5300D UD a{pald
3 PINOM LISIUM 1931,5 J8LNDSUD}S

N23U0L5 UO : 10 S| So 10 PUs WBisna o) o 2inso|D

4t PROIB 82npaiul o) Buaas si

S} 2AID3IqC siLif 8ABIYoD O

S|Dsocioud

S10jIs1A DUD SjUspIsal
'$184/0Mm 0} 1Useed sioll puo
1205 DSID SUj 94DLLI O} 3D,
{USLIaDoP sy ULiNo pio| siosodaid
X0} 53l 8l0 S
Buiui
19348 MBN S|4 puD joau§
8HN23uoys uo saunsojo poos pasodod ay; Buipiobas sjuswuwos
oA Buass aiojeisyy aib ap s 0| junpioduw sj uoiudo o,

)% 08D 1020| 0RS110 S 2UCHOCW)
SU} SpUDLsispUA Al S|
wio4 juswiwon 240l ybnoiy)




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 164



Agenda Iltem 5

Committee(s): Date(s):
Streets and Walkways Sub Committee 11th December 2012
Subject: Public

Relocation of Dorothy Annan Ceramic Panels to Barbican
Highwalk and Transfer of Ownership to City of London
Corporation

Report of: For Decision

The City Surveyor

Ward (if appropriate):
Cripplegate

Summary

Goldman Sachs is seeking to undertake a comprehensive redevelopment of
Fleet Building and Plumtree Court to provide a new HQ building in the City.
There are a series of nine ceramic panels on the east elevation of Fleet Building,
in Farringdon Street which were recently listed grade Il. Goldman Sachs
considers that the panels would not sit comfortably within the scheme design for
their new building and have sought agreement to relocate them elsewhere within
the City. A new location has been identified within the Barbican on the highwalk
that links the Barbican Centre with Speed House. Planning permission and
listed building consent have been granted for their relocation to the highwalk
subject to conditions requesting details of the framing, fixing and lighting
scheme. It is proposed that the panels will transfer to the City Corporation
ownership on completion of the relocation works and that a dowry of £100,000
be set aside in a ring fenced fund to provide for future maintenance and repair.
Analysis of the likely costs associated with repair and maintenance has shown
that the sum should be sufficient

Recommendations

e |tis recommended that the City Corporation agree to the relocation of the
panels to the Barbican highwalk and that on completion of the works the
ownership shall be transferred to the City Corporation along with a dowry of
£100,000 to be set aside in a ring fenced fund for future maintenance and
repair.

Main Report

Background

1.

Goldman Sachs is in the process of formulating proposals for the comprehensive
redevelopment of Fleet Building, 70 Farringdon Street and Plumtree Court, 42 Shoe
Lane, for a new HQ building. A series of ceramic panels by Dorothy Annan are
currently located on the east elevation of Fleet Building. There are a total of nine panels
that relate to the sites previous use as a telephone exchange. These ceramic panels
were commissioned by the Ministry of Works in 1960 for the building. They are semi-
abstract in form and incorporate stylistic images of telecommunications equipment,
each are titled and one is signed. They were unveiled by the then Lord Mayor of
London in April 1961 and form a representation of the telecommunications industry.
On 21 November 2011, the panels were added to the statutory list of listed buildings
with grade Il designation. Goldman Sachs is of the view that the listed panels would
not fit comfortably with their aspirations to deliver a new HQ building and have been
liaising with the City Corporation, English Heritage and the 20™ Century Society to find
an alternative location to display the panels.

Page 165




On 18 September 2012 the Planning and Transportation Committee resolved to grant
listed building consent for the removal and safe storage of the ceramic panels. The
permission was subject to a S106 agreement which provided that every effort should
be made to find the panels a new home in the City. The report to committee indicated
that a suitable and agreeable location had been found on the Barbican Highwalk and
the S106 required Goldman Sachs to use all reasonable endeavours to secure its safe
relocation. The S106 was signed on 4 November 2012 and there was provision within
the agreement for a maintenance sum of £100,000 to be made to the owner of the
panels to cover specialist conservation, future upkeep, maintenance, repair and proper
display of the panels. As part of the agreement, provision has been made that the
transfer of the ownership and the maintenance sum should occur on completion of the
relocation of the panels. All associated costs including removal, refurbishment storage
and relocation will be met by Goldman Sachs.

On 8 November planning permission and listed building consent were granted for the
relocation of the panels to the covered elevated walkway at second floor level on the
south wall of the Guildhall School of Music and Drama which forms part of the grade II
listed Barbican Estate. Associated conditions were attached requiring details of the
lighting arrangement, the means of fixing and appearance of the framework together
with the content of an interpretation panel. The site was selected as an appropriate site
for the display of the panels as it is open to the public, is protected and relates to a
listed building that is similar in period to the building from which it will be removed.
Appendix 1 contains an image of how the panels will appear once in situ.

The scheme design will see the panels displayed in the same historic sequence and at
a comparable height to their original setting. Since the highwalk is covered, it will be
necessary for the panels to be artificially lit in an appropriate manner. The lighting
scheme will provide for appropriate enhancement of the panels and will improve the
lighting arrangements in what is a currently poorly lit environment. The scheme will
also provide for the replacement of existing lighting on the south side of the highwalk
with units that are more energy efficient than those currently used. The Guildhall
School of Music and Drama has confirmed that they consider that a new lighting
scheme that incorporates low energy LED lighting should be cost neutral when
compared to the existing situation.

Current Position

5.

Goldman Sachs will be seeking to submit a formal application to redevelop their site in
December 2012 and are keen to progress arrangements for the seamless removal and
relocation of the murals to a yet to be determined timetable that is suitable for the
Guildhall School of Music and Drama.

On completion of the relocation, the ownership of the panels shall transfer to City
Corporation and a sum of £100,000 will be paid by Goldman Sachs to be set aside in a
ring fenced fund to provide for future management and maintenance of the panels to be
managed by the City Surveyors Department.  The likely cost of future maintenance
and repair has been reviewed with our consultants and an annual figure of £3,220 has
been derived (including 20% contingency). The sum of £100,000 would therefore be
more than sufficient to provide for maintenance over a 25 year period, which has been
the norm for calculating such payments. This sum includes a provision of £1,750 for an
annual clean which due to the covered nature of the highwalk would not always be
necessary. An additional insurance premium has been provisioned for within this
payment.

It is considered that the display of the ceramic panels will not harm the special
architectural and historic interest of the Barbican. The current area of highwalk is
poorly lit and the panels and associated lighting will provide an enhanced environment
within this part of the Barbican estate.

Page 166



Proposals

8. Itis proposed that the relocation of the ceramic panels to the Barbican highwalk on the
south face of the Guildhall School of Music and Drama be approved, subject to
agreeing the precise timings, and that the panels are transferred to City Corporation
ownership along with £100,000 to provide for future maintenance.

Financial Implications

9. The Chamberlain has been consulted on the preparation of this report.

Conclusion

10. The relocation of the ceramic panels to the Barbican highwalk would provide a fitting
environment for their display. The introduction of new and replacement lighting will
create an enhanced environment for this part of the Barbican. The transfer of the

ownership to the City Corporation will be accompanied by £100,000 dowry to provide
for future maintenance and repair.

Appendices
Appendix 1 — computer generated image of panels in situ

Contact:
Simon McGinn | simon.mcginn@cityoflondon.gov.uk | 1226

Page 167



Appendix 1

Page 168



	Agenda
	3 Minutes
	4a Mitre Street Œ Anti-Social Behaviour Noise Complaints A Highway Authority Response
	Appendix 1 Mitre Square
	Appendix 2 Mitre Square
	Appendix 2a Mitre Square
	Appendix 2b Mitre Square
	Appendix 3 Mitre Square
	Appendix 4 Mitre Square
	Appendix 4a Mitre Square

	4b Options Appraisal and Authority to start work - Heron Plaza
	Heron Plaza - Options Appraisal Matrix
	Appendix 1 - Heron Plaza
	Appendix 2 - Tower-Plaza
	Appendix 3A - Heron Tower
	Appendix 3B - Heron Tower
	Appendix 4 - Heron Plaza
	Appendix 5 - Heron Plaza
	Appendix 6 - Heron Plaza

	4c Issue Report Œ Mariner House Section 106 Improvement Works
	Appendix A - Mariner House

	4d Cheapside Area Enhancement Strategy Œ Report on progress and proposed review
	4e Road Danger Reduction Plan 2013
	Appendix - Road Danger Reduction Plan

	4f Road Danger reduction in the Shoe Lane area - Stonecutter Street & Little New Street
	Appendix

	5 Relocation of Dorothy Annan Ceramic Panels to Barbican Highwalk and Transfer of Ownership to City of London Corporation

